From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "cecile.fraser@state.ma.us" <cecile.fraser(@state.ma.us>
Subject: Winter NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, February 26th at 6 pm
Date: Fri, 19 Jan 2024 16:05:54 +0000
Importance: Normal

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

Dear Commissioner Fraser,

I hope this message finds you well. I am reaching out to invite you to a dinner Advanced Energy United will be
holding for Commissioners and advanced energy companies on Monday February 26th from 6-8pm in
Washington D.C. at Yardhouse, a few minutes walk from the Winter NARUC conference hotel. The dinner will
be Dutch style, so everyone will pay for themselves. These informal dinners have been a great way to connect
with knowledgeable folks and learn about the latest in energy innovations.

Please let me (ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org) know if you are able to join us or if you have any questions. I
hope you will consider joining us!

Best,
Christina

This event is not sponsored by Winter NARUC, nor is it a part of the official Winter NARUC agenda.

Christina Kurre

Associate

Advanced Energy United

Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.

e: ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org

0: 202.380.1950 x3074

Mailing Address: 1801 Pennsylvania Ave. NW, Suite 410, Washington, D.C. 20006
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CPANwP4y!WKmKy9vQLja7mFay4F4vLqoPCwO-MY6rbK2H_q8I4B3Dzi1KPO9_YpyyRQzRvj2MyrjVBj_sXYQRt-4B1wV-Bo-FPYV6OwXO$

From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us" <Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us>
Subject: Winter NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, February 26th at 6 pm
Date: Fri, 19 Jan 2024 16:10:54 +0000
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

Dear Commissioner Rubin,

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CPANwP4y!TOZjbp8guybXmVPl1CWm-ROUIvz6jxu7HUIuCBXhExD97lgN6O1CKU75yFERSEdf4K-01BVMmdbPqK1bzlnqU_7kUoGPgzA$

From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: Re: Winter NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, February 26th at 6 pm
Date: Fri, 19 Jan 2024 16:17:25 +0000
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

Dear Chair Van Nostrand,
Thank you for letting me know! | look forward to seeing you in DC!

Best,
Christina

Christina Kurre (she/her)

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
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org. @AdvEnergyUnited

From: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2024 11:07 AM

To: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: RE: Winter NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, February 26th at 6 pm

Christina—
Thanks for the invite. | will plan to join you for the event.

Best,
Jamie

From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2024 11:06 AM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand @mass.gov>
Subject: Winter NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, February 26th at 6 pm

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Chair Van Nostrand,

I hope this message finds you well. I am reaching out to invite you to a dinner Advanced Energy United will be


mailto:ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CPANwP4y!UVMbQoCjdh-ozwM_IaL4mq8IwQ_lhwOckC4b8p6LuOHTjR-QfI4Lu9gStt_sdwTO_h8GHbkLsXANZ19GPIqoflMWTZ9S8Z01vT0$

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

e: ckurre(@advancedenergyunited.org

0:202.380.1950 x3074

Mailing Address: 1801 Pennsylvania Ave. NW, Suite 410, Washington, D.C. 20006
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited



mailto:ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org
mailto:ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CPANwP4y!SQPtdQ2ej7SFL5IklhO4AyObJt2jjpxOOQKc40NmYXfpz7COalj3Y1Ub-AJmTQpZ40YapZ1xudR-ZjE5IEqoHNA_RQeRwWsSOhzm$

From:

To:

Subject:
Date:
Importance:
Attachments:

"VanNostrand, James (DPU)" </o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=2165dba6204644c5b288cf319cda67b1-
£fd49d100-b2>

"Christina Kurre" <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Accepted: FW: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners
Fri, 19 Jan 2024 16:43:46 +0000

Normal

unnamed




Event: Accepted: FW: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and
Commissioners

Start Date: 2024-02-26 23:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2024-02-27 01:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Location: Yard House (812 7th Street Northwest, Washington, DC 20001, United States)
Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2024-01-19 16:43:45 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-01-19 16:44:05 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2024-01-19 16:43:44 +0000



Event: FW: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners

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

Date Created: 2024-01-19 16:44:03 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-01-19 17:03:27 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2024-01-19 16:18:28 +0000

Attendee: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>; Carreon, Alessandra
(LARA) <CarreonA@michigan.gov>; Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Jim
Purekal <jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>

Alarm: Display the following message 15m before start

| Reminder

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

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2024 11:15:18 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Jim Purekal <jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners

When: Monday, February 26, 2024 6:00 PM-8:00 PM.

Where: Yard House (812 7th Street Northwest, Washington, DC 20001, United States)



From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>, "Carreon, Alessandra
(LARA)" <CarreonA@michigan.gov>
Subject: FW: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners
Date: Fri, 19 Jan 2024 16:18:49 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed

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

Date Created: 2024-02-04 06:50:45 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-02-04 06:50:45 +0000

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



From: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
To: "Hannah Polikov" <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>

Cec: "Jim Purekal" <jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>, "Christina Kurre"
<ckurre(@advancedenergyunited.org>, "Gardiner, Lynn (DPU)" <Lynn.Gardiner@mass.gov>

Subject: RE: Getting Your Thoughts on the Next Session in the Eastern Commissioners Offshore Wind
Series

Date: Thu, 25 Jan 2024 21:20:37 +0000
Importance: Normal

Hannah—

Yes, | have time next week for a brief call to discuss these issues. Lynn Gardiner, copied here, can find some
time on m calendar. In terms of topics, that’s a bit of challenge for me. I'm learning that the DPU has a pretty
limited role with respect to offshore wind in Massachusetts. DOER handles the procurements (the DPU
approves the solicitations and resulting contracts), and the transmission issues are largely addressed at the
ISO, which is overseen by Jason Marshall and Weezie Naura at EEA. The Siting Board (on which | serve)
approves the transmission projects and associated substations once the offshore wind power reaches the
mainland. Jason and | just finished co-chairing the Clean Energy Transmission Working Group, which examined
the broader issues associated with clean energy integration, including various recommendations to the
legislature. | am happy to participate in ongoing issues, but would defer to others as far as identifying topics and
subtopics.

Best,
Jamie

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 10:02 AM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand @mass.gov>

Cc: Jim Purekal <jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>; Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Getting Your Thoughts on the Next Session in the Eastern Commissioners Offshore Wind Series

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

| hope you're having a great week! Thank you for participating in our Eastern Commissioners Offshore
Wind Forum Series last year. As we prepare to continue the series in 2024, we'd love to get your
thoughts on what topics and subtopics would be of most interest. Do you have a few minutes this
week or next for a brief call to discuss?

Warm regards,
Hannah

Hannah Polikov

Managing Director

Advanced Energy United
Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.


mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org
mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org

e: hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org
0:202.380.1950 x1028 m: 410.375.3654

Mailing Address: 1801 Pennsylvania Ave. NW, Suite 410, Washington, D.C. 20006
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited



mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.advancedenergyunited.org/__;!!CPANwP4y!XeX3ySEeeYk9iY5IRFnBGbTM3NgrO0_MYgVVmhhrtpJh8LEXIj6LX6uw4no1AxgbJXOKCw3t9ta9sHRRDJprI9T_Mqn1QYc0045u0Q$

Event: Offshore Wind Forum Discussion with Chair Van Nostrand

Start Date: 2024-02-01 19:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2024-02-01 20:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Location: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5605450931

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2024-01-25 21:40:47 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-01-25 21:43:10 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2024-01-25 21:40:42 +0000

Attendee: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Jim Purekal
<jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>; VanNostrand, James (DPU)
<James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>

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

Date Created: 2024-01-25 21:43:11 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-02-01 20:23:08 +0000

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



Event: OSW Forum discussion

Start Date: 2024-02-02 15:00:00 +0000
End Date: 2024-02-02 15:30:00 +0000
Organizer: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Location: https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/j/2846796295?
omn=82171909869&from=addon

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2024-02-01 22:59:14 +0000
Date Modified: 2024-02-02 17:06:29 +0000
Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2024-02-01 22:59:07 +0000

Attendee: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>; Christina Kurre
<ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>; Jim Purekal <jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail

system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

Hannah Polikov is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/j/2846796295?0mn=82171909869&from=addon

Meeting ID: 284 679 6295

One tap mobile
+13017158592,,2846796295# US (Washington DC)
+13052241968,,2846796295# US

Dial by your location
«+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/j/2846796295?omn=82171909869&from=addon__;!!CPANwP4y!U_hsuCMIGCXbSW6Z0Uf1Y9alpjNRpFoGZAq3EmR0ADgUKtO1c136q2ax5HkAQCysLt_OIMVBfOKkHkjGLfG9_pGU_86gvaYy0BVt8Q$

«+1 305 224 1968 US

« +1 309 205 3325 US

*+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
* +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
«+1 646 931 3860 US

«+1 689 278 1000 US

«+1 719 359 4580 US

« +1 253 205 0468 US

«+1 253215 8782 US (Tacoma)
* +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
«+1 360 209 5623 US

« +1 386 347 5053 US

«+1 507 473 4847 US

«+1 564 217 2000 US

*+1 669 4449171 US

* +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

Meeting ID: 284 679 6295

Find your local number: https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/u/kuvlyYP10



https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/u/kuvlyYP1o__;!!CPANwP4y!U_hsuCMIGCXbSW6Z0Uf1Y9alpjNRpFoGZAq3EmR0ADgUKtO1c136q2ax5HkAQCysLt_OIMVBfOKkHkjGLfG9_pGU_86gvaZ70V6UKw$

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

Date Created: 2024-02-01 20:08:13 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-02-01 23:05:09 +0000

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
Subject: Accepted: OSW Forum discussion
Date: Thu, 01 Feb 2024 22:59:31 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed




Event: Accepted: OSW Forum discussion

Start Date: 2024-02-02 15:00:00 +0000
End Date: 2024-02-02 15:30:00 +0000

Location: https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/j/2846796295?
omn=82171909869&from=addon

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2024-02-01 22:59:31 +0000
Date Modified: 2024-02-01 22:59:33 +0000
Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2024-02-01 22:59:31 +0000

Attendee: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>



From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <james.vannostrand@mass.gov>, Christina Kurre
<ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>, Jim Purekal <jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: OSW Forum discussion
Date: Thu, 01 Feb 2024 22:59:07 +0000
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
https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/j/2846796295?20mn=82171909869&from=addon

Meeting ID: 284 679 6295

One tap mobile
+13017158592,,2846796295# US (Washington DC)
+13052241968,,2846796295# US

Dial by your location

*+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
*+1 305 224 1968 US

*+1309 205 3325 US

*+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

* +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
*+1 646 931 3860 US

*+1 689 278 1000 US

*+1 719 359 4580 US

* +1 253 205 0468 US

*+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

* +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
*+1 360209 5623 US

*+1 386 347 5053 US

*+1 507 473 4847 US

*+1 564 217 2000 US

*+1 669 4449171 US

*+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

Meeting ID: 284 679 6295

Find your local number: https://advancedenergyunited-org.zoom.us/w/kuvlyYP1lo



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
Date Modified: 2024-02-01 22:59:32 +0000
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

*+1 309 205 3325 US

*+1 312626 6799 US (Chicago)

* +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
*+1 646 931 3860 US

*+1 689 278 1000 US

*+1719 359 4580 US

*+1 253 205 0468 US

*+1 2532158782 US (Tacoma)
*+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
*+1 360 209 5623 US

*+1 386 347 5053 US

*+1 507 473 4847 US

*+1 564 217 2000 US
*+1669444 9171 US

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

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>, Jim Purekal
<jpurekal@advancedenergyunited.org>, "VanNostrand, James (DPU)"
<James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>

Subject: Offshore Wind Forum Discussion with Chair Van Nostrand
Date: Thu, 25 Jan 2024 21:40:42 +0000
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

Date Modified: 2024-01-25 21:42:56 +0000

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

Accepted: Offshore Wind Forum Discussion with Chair Van Nostrand
Thu, 25 Jan 2024 21:42:54 +0000

Normal

unnamed




Event: Accepted: Offshore Wind Forum Discussion with Chair Van Nostrand

Start Date: 2024-02-01 19:30:00 +0000

End Date: 2024-02-01 20:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Location: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5605450931

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2024-01-25 21:42:54 +0000

Date Modified: 2024-01-25 21:42:58 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2024-01-25 21:42:54 +0000



From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: RE: DOE Fellows for Utility Commissions: Apply by March 5
Date: Tue, 06 Feb 2024 14:11:14 +0000
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

». Hannah Polikov reacted to your message:

From: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 2:10:17 PM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Cc: Erin Auel <eauel@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: RE: DOE Fellows for Utility Commissions: Apply by March 5

Thanks, Hannah. We are on it!

Best,
Jamie

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 6:05 AM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand @mass.gov>
Cc: Erin Auel <eauel@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: DOE Fellows for Utility Commissions: Apply by March 5

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Chair Van Nostrand,

| hope your week is off to a great start! | wanted to let you know that the window has opened for the next round of the
U.S. Department of Energy (DOE)'s Clean Energy Innovator Fellowship (CEIF). DOE CEIF sponsors individuals to work
full-time for up to two years at public utility commissions across the country to support clean energy, transportation
electrification, and grid resilience.

The application just launched, and the deadline to apply is March 5th. Additional details and the application can be
found through DOE at this website.

To get started, commissions need to submit a potential project scope and identify someone on staff as the project
“mentor” to oversee the fellow’s work. If selected, Host Institutions will be connected to a pool of qualified recent
graduates and energy professionals and will have the opportunity to select the best candidate to support their needs.


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.energy.gov/eere/jobs/clean-energy-innovator-fellowship-application-and-selection-process__;!!CPANwP4y!XvYWrZM-PN0w0eSqvHmpwwl_7Yf1ppe8cgQbbwJmRvSP_MxrPCv7Fv-9v8rpNQWlYcGpeCoW2oHZ28u2lfyVQDSf6qZEJ29_lFxqCQ$

If you have any questions, you can contact the CEIF Program at CEIF@ee.doe.gov, or reply to my colleague, Erin Auel,
copied on this email.

Warm regards,
Hannah

Hannah Polikov

Managing Director

Advanced Energy United
Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.

e: hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org

0: 202.380.1950 x1028 m: 410.375.3654

Mailing Address: 1801 Pennsylvania Ave. NW, Suite 410, Washington, D.C. 20006
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited



mailto:CEIF@ee.doe.gov
mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.advancedenergyunited.org/__;!!CPANwP4y!XvYWrZM-PN0w0eSqvHmpwwl_7Yf1ppe8cgQbbwJmRvSP_MxrPCv7Fv-9v8rpNQWlYcGpeCoW2oHZ28u2lfyVQDSf6qZEJ299N-uCiQ$

From: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>

To: "Echeverria, Teddy (DPU)" <Teddy.Echeverria@mass.gov>, "Kelly, Theresa (DPU)"
<theresa.kelly@mass.gov>

Subject: Fwd: DOE Fellows for Utility Commissions: Apply by March 5
Date: Tue, 06 Feb 2024 12:27:59 +0000
Importance: Normal

FYI

Get Outlook for i0S

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 6:04:37 AM

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


https://aka.ms/o0ukef
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.energy.gov/eere/jobs/clean-energy-innovator-fellowship-application-and-selection-process__;!!CPANwP4y!XvYWrZM-PN0w0eSqvHmpwwl_7Yf1ppe8cgQbbwJmRvSP_MxrPCv7Fv-9v8rpNQWlYcGpeCoW2oHZ28u2lfyVQDSf6qZEJ29_lFxqCQ$
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
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.advancedenergyunited.org/__;!!CPANwP4y!XvYWrZM-PN0w0eSqvHmpwwl_7Yf1ppe8cgQbbwJmRvSP_MxrPCv7Fv-9v8rpNQWlYcGpeCoW2oHZ28u2lfyVQDSf6qZEJ299N-uCiQ$

From:
To:

Ce:

Subject:

Date:
Importance:
Attachments:
Inline-Images:

"Sophie Watterson" <swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>

"john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov" <John.Reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, "Valcq, Rebecca"
<Rebecca.Valcq@wisconsin.gov>, "ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov" <ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov>,
"McKissick, Floyd" <fmckissick@ncuc.net>, "McCabe, Ann" <Ann.McCabe@]Illinois.gov>,
Jehmal Hudson <Jehmal. Hudson@scc.virginia.gov>, Davante Lewis
<davante.lewis@la.gov>, "rory.christian@dps.ny.gov" <rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>, "Blank
- DORA, Eric" <eric.blank@state.co.us>, "Gillett, Marissa" <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>,
"Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>, "Thompson, Emile (PSC)"
<ethompson@psc.dc.gov>

Hannah Polikov <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>

Re: Commissioners Cohort April 28 Call and Slide Deck

Fri, 05 May 2023 17:41:23 +0000

Normal

V2 Final Institute Commissioners Equity Cohort Slides April 2023.pdf

image001.png

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the

content is safe.

Dear Commissioners,

| hope this email finds you all well! The list of supplemental resources has been updated with materials from our Q2

cohort session: = Commissioners Equity Cohort Supplemental Resources.docx. Please feel free to continue sending us
resources that you would like to include, or to add directly to this document. | have also attached the slide deck as
presented to this email.

If you haven’t already, please take a few moments to complete this brief survey on the Q2 session so that we can
continually improve and put together valuable sessions.

Best,

Sophie Watterson

Policy Associate

Advanced Energy United
Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.

e: swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org

0: 202.380.1950 x3035

Mailing Address: 1010 Vermont Ave. NW, Suite 1050, Washington, D.C. 20005
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited

From: Sophie Watterson <swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>

Date: Friday, April 28, 2023 at 2:50 PM

To: john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov <John.Reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, Valcg, Rebecca
<Rebecca.Valcq@wisconsin.gov>, ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov <ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov>, McKissick, Floyd
<fmckissick@ncuc.net>, McCabe, Ann <Ann.McCabe@Illinois.gov>, Jehmal Hudson
<Jehmal.Hudson@scc.virginia.gov>, Davante Lewis <davante.lewis@la.gov>, rory.christian@dps.ny.gov
<rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>, Blank - DORA, Eric <eric.blank@state.co.us>, Gillett, Marissa
<Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>, Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>, Thompson, Emile (PSC)


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://advancedenergyeconomy-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/swatterson_aee_net/EcTlOSjZzD5AoDrSi3GJ-GgBmN33aC8Jyo_KS15Rhiy4ng?e=esR4UQ__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn8NwLVf4$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://advancedenergyeconomy-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/swatterson_aee_net/EcTlOSjZzD5AoDrSi3GJ-GgBmN33aC8Jyo_KS15Rhiy4ng?e=esR4UQ__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn8NwLVf4$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1B2h416brtPLFQnk0Cr1LkZ4lQRWmBBar7tBNqiJB-Xk/edit__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn16BZ1Bp$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYnydgA46a$

<ethompson@psc.dc.gov>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Re: Commissioners Cohort April 28 Call and Slide Deck
Hi all,

Thank you for joining our second cohort session this afternoon! Please take a few moments to complete this brief
survey so that we can continually improve and put together valuable sessions.

We will compile a list of the examples, proceedings, and other resources that were discussed during today’s call and
add them to the existing document: Commissioners Equity Cohort Supplemental Resources. Reminder that this is a living
document you all have access to. Please feel free to send us resources that you would like to include, and feel free to
add directly to this document.

Warmly,

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

Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 at 9:16 AM

To: john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov <John.Reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, Valcqg, Rebecca
<Rebecca.Valcg@wisconsin.gov>, ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov <ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov>, McKissick, Floyd
<fmckissick@ncuc.net>, McCabe, Ann <Ann.McCabe@Illinois.gov>, Jehmal Hudson
<Jehmal.Hudson@scc.virginia.gov>, Phillips, Tremaine (LARA) <PhillipsT8@michigan.gov>, Davante Lewis
<davante.lewis@Ia.gov>, rory.christian@dps.ny.gov <rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>, Blank - DORA, Eric
<eric.blank@state.co.us>, Gillett, Marissa <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>, Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us
<staci.rubin@state.ma.us>, Thompson, Emile (PSC) <ethompson@psc.dc.gov>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>, Tepper, Rebecca L (ENV)
<rebecca.l.tepper@state.ma.us>, Muse, Whitney <whitney.muse@hq.doe.gov>, Reed, Dylan
<dylan.reed@hg.doe.gov>, Fantroy, Sierra (CONTR) <sierra.fantroy@hg.doe.gov>

Subject: Commissioners Cohort April 28 Call and Slide Deck

Dear Commissioners,
We are looking forward to our Q2 Commissioners Equity Cohort virtual meeting this Friday, April 28th 11-12:30pm

PST/2-3:30pm EST. This discussion will be held via Zoom. Please join by video using this link, which is included in the
calendar invitation.

Our Q2 call will focus on how PUCs can be Leveraging IIJA and IRA to Advance Equity with presentations from
Whitney Muse, Chief of Staff at the United State Department of Energy Grid Deployment Office and Secretary Rebecca
Tepper at the Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs. While no preparation is required
for this session, you're welcome to review the slide deck (attached) in advance and think about the questions posed
on slides 3, 9, and 18.


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1B2h416brtPLFQnk0Cr1LkZ4lQRWmBBar7tBNqiJB-Xk/edit__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn16BZ1Bp$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://advancedenergyeconomy-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/swatterson_aee_net/EcTlOSjZzD5AoDrSi3GJ-GgBmN33aC8Jyo_KS15Rhiy4ng?e=Mu611J__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn5Gqqslo$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYnydgA46a$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4738849439?pwd=ZW8yMW02QXYyeUJkYlZubHBoMlBrQT09__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn2b4uSkj$

Please let us know if you have any questions in advance of the meeting.

Warmly,

Sophie and Hannah

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

e AEE


https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYnydgA46a$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn4TxMYqI$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kWevdFCnOlACNN-aNBYi9DadAUIwEdd3BtBa7v0vx9f5l6Qm0fmsXdnQuqcU9LHWYS7LzAfsDUwMhVO7HSJULT6x4EVYn4TxMYqI$
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Agenda

All times shown in ET

2:00-2:10pm Welcome and Opening Round-the-Horn
Hannah Polikov, Managing Director, Advanced Energy United
2:10-2:15pm Federal Perspective
Whitney Muse, Chief of Staff, United States Department of Energy Grid Deployment Office
2:15-2:35pm Discussion
2:35-2:40pm State Perspective
Secretary Rebecca Tepper, Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs
2:40-3:00pm Discussion
3:00-3:15pm Thinking Towards Q3 Cohort Session: Leveraging IIJA/IRA and Facilitating an Equitable Gas Transition
Sophie Watterson, Policy Associate, Advanced Energy United
3:15-3:30pm Wrap-Up and Key Take-Aways

Hannah Polikov, Managing Director, Advanced Energy United

} ADVANCED
2A. ENERGY INSTITUTE



Welcome to the Commissioners Equity Cohort!

About the cohort:

12 commissioners from every region of the country, brought together quarterly for
the next 2 years to learn and share ways to advance equity within PUCs

Our promise to you:
To use your time effectively and efficiently
To bring you actionable ideas

To keep It engaging

} ADVANCED
2A. ENERGY INSTITUTE



Cohort Guidelines

Participate in quarterly virtual cohort meetings

Please share your feedback with us so that we may continually improve and co-create
a useful space

Chatham House rules

Participants are free to use the information received, but neither the identity nor the
affiliation of the speaker(s), nor that of any other participant, may be revealed

Keep video on
Use the "raise hand" feature during our conversation

Please keep comments concise

} ADVANCED
2A. ENERGY INSTITUTE
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ITIJA and IRA invest in a clean energy future that supports
affordability and equity

The Infrastructure and Investment Jobs Act (IIJA) of 2021 and Inflation Reduction Act
(IRA) of 2022 represent $442B investment in clean energy and energy efficiency

By driving down the cost of clean energy technologies and investing in energy efficiency,
ITJA and IRA can help reduce household energy costs

ITIJA and IRA direct investment to communities that have been underserved or may
face additional barriers to access clean energy and energy efficiency

The Justice40 framework of benefits applies to all IIJA/IRA provisions related
to clean energy and energy efficiency

} ADVANCED
2A. ENERGY INSTITUTE



Many programs? in IIJA and IRA are designed specifically
to advance equity

Bonuses to support > Programs to Programs to reduce
clean energy LVISTEELSEE Funding programs support clean : emissions in low-
: rebate programs for : Support for tribal :
development in e to support the fossil energy, storage and : Income and
home efficiency and " . energy investments :
underserved e . fuel transition energy efficiency for disadvantaged
" electrification : "
communities rural Americans communities
( ) ( H O ) ( E ) ( E ) ( ) ( )
ome Owner nergy nergy .
Energy Managing Energy Infrastructure Improvements in Tribal Loar Greenhpuse Gas
Community Tax ) . Guarantee Reduction Fund
. Savings (HOMES) Reinvestment Rural or Remote
Credit Bonus . . Program (GGRF)
Program (EIR) Financing Areas Program
\_ J \. J \_ J \_ J \. J \ J
( ) ( H h Eff . ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
) igh-Efficiency .
Low-Income Electric Home Energy Rural Renewable Sta_te anql T”bal Climate Pollution
Grid Resilience

Community Tax Community Tax . .
Credit Bonus Reba;;tfoél;lgrE]HRA) Credit Bonus Electricity Loans Formula Grants Reduction Grants

\. J \_ J \. J \. J \_ J . J

1. See Appendix A for more detail about the programs included on this slide.

} ADVANCED 2. LMI = low-to-moderate income
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Federal investments that impact PUC role and oversight

DOE Programs to be aware of:

(State I)Energy Program funding now require Transmission and Distribution Planning
SCEP

$2.3 billion in Grid Resilience State & Tribal Formula Grants (GDO)
$10.5 billion GRIP competitive funding program (GDO)
Engaging with federal funding coming into states
Building relationships with State Energy Offices that recelve federal funds

Understanding utility investments supported by IIJA/IRA funds

} ADVANCED
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Discussion Questions

ITJA and IRA provide funding streams through multiple federal agencies to many state
agencies and different types of entities that you regulate.

How can the federal government help you in advancing energy equity goals?

How are you coordinating on the state side to advance energy equity across the
different programs and funding streams?

How can federal technical assistance dollars support energy equity advancement at the
PUCs?

How has the IIJA and IRA funding and the longer timelines for their implementation
affected your Commission's assessments of resource planning and expected baselines?

} ADVANCED
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Possible roles for utility commissions

Utility oversight
Outlining priorities for funding opportunities
Applying for grants and/or matching funds

Helping communities and/or stakeholders

Working with state energy offices

} ADVANCED
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Utility commission oversight of regulated entities

Decisions about Ability to apply
funding for and Use of funds
opportunities administer grants

Tracking of funds
and tax credits

Planning

’ ADVANCED
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Utility commission oversight of regulated entities

Decisions about funding opportunities
What funding opportunities do they intend to seek?
What funding opportunities have they declined to seek?

What Is the decision-making process for determining what grants to apply for? Is there
any stakeholder involvement?

} ADVANCED
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Utility commission oversight of regulated entities

Ability to apply for and administer grants
Do they have the organizational expertise to apply for and administer the grants?
How will they address any matching fund requirements?

How do they intend to develop community benefit plans and comply with Justice40
Initiative?

} ADVANCED
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Utility commission oversight of regulated entities

Use of funds
Is the proposed use of funds consistent with state policies?
Reduce emissions?
Expedite plans to achieve decarbonization goals?
Promote equity?
How will they pass savings on to customers?

Who will benefit? Customers? Shareholders?

} ADVANCED
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Utility commission oversight of regulated entities

Tracking funds and tax credits
How are they tracking the use of funds and tax credits?
How are they tracking the benefits and compliance with Justice40?

Is this information publicly-available?

} ADVANCED
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Utility commission oversight of regulated entities

Planning

Are they preparing for the grid impacts of IRA/IIJA?

How will they track state, local government, and nonprofit funding decisions and how
these decisions will impact the grid?

} ADVANCED
2A. ENERGY INSTITUTE
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A combination of factors are changing demand for natural
gas in buildings

Heat pump sales in U.S. surged past gas furnaces in 2022

=== Heat pump sales == Gas furnace sales

Factors:

Economy-wide state and local
decarbonization policies

Increasing and volatile gas prices

Cost-competitive electric appliances (e.g. / :
heat pumps, induction cooktops)

Protecting health from indoor air pollution

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2022 figures include sales data for Jan—Nov and projected sales for Dec.

Chart: Canary Media * Source: Air-Conditioning, Heating, and Refrigeration Institute

’ ADVANCED
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IIJA/IRA investments are expected to accelerate the shift
towards building electrification and away from gas

New $4.3B HOMES $4.3B HEEHRA
abate rebate program for rebate program for
Drograms whole-home energy household

retrofits electrification

$12B Energy
efficient home
Improvement tax

$362M Efficient

Extended and :
commercial

expanded tax

$22B Residential $2B New energy

clean energy tax efficient homes buildings

credits? : credit (25D) credit (45L) :
credit (25C) deduction (179D)
} ADVANCED 3. Estimated budgetary effects of tax credits from the Congressional Budget Office (CBO), each over 10 years (2022-2031).
oA ENERGY INSTITUTE Available at: https://www.cbo.gov/system/files/2022-09/PL117-169 9-7-22.pdf.



https://www.cbo.gov/system/files/2022-09/PL117-169_9-7-22.pdf

Possible roles for utility commissions
Leveraging IIJA/IRA and Facilitating an Equitable Gas Transition

Utility oversight: Planning

Outlining priorities for funding opportunities
Applying for grants and/or matching funds
Helping communities and/or stakeholders

Working with state energy offices

} ADVANCED
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Spending on the gas distribution system is rapidly
Increasing

Utility spending on the gas distribution system has grown rapidly in recent years
US gas utility distribution system construction expenditures, 1987-2019

S Billion

20

3x increase
in 8 years

1987 1989 1991 1993 1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019

Source: American Gas Association, https://www.aga.org/research/data/construction-expenditures/

} ADVANCED
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Over the same period, gas sales have only increased
25%

Natural Gas Delivered to Consumers in the U.S. (MMcf)

Rate of distribution system spending has
outpaced rate of growth In gas sales

25,000,000 -

Gas sales and number of gas customers will
decrease with electrification

15,000,000 -

Equity concern: customers slow to electrity
(including limited-income customers,
renters) may face unsustainable gas rate
INncreases

10,000,000 -

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

U.S. Energy Information Administration, April 29, 2022.
Available at: https://www.eia.gov/dnav/ng/hist/n3060us2a.htm.

} ADVANCED
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https://www.eia.gov/dnav/ng/hist/n3060us2a.htm

Possible roles for utility commissions
Leveraging IIJA/IRA and Facilitating an Equitable Gas Transition

Utility oversight: Planning

Are gas utilities preparing long-term integrated resource and/or distribution system
plans alighed with expected increased electrification to prevent over-investment in the
gas system and stranded asset risk?*

Are electric utilities planning for increased load on the distribution system, changing

load shapes, and are they designing rates and programs accordingly to maintain
customer affordability?

Are there robust energy efficiency customer programs that will at least partially offset
new electric loads in the state?

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

Is your commission seeking and receiving input from communities and/or non-
traditional stakeholders gas transition issues, including how to prioritize affordability
and equity?

Is your commission sharing information about the HOMES and HEEHRA
programs e.g. on website?

} ADVANCED
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Possible roles for utility commissions
Leveraging IIJA/IRA and Facilitating an Equitable Gas Transition

Working with state energy offices (SEOs) and other relevant entities

Does your commission have appropriate communication channels with your SEO? For
example:

To track the benefits and grid impacts of energy etficiency and electrification programs?
To Increase customer access to relevant programs?
To avoid complexity where there may be overlapping programs?

To consider more formally linking programs e.g. utility electrification programs with state-
administered weatherization and energy efficiency upgrades?

Does your commission have appropriate communication channels with other recipients of
ITIJA/IRA dollars e.g. tribal governments, housing authorities, counties and municipalities?

} ADVANCED
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Additional Resources for PUCs on IIJA and IRA

Advanced Energy United, Unleashing ' Unleashing America’s

America’'s Advanced Energy Future — Advanced Energy Future

Guide for Regulators (IIJA and IRA) e A i Uy
. What Utility R

RMI, What Utility Regulators Need to Know Need to Know

About the IRA Inflation Redt

How to Ensure the Biggest B
System in US History Suppol
Electric Service

E n e rgy I n n Ovat i O n , I m p le m e n t i n g t h e The Inflatior Jessie Ciulla, Gennelle Wilson, and Rachel Gol .
Inflation Reduction Act o st

ENERGY.  \g
INNOVATIONS

} ADVANCED
2A. ENERGY INSTITUTE


https://blog.advancedenergyunited.org/reports/unleashing-americas-advanced-energy-future-resources-for-governors-regulators-and-lawmakers
https://blog.advancedenergyunited.org/reports/unleashing-americas-advanced-energy-future-resources-for-governors-regulators-and-lawmakers
https://blog.advancedenergyunited.org/reports/unleashing-americas-advanced-energy-future-resources-for-governors-regulators-and-lawmakers
https://rmi.org/insight/what-utility-regulators-need-know-about-ira/
https://rmi.org/insight/what-utility-regulators-need-know-about-ira/
https://energyinnovation.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/Implementing-the-Inflation-Reduction-Act-A-Roadmap-For-State-Policy-1.pdf
https://energyinnovation.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/Implementing-the-Inflation-Reduction-Act-A-Roadmap-For-State-Policy-1.pdf

Thank you.

Next cohort meeting
Monday, July 24th
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Bonuses to support clean energy development in energy
transition and low-income communities

Energy Community Tax Credit Bonus (Treasury) — see latest IRS guidance here

10% bonus for applicable tax credits® to support clean energy development in energy
communities

Eligible: projects in a) brownfields, b) coal communities, or c) fossil fuel transition communities

Low-Income Community Tax Credit Bonus (Treasury) — see latest IRS guidance here

10% bonus for 48 and 48(E) investment tax credits (ITCs) for projects in low-income
communities and on Indian lands; 20% bonus If project is part of a low-income residential
building or qualified as a low-income economic benefit

Eligible: solar and wind projects under 5 MW, capped at 1.8 GW/year

5. Interagency Working Group on Coal & Power Plant Communities & Economic Revitalization (2023), https://energycommunities.gov/funding-
opportunities/tax-credits/

} ADVANCED
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https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/irs-issues-guidance-on-eligibility-requirement-for-energy-communities-for-the-bonus-credit-program-under-the-inflation-reduction-act
https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/treasury-and-irs-provide-guidance-on-energy-projects-for-low-income-communities
https://energycommunities.gov/funding-opportunities/tax-credits/
https://energycommunities.gov/funding-opportunities/tax-credits/

Funding programs to support the fossil fuel transition and
tribal energy investments

Energy Infrastructure Reinvestment (EIR) Financing (DOE) — [oans must be issued by September 2026

$5B for projects that reduce emissions from energy infrastructure, defined as facilities and equipment used for

electricity generation or fossil fuel or petrochemical processing, or projects that repurpose or replace energy
Infrastructure no longer in use

Eligible: owners and/or operators of energy infrastructure

Tribal Loan Guarantee Program (DOE)

$75M to support tribal investment in energy-related projects through grants, direct loans, loan guarantees, technical
assistance

Eligible: tribes and tribal energy development organizations

State and Tribal Grid Resilience Formula Grants (DOE)

$2.3B to strengthen and modernize the grid against wildfires, extreme weather, and other natural disasters

Eligible: federal recognized Indian Tribes, including the Alaska Native Regional Corporations and Alaska Native Village
Corporations

} ADVANCED
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LMI-focused rebate programs for residential energy
efficiency and electrification

Home Owner Managing Energy Savings (HOMES) Rebate Program (DOE)

$4.3B for whole-home energy retrofits to single family and multi-family dwellings that achieve
modeled energy savings; rebate levels vary by income and type of residence

Eligible: owners of residential buildings via state energy offices (SEOs)

High-Efficiency Electric Home Rebate (HEEHRA) Program (DOE)

$4.3B to reduce or eliminate the upfront cost to electrify low- and moderate-income (LMI)
households®

100% costs covered (to cap of $14K) households < 80% AMI

50% costs covered (to cap of $14K) households 80-150% AMI
Eligible: owners of residential buildings via SEOs; $225M set-aside for tribal governments

6. These standards also apply to multi-family dwellings where at least 50% of resident households fall within the bracket.

} ADVANCED
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Programs to support clean energy, storage and energy
efficiency for rural Americans

Energy Improvements in Rural or Remote Areas Program (DOE)
$1B to improve the cost-effectiveness of energy systems, site or upgrade transmission

and distribution lines, reduce emissions from energy generation, develop microgrids, and
Increase energy efficiency in rural areas

Eligible: cities, towns, or unincorporated areas with fewer than 10,000 people

Rural Renewable Electricity Loans (USDA)

$1B for loans and loan forgiveness for renewable electricity generation and storage projects

Eligible: electric utilities that serve customers in rural areas, including tribal utilities,
public power utilities, cooperatives, and for-profit utilities

} ADVANCED
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Programs to reduce emissions in low-income and
disadvantaged communities

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) (EPA) — implementation framework released April 2023

$27B to leverage private funding for clean energy and air investments, split into:

$20B General and Low-Income Assistance Competition to nonprofit entities collaborating
with green banks, credit unions, and local financing agencies. Qualified projects will reduce
GHG emissions while lowering costs for overburdened families in disadvantaged
communities.

$7B Zero-Emissions Technology Fund Competition to states, tribes, municipalities, and
eligible nonprofits to deploy rooftop solar, community solar, and storage in low-income and
disadvantaged communities.

Climate Pollution Reduction Grants (EPA)

$5B for projects that reduce GHG emissions in the states ($250 million for noncompetitive
planning grants and $4.6B for competitive implementation grants)

Eligible: states, tribes, air pollution control agencies, municipalities

} ADVANCED
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https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-04/GGRF%20Implementation%20Framework_730am.pdf
https://sam.gov/fal/66e5da03968848f4a844f01598dd01d3/view
https://sam.gov/fal/cffd228dd8a34254b68d497672a5235e/view

PN

/\
A
Appendix B N/

INv4IS N




Sample questions for PUCs: leveraging bonuses to support
clean energy development in underserved communities

/~ Energy Community Tax Credit Bonus (Treasury) \ Resource Planning

10% bonus for tax credits’ to support clean ener " :
development in energy communli?[?es €. brownfieng(/jS, * Are regu.lated entities taking advantage of
coal communities, or fossil fuel transition tax credit bonuses to support clean energy
\communities % development in energy communities, low-
Income communities, and on Indian lands?

/ Low-Income Community Tax Credit Bonus \ -
(Treasury) Ratemaking

 Are regulated entities ensuring that savings
are accruing appropriately to customers?

10% bonus for investment tax credits for small
solar and wind projects in low-income communities

and on Indian lands; 20% bonus if project is part of - PUCs may consider opening investigatory
a lovy-income residential bui!ding or qualified as a proceedings for regulated entities to identify
ow-income economic benefit -/ potential cost savings in IIJA and IRA

7. Interagency Working Group on Coal & Power Plant Communities & Economic Revitalization (2023), https://energycommunities.gov/funding-

} ADVANCED opportunities/tax-credits/
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https://energycommunities.gov/funding-opportunities/tax-credits/
https://energycommunities.gov/funding-opportunities/tax-credits/

Sample questions for PUCs: leveraging programs to
support the fossil fuel transition

/ Energy Infrastructure Reinvestment (EIR)
Financing (DOE)

| Resource Planning
Note: loans must be issued by Sept. 2026

 Are regulated entities applying for EIR loans
to retire fossil fuel generation, convert

pipelines, support clean energy development
and transmission, or otherwise?

 Are regulated entities taking advantage of tax

$5B for a wide variety of projects that reduce
emissions from energy infrastructure e.g. fossil fuel

power plant retirements, pipeline conversion, clean
energy and associated transmission development,

Q/ charging infrastructure, and heat pump

CONVErsion / credit bonuses to support clean energy
development in energy communities?

/~ Energy Community Tax Credit Bonus (Treasury) Ratemaking

10% bonus for tax credits® to support clean energy - Are regulated entities ensuring that financial
development in energy communities i.e. brownfields, benefits of EIR loans flow through to
coal communities, or fossil fuel transition customers?
\communities %
8. Interagency Working Group on Coal & Power Plant Communities & Economic Revitalization (2023), https://energycommunities.gov/funding-
} ADVANCED opportunities/tax-credits/
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From: Kat Burnham <KBurnham@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Cc: Jeremy McDiarmid <jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org>, Caitlin Marquis
<cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: Re: NECPUC Coffee Meetup?
Date: Wed, 24 May 2023 12:18:59 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

Good morning Commissioner Rubin,

Following up on the brief coffee chat with Advanced Energy United folks during the afternoon networking break today

| want to make sure you saw the updated invite, we’re planning to meet a the long table outside Alpine Hall. Take the
stairs on the left as you enter the lobby of the Lodge.

This is an informal activity, it’s an opportunity to make introductions and share a brief discussion.
Just in case, my cell is 774-266-6037.

We look forward to meeting with you.
-Kat

Kat Burnham

Senior Principal

Advanced Energy United
Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.

e: kburnham@advancedenergyunited.org
0: 202.380.1950 x3003 m: 774.266.6037

Mailing Address: 1010 Vermont Ave. NW, Suite 1050, Washington, D.C. 20005
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited

From: Kat Burnham <KBurnham@advancedenergyunited.org>

Date: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 at 10:36 AM

To: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>, Jeremy McDiarmid
<jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>, Sophie Watterson
<swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: Re: NECPUC Coffee Meetup?

Hi Staci,

We're looking forward to NECPUC! Given your schedule, how about we plan to meet Wednesday during the afternoon
break, following the plenary? I'll go ahead and send a calendar invite for 2:15 pm on 5/24 as a reminder but please let


https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!mprYwwSHvK262HdbXR-haW9IfGYp8cy6u-7OHIfXpA_m_ty3TgA4eNyACNU7zsc2sy9yxoYWnScXItFVw-Z6HEW2sEvIpaNuDQ$

me know if we need to find another time.

| haven’t been to the Lodge in Stowe before, but I’'m planning to arrive on Monday and scope out convenient areas to
chat. If the weather’s nice, perhaps we can enjoy the outdoor patio. | will follow up with you to confirm the location
and update the calendar invite accordingly.

Thank you,
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

From: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>

Date: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 at 11:33 AM

To: Jeremy McDiarmid <jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org>

Cc: Kat Burnham <KBurnham@advancedenergyunited.org>, Hannah Polikov
<hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>, Sophie Watterson <swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: NECPUC Coffee Meetup?

Hello Jeremy, Kat, Hannah, and Sophie:

| would be happy to meet at NECPUC. My only limitation is that | will only attend NECPUC on Wednesday and Thursday
morning so my availability is limited to Wednesday afternoon or evening in between panels. If we can make that work, then
great.

Jeremy — thanks for your kind words. It was good to see you in person recently.
Hannah and Sophie — see you on Friday.

Best,
Staci

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Jeremy McDiarmid <jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 9:40 AM

To: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Cc: Kat Burnham <KBurnham@advancedenergyunited.org>; Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>;


https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!mprYwwSHvK262HdbXR-haW9IfGYp8cy6u-7OHIfXpA_m_ty3TgA4eNyACNU7zsc2sy9yxoYWnScXItFVw-Z6HEW2sEvIpaNuDQ$
mailto:Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

Sophie Watterson <swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: NECPUC Coffee Meetup?

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Commissioner!
Congrats again on the new appointment -- hope the first couple of weeks have gone well.

I'm writing to follow up on a conversation you had with Hannah about finding time during a break at NECPUC for an
informal coffee meetup with a handful of our members. Advanced Energy United typically organizes these
opportunities for commissioners and developers to meet and share ideas about opportunities, concerns, etc. in a
relaxed setting.

Thanks for considering it -- I'm copying my colleagues Kat and Sophie who can help with the logistics. Please let us
know if you have any questions.

Best,

Jeremy

Jeremy McDiarmid

Managing Director & General Counsel
Advanced Energy United
Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.

e: jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org
0:202.380.1950 x 3049 m: 617.429.0677

Mailing Address: 1010 Vermont Ave. NW, Suite 1050, Washington, D.C. 20005
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org

@AdvEnergyUnited
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https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/advancedenergyunited.org/__;!!CPANwP4y!WIWKDp0H-mUqmzH8ETrs8ZZHnxPJTV-Mh3L97EpBfqxnEcFKMXJzGe_zO__IubjWimD_aFcBAMfxZwl-iNTrq6L_Lkpse5TVjW8$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/twitter.com/advenergyunited__;!!CPANwP4y!WIWKDp0H-mUqmzH8ETrs8ZZHnxPJTV-Mh3L97EpBfqxnEcFKMXJzGe_zO__IubjWimD_aFcBAMfxZwl-iNTrq6L_LkpsY9OccFo$

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "james.vannostrand@mass.gov" <james.vannostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups
Date: Tue, 16 May 2023 16:24:26 +0000
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

Thank you to everyone who filled out the doodle poll to find a good date for a follow-on eastern commissioners
session on the MISO Multi-Value Project (MVP) regional cost allocation process and how it could be adapted

to offshore wind transmission planning and cost allocation in the east. Unfortunately, none of the times seemed to
work for everyone so we've created a new doodle poll offering more dates, farther out (now looking at September to
get past summer vacations). We've also adjusted the time down to 75 minutes with the hopes that a shorter session
will be easier to schedule. Please take a moment to fill out_this new poll by COB Friday.

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
Sent: Tuesday, April 25, 2023 11:03 AM
Subject: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups

Dear Commissioners,

Thank you again for participating in the Eastern Commissioners Offshore Wind Transmission Forum a few weeks ago!

Given the interest we heard at the forum and afterwards in learning more about the MISO Multi-Value Project

(MVP) regional cost allocation process and how it could be adapted to offshore wind transmission planning and cost
allocation in the east, we are planning a virtual eastern commissioners follow-on session on the topic. The session will
be 90 minutes and will feature an expert from MISO, as well as a Midwest PUC commissioner who can provide a
commissioners' perspective on the process. To find a good time to hold the session, please fill out this doodle poll by
COB this Friday.

Warm regards,
Hannah


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://doodle.com/meeting/participate/id/dwKqGVJd/vote__;!!CPANwP4y!UI_YZeOea6rv_yk1R1flI6tr25CFe1mnTv1No5taIQIYcFdvB33B6X21hEiFAXVE_b-Sa99EcvRhM7VIp9xxoDOAVy6QKpnwNyWngg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CPANwP4y!UI_YZeOea6rv_yk1R1flI6tr25CFe1mnTv1No5taIQIYcFdvB33B6X21hEiFAXVE_b-Sa99EcvRhM7VIp9xxoDOAVy6QKpmtqlGhAA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://doodle.com/meeting/participate/id/eV72QvXa__;!!CPANwP4y!UI_YZeOea6rv_yk1R1flI6tr25CFe1mnTv1No5taIQIYcFdvB33B6X21hEiFAXVE_b-Sa99EcvRhM7VIp9xxoDOAVy6QKpm2Q6mbzg$

PS. Attached you will find a high-level summary by Hannes Pfeifenberger of the MISO MVP process, followed by a
number of relevant resources. One of the resources referenced in this document (FERC MISO MVP Cost Allocation
Rehearding Order) is attached separately.



From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: Re: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups
Date: Sat, 26 Aug 2023 10:32:22 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: ~WRDO0000.jpg

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

DO

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
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 6:15 PM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Re: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups

OK. That’s not going to happen.

Get Outlook for i0S

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 4:11:51 PM

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

Lol! Enjoy!!! | want to see the high school photo of you 50 years ago!

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
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 4:06 PM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Re: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups

You, too. Hannah. This weekend I am in SW Iowa, for my 50th high school reunion. (Yes, that is a lot of years.)

Get Outlook for i10S

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 2:53:41 PM

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

Terrific! Thanks! Looking forward to chatting with you and Hilary next week! Have a wonderful weekend!

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
Sent: Saturday, August 19, 2023 11:00 AM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups

Hannah—
Yes, it is on my calendar, and | plan to be there. Thanks for following up.

Best,
Jamie

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2023 3:01 PM

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

| hope you had a great weekend! | just got back from a 2 week vacation to Japan and am slowly
catching back up! One of the things | wanted to check in on was whether you're able to join us for the
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Eastern Commissioners Offshore Wind Transmission Session on Cost Allocation: Lessons Learned from MISO
MVP coming up on September 15 from 2-3:15pm. Looks like we're going to have an excellent turnout for the session
and | wanted to make sure you'll be able to join as well.

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
Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 11:16 AM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Cc: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Re: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups

Thank you to everyone for filling out the new doodle poll! We have a date! The Eastern Commissioners Offshore
Wind Transmission Session on Cost Allocation: Lessons Learned from MISO MVP will be held September 15 from 2-
3:15pm. I'll send out a calendar invitation shortly. Have a great rest of your week! -Hannah

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

L+ AEE

l».AEE

l».AEE
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From: Jamie Van Nostrand <jmvannostrand@gmail.com>
To: James Van Nostrand <james.vannostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Offshore Wind Transmission Forum Follow Ups
Date: Tue, 16 May 2023 16:07:46 +0000
Importance: Normal

Attachments: Hannes' Overview of MISO MVP and Related Resources.docx;
FERC MISO MVP_ Cost Allocation Rehearing order E-8-ER22-995-001.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>
Date: Tue, Apr 25, 2023 at 11:03 AM

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

Jamie Van Nostrand
jmvannostrand@gmail.com
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l. Overview of MISO MVP Cost Allocation by Hannes Pfiefenberger

As identified in The Brattle Group’s survey of transmission barriers (Appendix A of this study),
contentious cost allocation is one of several major barriers even for clearly beneficial transmission
investments. To avoid needlessly contentious processes, The Brattle Group cautions against cost
allocations that rely formulaically on quantified benefits. Whenever that has been tried, there was lots
of disagreement over how to quantify each benefit, study assumptions, and which scenarios are a most
realistic representation of the future ... since small differences in study assumptions, scenario
assumptions, or benefit metrics can yield large differences in cost allocations.

All of this is even more challenging if done on a project-by-project basis, which points to the advantage
of doing cost allocation for larger portfolios of projects instead (like the MISO MVP portfolio). Because
the benefits of a larger portfolio of transmission projects will generally be more evenly distributed and

stable than for a single project, portfolio-based cost recovery allows for less complex (and contentious)
cost allocation approaches while still ensuring that the sum of costs allocated is roughly commensurate
with the sum of benefits received.

Simplified cost allocations (such as SPP’s highway-byway approach for all ITP projects, MISO subregional
postage stamp for MVP portfolios, or CAISO’s local/regional postage stamp rates) have been more
successful to yield portfolios of projects with benefits that are “roughly commensurate” with allocated
costs (without a cost allocation that is formulaically based on calculated benefits).

For example, in MISQ’s sub-regional MVP cost allocation, the approach allows for variations in benefits
across study scenarios and assumptions while still ensuring that everyone benefits (even though the
exact value of those benefits may vary across MISO zones, study scenarios, and study

assumptions). This will mitigate disagreements over specific assumptions, reduce contentiousness, and
increase the endurance of the cost allocation.

Such relatively simple, portfolio-wide cost allocation approaches are widely used for other
infrastructure, including roads or electric distribution systems. This underscores the difficulty of
highways or distribution investments being cost allocated formulaically based on quantified benefits.

Individual projects (or synergistic groups of projects) should still be evaluated and approved based on a
multi-value (multi-driver) planning process that quantifies a broad range of benefits (i.e., the broad
range of how certain transmission investments can reduce other costs or increase reliability).

Il. Further background on the MISO MVP process

a. Lessons from MISO on Transmission Planning for a Changing Grid
(advancedenergyunited.org)

b. MTEP21 Addendum-LRTP Tranche 1 Report with Executive Summary625790.pdf
(misoenergy.org)

c. ACORE-Enabling-Low-Cost-Clean-Energy-and-Reliable-Service-Through-Better-
Transmission-Analysis.pdf

d. MISO MVP cost allocation presentation (misoenergy.org)

e. FERC's MISO MVP rehearing order (attached)

i. Paragraphs 50-74

Il Related reading


https://www.brattle.com/insights-events/publications/brattle-economists-author-report-on-the-benefits-of-expanding-interregional-transmission/
https://blog.advancedenergyunited.org/lessons-from-miso-on-transmission-planning-for-a-changing-grid
https://blog.advancedenergyunited.org/lessons-from-miso-on-transmission-planning-for-a-changing-grid
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/MTEP21%20Addendum-LRTP%20Tranche%201%20Report%20with%20Executive%20Summary625790.pdf
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/MTEP21%20Addendum-LRTP%20Tranche%201%20Report%20with%20Executive%20Summary625790.pdf
https://acore.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/ACORE-Enabling-Low-Cost-Clean-Energy-and-Reliable-Service-Through-Better-Transmission-Analysis.pdf
https://acore.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/ACORE-Enabling-Low-Cost-Clean-Energy-and-Reliable-Service-Through-Better-Transmission-Analysis.pdf
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/20220124%20RECBWG%20Item%2002c%20Brattle%20Analysis619915.pdf

a. 21st Century Transmission Planning: Benefits Quantification and Cost Allocation
(brattle.com)
i. See Section 3: Recommended 2-step approach
b. A Roadmap to Improved Interregional Transmission Planning (brattle.com)
i. SeeSectionV



https://www.brattle.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/21st-Century-Transmission-Planning-Benefits-Quantification-and-Cost-Allocation.pdf
https://www.brattle.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/21st-Century-Transmission-Planning-Benefits-Quantification-and-Cost-Allocation.pdf
https://www.brattle.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/A-Roadmap-to-Improved-Interregional-Transmission-Planning_V4.pdf

181 FERC 4 61,219
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Before Commissioners: James P. Danly, Allison Clements,
Mark C. Christie, and Willie L. Phillips.

Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. Docket No. ER22-995-001
ORDER ADDRESSING ARGUMENTS RAISED ON REHEARING
(Issued December 16, 2022)

1. On June 17, 2022, American Municipal Power, Inc. of Ohio (AMP) and the
Industrial Customers! each timely sought rehearing of the Commission’s order issued on
May 18, 2022, which accepted the Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc.’s
(MISO) and the MISO Transmission Owners’ (collectively, Filing Parties) proposed
revisions to the MISO Open Access Transmission, Energy and Operating Reserve
Markets Tariff (Tariff) to permit allocation of the costs of new Multi-Value Project
(MVP) portfolios entirely to either the “MISO Midwest MVP Cost Allocation
Subregion” (Midwest Subregion) or the “MISO South MVP Cost Allocation Subregion”
(South Subregion).?

2. Pursuant to Allegheny Defense Project v. FERC,? the rehearing requests filed in
this proceeding may be deemed denied by operation of law. However, as permitted by
section 313(a) of the Federal Power Act (FPA),* we are modifying the discussion in the

! Industrial Customers are the following: the Coalition of MISO Transmission
Customers, the Illinois Industrial Energy Consumers, the Association of Businesses
Advocating Tariff Equity, the NIPSCO Large Customer Group, the Louisiana Energy
Users Group, the Texas Industrial Energy Consumers, and Wisconsin Industrial Energy
Group.

2 Midcontinent Indep. Sys. Operator, Inc., 179 FERC 9§ 61,124 (2022) (2022 MVP
Order). Each of the Midwest and South Subregions is defined by reference to the Local
Balancing Authorities it contains. See id. P 15 & n.39.

3964 F.3d 1 (D.C. Cir. 2020) (en banc).

416 U.S.C. § 825/(a) (“Until therecord in a proceeding shall have been filed
in a court of appeals, as provided in subsection (b), the Commission may at any time,
upon reasonable notice and in such manner as it shall deem proper, modify or set aside,
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2022 MVP Order and continue to reach the same result in this proceeding, as discussed
below.3

| Background
A. MVP

3. An MVP is one or more transmission facilities in MISO that address a common
set of transmission issues.® To qualify as an MVP, a transmission project must meet one
of the following three initial screening criteria: (1) an MVP must be developed in the
transmission expansion planning process for the purpose of enabling the transmission
system to more reliably and economically deliver energy in support of documented
energy policy mandates or laws that have been enacted or adopted through state or
federal legislation or regulatory requirements that directly or indirectly govern the
minimum or maximum amount of energy that can be generated by specific types of
generation (Criterion 1); (2) an MVP must provide multiple types of economic value
across multiple pricing zones with a total MVP benefit-to-cost ratio of at least 1.0
(Criterion 2);7 or (3) an MVP must address at least one transmission issue associated
with a projected violation of North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) or
a Regional Entity standard and at least one economic-based transmission issue that
provides economic value across multiple pricing zones (Criterion 3). The project must
generate total financially quantifiable benefits, including quantifiable reliability benefits,
in excess of the total project costs.?

4. Additionally, MVPs must also be evaluated in the MISO Transmission Expansion
Plan (MTEP) process as part of a portfolio of transmission facilities whose benefits are
spread broadly across MISO’s system-wide footprint.? If a transmission facility qualifies
as both an MVP and a Baseline Reliability Project (BRP) or a Market Efficiency Project

in whole or in part, any finding or order made or issued by it under the provisions of this
chapter.”).

S Allegheny Def. Project, 964 F.3d at 16-17. The Commission is not changing the
outcome of the 2022 MVP Order. See Smith Lake Improvement & Stakeholders Ass’n v.
FERC, 809 F.3d 55, 56-57 (D.C. Cir. 2015).

6 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC {61,124 at P 2.

7 See id.

8 Id. (citing MISO Tariff, attach. FF (85.0.0), § I1.C.1).

9 Jd. P 3 (citing MISO Tariff, attach. FF (85.0.0), § I1.C.3).
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(MEP), the Tariff requires that it be classified as an MVP and that its costs be allocated
using the then-existing MVP cost allocation method.!® MISO also reviews the
cumulative costs and benefits associated with MVPs during the six years after any MVPs
are first included in an approved MTEP to identify potential modifications to the MVP
cost allocation method and its implementation for MVPs to be approved at a future
date.!!

5. Prior to the 2022 MVP Order, the Tariff only permitted allocation of 100% of the
costs of MVP portfolios to all load in and exports from MISO on a postage stamp basis
across the entire MISO footprint, and costs were recovered through a per-MWh usage
charge.!? Inthe 2010 Commission order accepting the MVP category and cost allocation
method, which was affirmed by the United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh
Circuit (Seventh Circuit), the Commission found that the MVP cost allocation method
would result in allocation of the costs of MVPs on a basis that is at least roughly
commensurate with the benefits that those transmission facilities provide to the MISO
region.!3 In December 2011, MISO’s Board of Directors approved the first portfolio of
17 MVPs as part of MTEP 2011 (2011 MVP Portfolio).!

6. Subsequently, Order No. 1000 required each public utility transmission provider to
demonstrate on compliance that its regional cost allocation method(s) satisfy each of six
regional cost allocation principles.!> Inthe orders accepting MISO’s Order No. 1000

10 /d. P 4 (citing Doner Test. at 11; MISO Tariff, attach. FF (85.0.0), § I I1.C.4).
11 4. (citing MISO Tariff, attach. FF (85.0.0), § VILA).
12 14, (citing MISO Tariff, attach. FF (85.0.0), § I11.A.2g).

13 See Midwest Indep. Transmission Sys. Operator, Inc., 133 FERC 61,221, at
P 200 (2010) (2010 MVP Order), order on reh’g, 137 FERC 61,074 (2011) (2011 MVP
Rehearing Order) (together, MVP Orders), aff’d sub nom. Ill. Commerce Comm ’n v.
FERC, 721 F.3d 764 (7th Cir. 2013) (lllinois Comm 'n II).

142022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 461,124 at P 5 (citing Doner Test. at 11-12;
MTEP17 Triennial Review at 4,
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/MTEP17%20MVP%20 Triennial%20R eview %20Report1170

65.pdf).

15 Transmission Planning & Cost Allocation by Transmission Owning &
Operating Pub. Utils., Order No. 1000, 136 FERC 461,051, at P 434 (2011), order on

reh’g, Order No. 1000-A, 139 FERC 4] 61,132, order on reh’g and clarification, Order
No. 1000-B, 141 FERC 461,044 (2012), aff’d sub nom. S.C. Pub. Serv. Auth. v. FERC,
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compliance filings, the Commission determined that the MVP cost allocation method
complied with Order No. 1000’s six regional cost allocation principles.!6

7. In December 2013, the MISO footprint significantly expanded when the Entergy
Operating Companies and certain other transmission providers located in Arkansas,
Mississippi, Louisiana, and Texas joined and MISO took over operational control of their
transmission systems.!” These transmission providers together now comprise the South
Subregion. MISO has stated that contractual limitations on subregional transfers within
MISO make the system-wide allocation of MVP costs more challenging for new MVP
portfolios that include projects with benefits spread broadly only within a single
Subregion, i.e., the Midwest Subregion or the South Subregion. 8

B. Filing

8. On February 4, 2022, pursuant to FPA section 205,!° Filing Parties proposed to
modify MISO’s MVP cost allocation method to allow for the allocation of the costs of
new MVP portfolios on a subregional basis if the benefits of an MVP portfolio are not
spread broadly across the entire MISO system-wide footprint (hereinafter, proposal).
Specifically, Filing Parties proposed to create two subregions for MVP cost allocation
purposes: the Midwest Subregion and South Subregion. Filing Parties also proposed to
revise Attachment FF of the MISO Tariff to require MISO to determine first if the
benefits of an MVP portfolio are spread broadly across the MISO system-wide footprint.

762 F.3d 41 (D.C. Cir. 2014). For more details, see 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC
161,124 at PP 8-14.

16 [d. P 25 (citing Midwest Indep. Transmission Sys. Operator, Inc., 142 FERC
961,215 (2013) (Order No. 1000 Compliance Order)).

171d. P 6.

18 Transmittal at 4. MISO represented that this contractual limitation arose out of
a settlement between Southwest Power Pool, Inc. (SPP) and parties without a regional
transmission organization affiliation due to MISO holding only 1,000 MW firm contract
capacity between the Midwest and South Subregions (MISO/SPP/Joint Parties
Settlement). This settlement provides transmission service between the Subregions in
excess of MISO’s 1,000 MW firm contract capacity on a non-firm, as-available basis, not
to exceed 3,000 MW in the Midwest-to-South direction and 2,500 MW in the South-to-
Midwest direction, and MISO compensates SPP and the Joint Parties for this use. 2022
MVP Order, 179 FERC Y 61,124 at P 7 (citing Midcontinent Indep. Sys. Operator, Inc.,
154 FERC q 61,021 (2016)).

1916 U.S.C. § 824d.
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Under Filing Parties’ proposal, if the benefits of an MVP portfolio are not broadly spread
across the MISO-system-wide footprint, MISO would determine whether the benefits of
the MVP portfolio are spread broadly across either the Midwest Subregion or the South
Subregion. In addition, Filing Parties proposed to revise Attachment FF of the MISO
Tariff to allow the costs of MVP portfolios that do not have benefits spread broadly
across the MISO system-wide footprint but that do have benefits spread broadly across
the Midwest Subregion or the South Subregion to be allocated on a postage stamp basis
within the benefitting Subregion using the MVP usage charge. Filing Parties also
proposed to add language in Attachment FF of the MISO Tariff to state that the
designation of cost responsibility for any MTEP facility will be determined as provided
for in Attachment FF “with the cost responsibility at least roughly commensurate with
benefits.”20

0. Filing Parties did not propose any changes to the existing MVP screening criteria
or any other requirements related to MVPs. Filing Parties further stated that MISO will
retain the ability to allocate the costs of MVP portfolios broadly across the entire MISO
footprint if the benefits also are spread broadly across the MISO footprint.2!

10.  Filing Parties explained that, if the Commission were to accept their proposal, they
intended to make a subsequent FPA section 205 filing to propose conforming changes to
the MISO Tariff’s MVP usage rate provisions to reflect the proposed allocation of MVP
costs for subregional MVP portfolios. Filing Parties explained that no such revisions
were necessary at the outset because cost recovery for new MVP portfolios will not begin
until after the MISO Board of Directors has approved those transmission facilities.??

11.  Filing Parties explained that MISO uses the Long-Range Transmission Planning
(LRTP) Initiative to identify MISO’s long-term transmission needs stemming from
significant anticipated resource changes, among other reasons, and to translate those
needs into portfolios of transmission facilities that can be evaluated in the MTEP process.
Filing Parties stated that, as part of the LRTP Initiative, MISO conducted various studies
and futures modeling and identified four “tranches” that each include or will include a
portfolio of potential transmission facilities: (1) Tranche 1 is a portfolio of transmission
facilities located entirely in the Midwest Subregion that MISO expected to present to its
Board of Directors for approval as early as June 2022 for inclusion in current MTEP
2021, which MISO stated was in the final stages of development;?? (2) Tranche 2 also

20 See Transmittal Letter at 27 n.165; Doner Test. at 23-25.
21 Transmittal Letter at 24; Doner Test. at 23-24.
22 Transmittal Letter at 2-3.

23 On June 25, 2022, MISO presented Tranche 1 to its Board of Directors. See
MISO, LRTP Tranche 1 Portfolio Detailed Business Case (June 25, 2022),
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will be a portfolio of transmission facilities located entirely in the Midwest Subregion (to
be presented for board approval by 2022 or 2023); (3) Tranche 3 will be a portfolio of
transmission facilities located entirely in the South Subregion (estimated late 2023 or
2024); and (4) Tranche 4 will be a portfolio of transmission facilities that address the
transfer limits between the Midwest and South Subregions (estimated 2023 and 2024).24

12.  Filing Parties explained that allowing allocation of an MVP portfolio’s costs
solely within the benefiting subregion under the MVP cost allocation method is necessary
to enable the MVP portfolios associated with the LRTP Initiative to move forward.

Filing Parties stated that MISO’s LRTP Initiative analyses for transmission facilities in
Tranches 1, 2, and 3 suggest that they likely would have qualified as MVPs in all material
respects, except that these analyses and the evidence provided with the proposal indicated
that the benefits of such MVP portfolios would not be spread broadly across the entire
MISO system-wide footprint but instead would be concentrated in the subregion where
these transmission facilities are located.?® Filing Parties argued that this mismatch
requires an adjustment in the existing MVP cost allocation method to permit the
allocation of costs to the benefitting subregion for such portfolios. Filing Parties asserted
that the contractual and physical transfer limits between the Midwest and South
Subregions limit the ability of the portfolios of transmission facilities identified in the
LRTP Initiative to provide benefits that are spread broadly across the MISO system-wide
footprint and, thus, prevent those transmission facilities from qualifying for the current
MVP cost allocation method. Filing Parties stated that, although MISO expects to
address the transfer limits between the Midwest and South Subregions beginning with the
Tranche 4 portfolio of transmission facilities, without immediate action, no MVP
portfolio would be feasible in the current MTEP cycle, and potentially the MTEP 2022
cycle, which would delay the development of these much-needed transmission
facilities.26

https://cdn.misoenergy.org/LRTP %20 Tranche %201 %20Detailed %20Business%2 0Case6
25789.pdf. OnlJuly 25, 2022, the Board of Directors approved Tranche 1. See Press
Release, MISO, MISO Board Approves $10.3B in Transmission Projects: Tranche 1
Portfolio Focused on Midwest Subregion (July 25, 2022),
https://www.misoenergy.org/about/media-center/miso-board-approves-$10.3-in-
transmission-projects/.

242022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 18 (citing Transmittal Letter at 4, 17,
29; Johnson Test. at 21).

35 Id. P 19 (citing Transmittal Letterat 4, 29; Doner Test. at 19).

26 Jd. (citing Transmittal Letter at 17-18). Filing Parties explained that LRTP
Future I assumes that the Midwest Subregion will be integrating 18,505 MW of wind
generation and retiring 38,951 MW of coal-fired generation by 2040. Id. P 20. By
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C. 2022 MVP Order

13.  The Commission accepted Filing Parties’ proposal as consistent with cost
causation and the six regional cost allocation principles set forth in Order No. 1000,27
noting that it “makes only limited changes to MISO’s existing MVP cost allocation
method.”?® The Commission found that the proposal “ensures that MISO allocates the
costs of MVP portfolios on a basis that is at least roughly commensurate with the
estimated benefits and that only the Midwest Subregion or the South Subregion that
benefits from MVP portfolios will be assigned the costs of the transmission facilities
included therein.”?® The Commission explained that in making this finding, it relied on
similar factors to those reflected in the MVP Orders, as affirmed in /llinois Comm 'n Il
and in the Order No. 1000 Compliance Order.3? The Commission also found that the
proposal appropriately reflects the undisputed transfer limits between the Midwest and
the South Subregion.3!

14.  The Commission reasoned that the MVP initial screening criteria will continue to
ensure that transmission facilities in an MVP portfolio provide reliability and/or
economic benefits to MISO transmission customers.3? And, as the Commission
explained, the portfolio approach as implemented in MISO’s Tariff and as modified in
Filing Parties’ proposal ensures that the costs of transmission facilities in an MVP
portfolio are allocated to transmission customers who will benefit, whether system-wide

comparison, the South Subregion is projected to add only 200 MW of wind and, having
already largely transitioned away from coal, plans to retire only 5,876 MW of coal-fired
generation in the same time frame. /d.

27 Id. PP 68-79, 82, 85, 93-94.

28 Id. P 71. The Commission highlighted the fact that the proposal does not
change the portfolio approach nor the postage stamp pricing “that are embodied in the
Tariff and that served as the underpinning of the original acceptance of the MVP cost
allocation approach, other than adding the potential for subregional portfolios and
subregional postage stamp cost allocation.” Id.

29 Id. P 68.

30 1d. (citing MVP Order, 133 FERC 961,221 at P 201; Order No. 1000
Compliance Order, 142 FERC 9 61,215 at P 436).

31 1d. PP 68-69.

32 Id. P 68.
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or in the Midwest Subregion or the South Subregion.3® Thus, the Commission found that
allocating the costs of MVP portfolios using a postage stamp cost allocation method,
whether system-wide in the event MISO finds system-wide benefits or solely within the
Midwest Subregion or the South Subregion in the event that MISO finds that benefits are
concentrated among transmission customers within that Subregion, will continue to
ensure that the costs of transmission facilities in MVP portfolios are allocated in a
manner that is at least roughly commensurate with the estimated benefits that they
provide (i.e., costs associated with system-wide benefits are allocated on a system-wide
basis whereas costs associated with benefits in the Midwest Subregion or the South
Subregion are allocated on a subregional basis).34

15.  Afterconsidering the evidence, including a benefit distribution analysis by The
Brattle Group (Brattle Analysis) that Filing Parties submitted to support the proposal and
MISO’s simulations for future time periods, the Commission found that Filing Parties
adequately supported their proposal, “particularly in light of the unique characteristics of
MISQO’s region and therole of the existing transfer limits.”3> The Commission also found
Filing Parties’ process for determining whether an MVP portfolio provides benefits
system-wide or subregionally to be just and reasonable.3®

16.  The Commission addressed challengers’ concerns and, among other things,
disagreed with Industrial Customers’ claim that the fluctuation over time in the
distribution of benefits provided by an MVP portfolio prevents a postage stamp method
from allocating the costs of the relevant transmission facilities in a manner at least
roughly commensurate with the estimated benefits.3” Additionally, the Commission
dismissed protests asserting that if MISO were to change to a more granular cost
allocation method after the first two LRTP tranches, it would be unreasonable and unduly

3 1d.

34 Id. P 68 (citing Order No. 1000 Compliance Order, 142 FERC 61,215 at
P 437).

35 1d. P 69.
36 1d. P 70.

37 See id. P 73 (citing Order No. 1000, 136 FERC 961,051 at P 605 (stating
that postage stamp pricing “may be appropriate where all customers within a specified
transmission planning region are found to benefit from the use or availability of a
transmission facility or class or group of transmission facilities, especially if the
distribution of benefits associated [therewith] is likely to vary considerably over the
long depreciation life of the transmission facilities amid changing power flows, fuel
prices, population patterns, and local economic considerations.”)).
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discriminatory for the Midwest Subregion to pay for the first two tranches, as well as a
substantial share of the third tranche, the costs of which would otherwise be allocated just
to the South Subregion.3® The Commission found that “[t]hese protests concern a future
revision to the MVP cost allocation method that MISO may or may not make and are,
thus, premature and otherwise beyond the scope of this proceeding.”3® The Commission
also disagreed with Industrial Customers’ argument that MISO did not prove that the
subregional cost allocation method would allocate costs within the subregion in a way
that is roughly commensurate with benefits, noting that, while MISO’s analysis shows
that benefits may vary by zone, each zone’s benefits exceed the allocated costs.4?

17.  Asrelevant tothe requests for rehearing discussed below, Commissioner Christie
concurred with the 2022 MVP Order, explaining that he “strongly support[s] MISO’s
proposal to modify its current MVP cost allocation method to allow the costs of new
MVP portfolios to be allocated on a subregional basis.”4! However, he “share[s] the
concern expressed by parties in this proceeding regarding the allocation of costs within
the two subregions based on the postage stamp method for cost allocation.”#?

D. Rehearing Requests

18.  Industrial Customers assert that the Commission: (1) impermissibly lowered
Filing Parties’ FPA section 205 burden; (2) accepted a cost allocation proposal that lacks
strong analytical support and is not supported by substantial evidence; (3) failed to show
that costs will be allocated in a manner that is roughly commensurate with benefits;

(4) required MISO transmission customers to pay for the entirety of costs for some
projects for which benefits accrue to a neighboring Regional Transmission Organization
(RTO); (5) unduly discriminated against the MISO Midwest Subregion and its customers
by accepting a “crude” cost allocation for billions of dollars of projects in that subregion
when a more granular cost allocation is envisioned for future projects in the South
Subregion; (6) overlooked the unprecedented cost impact on customers; and

38 Id. P 94.
3 1d.
0 1d PT7.

412022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 (Christie, Comm’r, concurring at P 2
(Christie Concurrence)).

42 Christie Concurrence at P 3. Commissioner Christie “emphasize[d] what [he]
consider[ed] the questionable case offered to justify the use of postage stamp cost
allocation for the two tranches coming next” and described “MISO’s case for postage
stamp cost allocation” as “weak.” Id. PP 3, 5.
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(7) transferred the Commission’s jurisdictional duty to ensure just and reasonable rates to
the MISO stakeholder process and the MISO states.43

19.  Industrial Customers contend that the stakeholder process did not work and that
the Commission must ensure that over $10 billion in Tranche 1 transmission project costs
are allocated in a manner that is roughly commensurate with benefits and therefore
produces a just and reasonable rate outcome. Industrial Customers argue that pursuant to
its exclusive authority to regulate RTOs and transmission rates,** the Commission must
independently assess the rate proposal before it;4> the Commission cannot transfer its
duties to the RTO stakeholder process or assume that state regulatory support or majority
support in the RTO stakeholder process indicates widespread consumer satisfaction or
provides evidentiary support for a just and reasonable rate outcome. Industrial
Customers assert that the promise of a more granular cost allocation for future LRTP
projects does not justify acceptance of an allocation of over $10 billion in costs that are
not sufficiently tied to roughly commensurate project benefits.46

20.  AMP also contends that the Commission erred in finding that the proposal is just
and reasonable and not unduly discriminatory.#” Specifically, AMP asserts that there is a
fundamental distinction between regional and subregional planning and cost allocation,
and therefore the Commission erred when it found the proposal made only “limited”
changes to MISO’s existing MVP cost allocation method.4® Additionally, AMP asserts
that the Commission failed to respond meaningfully to its “demonstration that undue
discrimination will result from allocating the costs of Tranches 1 and 2 on a subregional
basis and allocating the costs of Tranche 3 on a regional basis.”*?

43 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 2.

44 Id. at 30 (citing PPL EnergyPlus, LLC v. Solomon, 766 F.3d 241, 247 (3d Cir.
2014)).

45 Id. at 30-31 (citing Occidental Permian Ltd. v. FERC, 673 F.3d 1024, 1025
(D.C. Cir. 2012)).

46 Id. at 31 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 99 (explaining that
MISO has committed to continuing its stakeholder process); Christie Concurrence at P 5).

47 AMP Rehearing Request at 3 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 61,124 at
PP 1,72, 99, 120).

48 Id. (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 71).

49 Id. (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 94).
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1I. Discussion

A. Procedural Matters

21.  OnJuly 5, 2022, MISO filed a request for leave to answer and an answer in
response to Industrial Customers’ and AMP’s requests for rehearing of the 2022 MVP
Order. Rule 713(d) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 18 C.F.R.

§ 385.713(d)(1) (2021), prohibits an answer to a request for rehearing. Accordingly, we
deny MISO’s motion to answer the rehearing requests and reject the answer.

B. Substantive Matters

22.  We continue to find that the Commission appropriately accepted as just and
reasonable and not unduly discriminatory or preferential the Tariff revisions that provide
an option to allocate the cost of new MVP Portfolios broadly within a single subregion
rather than solely on a system-wide basis. As discussed below, Filing Parties provided
substantial evidence to support their proposal, which leaves key features of the MVP cost
allocation method unchanged — 1i.e., the portfolio approach and postage stamp cost
allocation. The Commission independently and adequately evaluated Filing Parties’
proposal and supporting evidence and found the subregional cost allocation option to be
consistent with the Commission’s cost causation principle. Accordingly, the Commission
did not improperly delegate its statutory authority to evaluate Tariff changes. Finally, we
are not persuaded to set aside the 2022 MVP Order or to initiate an FPA section 206
investigation.

1. FPA Section 205 Burden

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

23.  Industrial Customers argue the 2022 MVP Order impermissibly lowered and
misapplied Filing Parties” FPA section 205 burden to show their proposal is just and
reasonable.3? Industrial Customers assert that, in this proceeding, the Commission had
before it a new FPA section 205 rate proposal that modified an existing cost allocation
method that would apply not only to a single project, but to at least two tranches of
portfolios of projects in a long-range, multi-year transmission plan that stretches across
the entire MISO region, including over $10 billion in project costs for Tranche 1 alone.>!
Industrial Customers contend that Filing Parties must justify continued use of postage
stamp cost allocation, and that the Commission recognized in the 2022 MVP Order that
Filing Parties’ proposal made significant changes to MISO’s existing MVP cost

50 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 2.

SLId. at 10 (citing MVP Order, 179 FERC 961,124 at P 61).


https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=18CFRS385.713&originatingDoc=Ieb27fdf2a16411ec828eb87607a4474c&refType=RB&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=85b3c9a9702c4af4afe159473345d0f5&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_e07e0000a9f57
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=18CFRS385.713&originatingDoc=Ieb27fdf2a16411ec828eb87607a4474c&refType=RB&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=85b3c9a9702c4af4afe159473345d0f5&contextData=(sc.Search)#co_pp_e07e0000a9f57
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allocation method.>? Industrial Customers argue that the MVP cost allocation method
does not enjoy a presumption of reasonableness because Filing Parties’ proposal made
significant changes to MISO’s existing MVP cost allocation method by proposing to
bifurcate that methodology by region in the context of a new, multi-billion-dollar long-
range transmission plan.33

24.  Industrial Customers contend that even though MISO had the tools available to
identify beneficiaries and to allocate costs more granularly than the postage stamp
approach, MISO did not use those tools to improve cost and beneficiary determinations.>4
Industrial Customers contend the 2022 MVP Order “entirely overlooks the unprecedented
cost impact on customers.”>> Noting that the 2022 MVP Order acknowledged Industrial
Customers’ argument that, in light of the billions of dollars to be allocated to consumers,
the proposal should have sought to address or mitigate the cost impact on transmission
customers of the transmission facilities identified in MISO’s LRTP, Industrial Customers
contend that the 2022 MVP Order nevertheless completely “glossed over” those
arguments and the concerns expressed by other parties about the customer cost impact
and need for ensuring cost containment and lowest-cost solutions.>®

25.  Industrial Customers reiterate that: (1) the costs of LRTP Tranche 1 alone could
increase costs by as much as $2.80/MWh prior to considering the benefits from LRTP
Tranche 137 and how those benefits are forecasted to flow; and (2) the cost impact on
energy-intensive, high load factor customers will be substantial, as indicated in the table
summarizing the cost impact on a typical 20 MW, 80% load factor customer, based on
information available at that time.>8

52 Id. (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 71).
53 1d.

54 Id. at 10-11 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 44 (citing
Entergy Comments at 3-4). Industrial Customers note that Entergy only supported the
proposal because the costs associated with Tranches 1 and 2 will not be allocated to
MISO South. /d. at 11 n.41.

55 Id. at 25.
56 Id. at 25-26 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 4 61,124 at PP 121-23).

STId. at 26 (citing Industrial Customers April 21 Answer at 10; Industrial
Customers Protest at 26).

58 Id. (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 27-28).
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26.  Industrial Customers argue the 2022 MVP Order fails to demonstrate that there are
sufficient, cost-effective safeguards for challenging LRTP Tranche 1 project beneficiary
and cost determinations; Industrial Customers contend that the 2022 MVP Order instead
assumes that the existing stakeholder participation process, use of the alternative dispute
resolution process, or the filing of an FPA section 206 complaint to challenge individual
MVPs will ensure cost responsibility that is roughly commensurate with benefits.>®
Industrial Customers argue that those mechanisms, which they assert can be resource-
intensive and not cost-effective (as well as lead to project uncertainty and delays), should
not be used as a backstop to ensure just and reasonable rates when, in their view, the
proposal here has not been demonstrated to be just and reasonable. Industrial Customers
contend that, regardless of the Commission’s description of state, federal, and private
funding to mitigate the impact of subregional cost allocation as unknown and speculative,
the Commission could have required efforts to obtain such funding (regardless of whether
such funding was obtained). Industrial Customers argue that in light of the substantial
cost impact on consumers and the proposed allocation of those costs in a long-range,
multi-year transmission plan, the failure of the 2022 MVP Order to demonstrate the
justness and reasonableness of the cost allocation and the failure to scrutinize arguments
and evidence in opposition to the proposal is arbitrary and capricious.?

27.  Finally, Industrial Customers rely on Commissioner Christie’s concurrence,
echoing concerns that the Commission accepted the proposed Tariff revisions based on a
“weak” and “questionable case,” which they contend used stale data (i.e., estimated costs
and benefits from the 2011 MVP Portfolios) and insufficient scrutiny of the present-day
costs and benefits associated with Tranche 1.1 Industrial Customers represent that
reasons offered by Commissioner Christie for concurring in the outcome of the 2022
MVP Order do not enable the Commission to accept a weakly supported proposal, to
lower a filing party’s FPA section 205 burden, or to shift the burden from Filing Parties
to protestors to demonstrate that the proposal is unjust and unreasonable. %2

3 Id. at 27 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 85).

60 74, at 28.
1 1d. at 1 (quoting Christie Concurrence at PP 3, 5), 8-9.

62 Jd. at 8-9 (listing as reasons that (1) OMS supported the filing; (2) MISO vowed
to seriously consider replacing the postage stamp cost allocation method with a more
granular cost allocation method for LRTP Tranche 3 and beyond; and (3) the postage
stamp method is MISO’s current MVP cost allocation method (citing Christie
Concurrence at P 3)).
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b. AMP Rehearing Request

28.  AMP similarly argues that there is no basis for the Commission’s finding that the
filing “makes only limited changes to MISO’s existing MVP cost allocation method.”%3
Rather, AMP asserts that the Commission ignored the distinction between regional versus
subregional planning and cost allocation.®4 AMP argues that the difference between
regional and subregional planning and cost allocation is significant, particularly in the
context of cost allocation for MVPs. AMP states that, as the Commission recognized,
“MVPs are regional transmission facilities.”®> AMP states that, prior to the
Commission’s acceptance of the proposal, “no . . . subregional option exist[ed] under the
[TJariff,”%¢ and that the Tariff instead mandated the allocation of MVP costs on a regional
basis.7 AMP argues the 2022 MVP Order approved changes that remove the Tariff’s
prohibition on allocating 100% of the annual transmission revenue requirements of
MVPs that do not yield regional benefits across the MISO footprint and permit
subregional cost allocation for entire MVP portfolio annual transmission revenue
requirements located in the Midwest or South Subregions on a postage stamp basis. %3

29.  AMP insists that, contrary to the Commission’s characterization, such
fundamental changes and substantial consumer impacts are not “limited” because the
Commission’s decision will result in the allocation of billions of dollars of costs to
consumers.%® AMP asserts that, to fulfill its consumer protection obligations, the
Commission should grant rehearing of what AMP alleges is the Commission’s

63 AMP Rehearing Request at 1 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 61,124 at
P 71), 7 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 4 61,124 at P 71).

64 Id. (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 71).

65 Id. at 7-8 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 120; Filing Parties
Answer at 2) (emphasis added).

66 Jd. (citing Filing Parties Answer at 2) (emphasis added by AMP).

7 Id. at 8 (citing Tariff, attach. FF, § II1.A.2.g (“One-hundred percent (100%) of
the annual revenue requirements of the Multi-Value Projects shall be allocated on a
system-wide basis to the Transmission Customers that withdraw energy, including
External Transactions sinking outside the Transmission Provider’s region, and recovered
through an MVP Usage Charge pursuant to Attachment MM”)).

68 Jd. at 1-2 (citing Tariff, attach. FF, § II1.A.2g).

9 Id. at 8 (citing Commissioner Christie Concurrence at PP 10, 11).
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unsupported finding and ensure that cost allocation results are supported by a robust
evidentiary record.”®

c. Commission Determination

30.  We continue to disagree with Industrial Customers’ contention that the
Commission lowered Filing Parties’ FPA section 205 burden or shifted the burden from
Filing Parties to protestors.”! As the Commission explained in the 2022 MVP Order,
Filing Parties were not required to re-justify the MVP category from scratch, nor were
Filing Parties required to analyze the data from future LRTP portfolios.”?

31.  FPA section 205 requires Filing Parties to show that their proposal is just and
reasonable and not unduly discriminatory or preferential.”3 Courts have recognized that
this standard requires a rate proponent to establish that its proposal is a reasonable one,
but not that it is the most reasonable or the best one out of possible alternatives.”*

We continue to find that the proposal ensures that MISO allocates the costs of MVP

.
"I Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 8-9.
722022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at PP 71-72, 76.

7316 U.S.C. § 824d(e); see also Ala. Power Co. v. FERC, 993 F.2d 1557, 1571
(D.C. Cir. 1993).

74 See, e.g., Neb. Pub. Power Dist. v. FERC, 957 F.3d 932, 943 (8th Cir. 2020)
(recognizing that “courts have made it clear that FERC ‘restricts itself to evaluating the
confined proposal’” and “[t]herefore, FERC ‘need only find the proposed rates to be just
and reasonable.””) (citations omitted); Adv. Energy Mgmt. All. v. FERC, 860 F.3d 656,
662 (D.C. Cir. 2017) (“When acting on a public utility’s rate filing under section 205, the
Commission undertakes ‘an essentially passive and reactive role’ and restricts itself to
evaluating the confined proposal.”’) (quoting City of Winnfield v. FERC, 744 F.2d 871,
875-76 (D.C. Cir. 1984)); Wisc. Pub. Power, Inc. v. FERC, 493 F.3d 239, 260 (D.C. Cir.
2007) (““[T]he just and reasonable standard,’ the Supreme Court has explained, ‘does
not compel the Commission to use any single pricing formula.”” (quoting Mobil Oil
Exploration & Producing Se., Inc. v. United Distribution Cos., 498 U.S.211, 224
(1991)); Cities of Bethany v. FERC,727 F.2d 1131, 1136 (D.C. Cir. 1984) (explaining
that the standard in rate decisions is “not whether [one] method is more appropriate than
[another] method, but rather whether the [proposed] method is reasonable and
adequate.”) (internal quotation omitted).


https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1993106568&pubNum=0000350&originatingDoc=I2128c210184611eda24b86801afa7698&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_350_1571&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=a1fea87734d646b3bcfdc30e73ad7e65&contextData=(sc.Keycite)#co_pp_sp_350_1571
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1993106568&pubNum=0000350&originatingDoc=I2128c210184611eda24b86801afa7698&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_350_1571&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=a1fea87734d646b3bcfdc30e73ad7e65&contextData=(sc.Keycite)#co_pp_sp_350_1571
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1984145713&pubNum=0000350&originatingDoc=Ic60d9f1d2a1e11edb5f9bfbf94fae85c&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_350_875&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=5d653674d41e43bfa7ad0b4add006c11&contextData=(sc.DocLink)#co_pp_sp_350_875
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1984145713&pubNum=0000350&originatingDoc=Ic60d9f1d2a1e11edb5f9bfbf94fae85c&refType=RP&fi=co_pp_sp_350_875&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=5d653674d41e43bfa7ad0b4add006c11&contextData=(sc.DocLink)#co_pp_sp_350_875
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portfolios on a basis that is at least roughly commensurate with the estimated benefits>
and that only the subregion that benefits from MVP Portfolios will be assigned the costs
of the transmission facilities included therein.”¢ As the Commission explained, the MVP
initial screening will continue to ensure that transmission facilities in an MVP portfolio
provide reliability and/or economic benefits to MISO transmission customers.”’
Additionally, the portfolio approach, as implemented in MISO’s Tariff and as modified in
Filing Parties’ proposal, ensures that the costs of transmission facilities in an MVP
portfolio are allocated to transmission customers who will benefit from them, whether
system-wide or in the Midwest or South Subregions.”® Adding the subregional option to
the Tariff will continue to ensure that the costs of transmission facilities in MVP
portfolios are allocated in a manner that is at least roughly commensurate with the
estimated benefits that they provide — i.e., costs associated with system-wide benefits
are allocated on a system-wide basis whereas costs associated with benefits in the
Midwest or South Subregions are allocated on a subregional basis.”®

32.  Furthermore, courts have also clarified that the proponent of a change in rates,
terms, and conditions need not prove the continued reasonableness of unchanged rates or
unchanged attributes of its rate structure.3? We continue to find, therefore, that the
Commission appropriately declined to require Filing Parties to re-justify various court-
affirmed, unchanged MVP-related Tariff features, such as the postage stamp allocation

7S [ll. Commerce Comm’nv. FERC, 576 F.3d 470, 477 (7th Cir. 2009) (Illinois
Comm 'n I) (quoting and citing Midwest ISO Transmission Owners v. FERC, 373 F.3d
1361, 1369 (D.C. Cir. 2004)).

76 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 461,124 at P 68.

77 Id. (citing 2010 MVP Order, 133 FERC 9 61,221 at P 201; Order No. 1000
Compliance Order, 142 FERC 61,215 at P 436).

78 Id. (citing 2010 MVP Order, 133 FERC 9 61,221 at P 202; Order No. 1000
Compliance Order, 142 FERC 9 61,215 at P 436).

7 Id. (citing Order No. 1000 Compliance Order, 142 FERC q 61,215 at P 437).

80 See, e.g., City of Winnfield v. FERC, 744 F.2d 871, 877 (D.C. Cir. 1984) (City
of Winnfield) (“The statutory obligation of the utility . . . is not to prove the continued
reasonableness of unchanged rates or unchanged attributes of its rate structure”); accord
Entergy Serv., Inc., 148 FERC 4 63,015, P 82 & n.162, P 256 & n.565 (2014), aff’d,

153 FERC q 61,303 (2015), clarifying, 156 FERCY 61,196 (2016), order on reh’g,
167 FERC 9 61,246 (2019) (burden of challenging existing rate methodology lies with
challengers to status quo rather than with utility) (citing City of Winnfield, 744 F.2d at
877)).
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method, the portfolio requirement, the MVP usage rate, and the fact that an MVP that
also qualifies as a BRP or MEP is nevertheless treated as an MVP.81 While petitioners
on rehearing persist in characterizing the creation of the subregional option as a material
change, we are not persuaded that creating subregions reflecting the realities of transfer
limits between the Midwest and South Subregions affects the reasonableness of the other,
unchanged features of the MVP cost allocation method.

33.  Industrial Customers incorrectly contend that the Commission improperly
“shift[ed] the burden to protestants” such as Industrial Customers to challenge MISO’s
continued use of its existing MVP cost allocation method.3? Rather, the Commission
accepted “Filing Parties’ Proposal because Filing Parties have shown that the proposed
Tariff revisions are just and reasonable and not unduly discriminatory or preferential.”83
To the extent that challengers seek to modify the unchanged MVP Tariff provisions,

they would have to file an FPA section 206 complaint to show that such existing Tariff
provisions are unjust and unreasonable and/or unduly discriminatory or preferential. As
the Commission pointed out, “MISO’s current MVP cost allocation is the postage stamp
method, including in the South Subregion.”84 Consequently, arguments such as those by
Industrial Customers seeking to eradicate use of the postage stamp cost allocation method
are outside the scope of the proposal that was filed in this proceeding pursuant to FPA
section 205 and “are a collateral attack on the Commission’s previous findings in the
MVP Order and Order No. 1000 Compliance Order.”85 Because we reaffirm the
Commission’s earlier finding that Filing Parties had satisfied their burden to demonstrate
that the proposal was just and reasonable, we disagree with Industrial Customers’
suggestion that the Commission relied on the stakeholder process, alternative dispute
resolution, or the section 206 complaint process to support its approval of Filing Parties’
proposal.8¢ Industrial Customers appear to misapprehend the Commission’s point that
Filing Parties’ proposal complies with Order No. 1000 regional cost allocation principle 5
(transparency) because “MISO will conduct the same process as it does today to
determine if a proposed MVP portfolio provides benefits that [are] distributed across the

81 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at PP 71-72, 105, 108.
82 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 8-9.

832022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 461,124 at P 1 (emphasis added).
84 1d P 72.

85 Id.; see also supra P 32 & n. 81.

86 See Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 27.
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MISO footprint.”87 As the Commission explained in the 2022 MVP Order, “just as under
the existing process, MISO must support its determination by all appropriate studies and
analyses, which will be made available to stakeholders,” and stakeholders may provide
input, initiate alternative dispute resolution processes, or file an FPA section 206
complaint to challenge cost allocation. 38

34. We also disagree with Industrial Customers’ contention that adding the
subregional option to the Tariff “materially modifies the MVP cost allocation
methodology” such that it calls into question the continued just and reasonableness of the
unchanged MVP provisions in the Tariff, such as postage stamp cost allocation.8?
Rather, the Seventh Circuit has already affirmed the postage stamp cost allocation
approach for MVPs as just and reasonable for the entire MISO footprint, and the
subregional option simply addresses the fact that there is limited transfer capability
between the Midwest and the South Subregions.?® No party contests the existence of a
transmission constraint between the Midwest Subregion and the South Subregion. Nor
has any party rebutted Mr. Pfeifenberger’s testimony showing that the constraint
significantly limits the transfer of MVP Portfolio benefits between subregions.®! As
Filing Parties explained, the practical effect of such limited transfer capability is that
some projects that would otherwise meet the MVP definition and are needed for
reliability reasons may largely only benefit one subregion or the other.*?

872022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 85.

88 Id. P 85.

89 See Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 23.
90 See Illinois Comm’n II, 721 F.3d at 777-78.

o1 See Pfeifenberger Test. at 9 (“This review finds that, in large part due to the
limited transfer capability between the Midwest and South Subregions, the economic and
reliability benefits of MVP Portfolios within one of the Subregions remain mostly
concentrated within the Subregion in which the projects are located—assuming these
portfolios do not increase the transfer limit between the Subregions.”); see also 2022
MVP Order, 179 FERCq 61,124 at P 69 (citing Transmittal Letter at 20-21; Filing
Parties Answer at 11 (internal citation omitted); Clean Energy Advocates Comments at 7-
9, 18; Entergy Comments at 4 & n.7).

92 See Transmittal Letter at 4 (“These contractual limitations on subregional
transfers within MISO make the current system-wide allocation of MVP costs more
challenging for new MVP Portfolios that include projects with benefits spread broadly
only within a single Subregion, i.e., the Midwest Subregion or the South Subregion.”); id.
at 4-5 (“The projects included in these tranches would have otherwise likely qualified as
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35. AMP’s assertion that Filing Parties’ proposal constitutes a departure from MISO’s
regional transmission planning process and cost allocation method (because it involves
subregional rather than regional cost allocation) is incorrect.®® The benefits of the
transmission facilities included in an MVP portfolio whose costs are allocated to
transmission customers in a single subregion are allocated throughout that subregion in a
manner similar to the way that benefits of the transmission facilities included in an MVP
portfolio whose costs are allocated system-wide are allocated throughout the entire MISO
footprint. Significantly, MISO’s regional transmission planning process will continue to
make all determinations for MVP portfolios (regional or subregional), and subregional
cost allocation will be made based on benefit distribution, as required by the cost
causation principle. Thus, the 2022 MVP Order reasonably determined that this process
continues to be just and reasonable.

36.  Finally, we disagree with Industrial Customers’ contention that the 2022 MVP
Order is arbitrary and capricious because it “overlooks the unprecedented cost impact
on customers.”®* This argument is a collateral attack on the postage stamp cost
allocation and the usage-based cost recovery method. The Subregional option did
not change either of these existing features of the MVP method.?> As documented

MVPs, except that MISO’s initial analysis and the evidence provided with this filing
indicates that the benefits of such MVP Portfolios would not be broadly spread across the
entire MISO footprint, but instead would be concentrated in the Subregion where these
projects are located. This prevents MISO from using the current MVP category for the
immediate LRTP tranches because of the requirement that the benefits of the MVP
Portfolio of projects are spread broadly across the entire MISO footprint.” (footnotes
omitted)); id. at 5 (“Generation fleet changes and extreme weather events, like Winter
Storm Uri, highlight the need and urgency for building new transmission in the MISO
region to address emerging reliability issues.”).

93 See AMP Rehearing Request at 7-8.
4 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 2, 5, 25.

95 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC Y 61,124 at P 71 (“Filing Parties have not
proposed Tariff revisions related to the portfolio approach or postage stamp pricing that
are embodied in the Tariff and that served as an underpinning of the Commission’s
original acceptance of the MVP cost allocation approach, other than adding the potential
for subregional portfolios and subregional postage stamp cost allocation.”).
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by Filing Parties, the same or very similar arguments were rejected in the original MVP
proceeding.?®

2. Substantial Evidence

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

37.  Industrial Customers assert that the 2022 MVP Order lacks substantial evidence,
and the record does not support material modifications to the MVP cost allocation
method. Industrial Customers claim that Filing Parties’ proposal was weak and no other
supporting parties offered more recent data and analysis to prove that the substantial
transmission costs (i.e., over $10 billion) in LRTP Tranche 1 will be allocated in a
manner that is roughly commensurate with benefits.®” Industrial Customers cite an
alleged lack of independent scrutiny applied to MISO’s 2017 claims of benefit-cost
ratios, Mr. Pfeifenberger’s uncritical acceptance of MISO’s 2017 Triennial Full MVP
Review (MISO 2017 Analysis) as “self-proving,” and no independent corroboration for
MISO’s 2017 Analysis and its methods, bases, and benefit calculations.®8

38.  Industrial Customers object that Mr. Pfeifenberger used data derived from the
2011 MVP Portfolio rather than using costs and benefits of projects in the actual
proposed LRTP Tranche 1, which became available a few months after the proposal
was filed and the comment deadline passed.®® Industrial Customers assert that by not
analyzing the MVP projects that will be included in the upcoming Tranche 1, Filing
Parties failed to provide reliable cost data, reliable data on the projected benefits, and a
reliable analysis of how the costs and benefits will be distributed throughout MISO. 100
Specifically, Industrial Customers assert that MISO’s LRTP Tranche 1 business case,
which includes actual potential projects, fails to demonstrate that costs will be allocated
roughly commensurate with benefits. Industrial Customers state that they pointed out
in their protest that the Commission should have rejected the proposal because a new

%6 See id. P 58 (citing Filing Parties Answer at 16); 2011 MVP Rehearing Order,
137 FERC 9 61,074 at PP 253-60, aff’d in relevant part Illlinois Comm’n II, 721 F.3d at
777-78).

7 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 8.
98 Id. at 14 (citing Christie Concurrence at P 7).
9 Id. at 14-15.

100 74, at 15.
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portfolio of actual projects was forthcoming.1®! Industrial Customers assert that the
actual portfolio of projects from Tranche 1 is now available and should be used to
analyze and determine costs and beneficiaries. 102

39. Industrial Customers state that, if the Commission grants rehearing due to the
issues raised with the zonal cost-benefit ratios, the Commission could provide MISO
with guidance to make a new filing that obligates MISO to evaluate whether some LRTP
Tranche 1 projects could be reclassified as MEPs or BRPs in order to produce roughly
balanced zonal cost-benefit ratios.103

40.  Industrial Customers state that the 2022 MVP Order summarily rejected their
argument that conditions since 2011 have changed dramatically in MISO, when the
MVP approach was first approved, and that Filing Parties should therefore resubmit
their proposal using the data derived from the specific MVP portfolio whose costs
would be allocated.!® Industrial Customers state that the 2022 MVP Order generically
refers to the importance of Commission policy around ex ante cost allocation methods
under Order No. 1000.1%5 Acknowledging that the Commission has a policy interest

in upholding Order No. 1000 ex ante tariffs/rates for transmission owners to avoid
frequent reconsideration of cost allocation rules on a project-by-project basis, Industrial
Customers assert that the Commission’s ultimate duty is to ensure a sufficient connection
between costs and benefits. 1% Industrial Customers state that the appellate courts have

101 /4 at 11 (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 9-10; Industrial Customers
April 21 Answer at 7-8).

102 /d. (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 9-10; Industrial Customers April 21
Answer at 7-8).

103 714 at 19.
104 /4 at 9 (citing MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 76).
105 /4 (citing MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 76).

106 /4. at 9-10 (citing Long Island Power Auth. v. FERC, 27 F.4th 705, 715 (D.C.
Cir. 2022); Pub. Serv. Elec. & Gas v. FERC, 989 F.3d 10, 19 (D.C. Cir. 2021) (PSEG)).
Industrial Customers state that the PSEG Court emphasized that “Order No. 1000 does
not concern the Commission; it requires transmission owners to have in place cost-
allocation methods for certain transmission facilities.” Id. at 10 n.37 (citing PSEG,
989 F.3d at 19).
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recognized that ex ante cost allocation rules and policies in Order No. 1000 do not trump
the Commission’s overriding statutory duty to ensure just and reasonable rates.!%7

b. Commission Determination

41.  Contrary to Industrial Customers’ assertions, we continue to find that the proposal
was supported by substantial evidence in the record.1® Filing Parties explained the need
for the proposal and provided supporting testimony from three expert witnesses. While
the transmission projects analyzed were part of the 2011 MVP Portfolio, they provided a
large dataset of 16 actual, not just proposed, projects. Furthermore, some of the analyses
Mr. Pfeifenberger reviewed to form the basis of his testimony were drawn from the 2017
Triennial Full MVP review;1%? therefore, the data and analysis reflect an appropriate set
of projects over time and the 2011 MVP Portfolio analysis was not the sole basis for Mr.
Pfeifenberger’s conclusions. As the Commission pointed out in the 2022 MVP Order,!1?
MISO performed additional simulations for future time periods, in which the Adjusted
Production Cost (APC) benefits were evaluated for a hypothetical 10 percent increase in
transmission capacity in the Midwest Subregion by 2040. Consistent with the results of
the 2011 MVP Portfolio review, these simulations showed that such transfer capability
increases on all 345 kV and above transmission facilities would be associated with
approximately $23.3 million in annual APC savings in the Midwest Subregion, compared
to an annual impact of negative $0.9 million in the South Subregion.!!! These results
substantiate Mr. Pfeifenberger’s conclusions that to the extent the benefits of new MVP
Portfolios located entirely within the Midwest Subregion accrue broadly to the zones
within the Midwest Subregion, with very few benefits accruing to the South Subregion, it
is consistent with the cost causation principle to allocate those costs to transmission
customers within the Midwest Subregion alone.

42.  Moreover, we disagree with Industrial Customers’ contention that the data
supporting the subregional option was stale because it did not include future LRTP
portfolios.1> As the Commission explained in the 2022 MVP Order, the use of data
derived from the 2011 MVP Portfolio was consistent with the principles of ex ante cost

197 1. at 10 (citing PSEG, 989 F.3d at 19).

108 See id. at 7-11.

109 See Pfeifenberger Test. at 10-14.

110 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 4 61,124 at P 69.
11 14 (citing Pfeifenberger Test. at 16-18).

12 See Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 9-11.
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allocation. '3 Ex ante cost allocation principles do not require the Commission to take
into account every specific future project or project portfolio when accepting a cost
allocation method on a prospective basis. The D.C. Circuit has held that the Commission
is not required to “consider cost-allocation rules on a project-by-project basis, which
would unravel the framework of ex ante tariffs established by Order No. 1000.”114

43.  Nor do we agree with contentions that MISO’s 2017 Analysis (including methods,
bases, and benefit calculation), which formed the basis of Mr. Pfeifenberger’s testimony
and the Brattle Analysis, received insufficient scrutiny. This analysis is based on the
2011 portfolio of actual transmission projects, and no party submitted contrary evidence
or otherwise challenged the accuracy of those calculations. While Industrial Customers
sought to use the data from the actual LRTP Tranche 1 projects, which became available
subsequent to the filing of the proposal, Industrial Customers did not refute any of the
calculations or conclusions underpinning the Brattle Analysis. Furthermore, as a general
matter, MISO is an RTO with the task of ensuring independent and reliable operation of
the transmission system.!!S As the independent transmission system operator, MISO
lacks incentive to favor certain transmission owners over others; nor has any party shown
that MISO had incentive to miscalculate benefits. The Commission reasonably found
that testimony to be sound.

44.  Therefore, consistent with the Commission’s policy on ex ante cost allocation
methods, we disagree that it was necessary for the Commission to analyze the specific
MVP projects that will be included in the LRTP Tranche 1 in order to provide
sufficiently reliable cost data, data on the projected benefits, and reliable analysis of how
the costs and benefits will be distributed throughout MISO to find the subregional option
just and reasonable.

1132022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 76.

114 See LSP Transmission Holdings Il v. FERC, 45 F.4th 979, 995 (D.C. Cir. 2022)
(quoting Long Island Power Auth. v. FERC, 27 F.4th at 715).

115 See 18 C.F.R. § 35.34())(1), (j)(4), (k)(7) (requiring that RTOs like MISO be
“independent of any market participant,” “have exclusive authority for maintaining the
short-term reliability of the grid that it operates,” and “be responsible for planning, and
for directing or arranging, necessary transmission expansions, additions, and upgrades
that will enable it to provide efficient, reliable and non-discriminatory transmission
service and coordinate such efforts with the appropriate state authorities™).
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3. Roughly Commensurate with Benefits

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

45.  Industrial Customers assert that the 2022 MVP Order fails to demonstrate that
costs will be allocated in a manner that is roughly commensurate with benefits. Industrial
Customers assert that, even assuming that the benefits metrics from the MISO 2017
Analysis are accurate, costs will still not be allocated in a manner that is roughly
commensurate with benefits within each MISO subregion.'1® Industrial Customers state
that the Commission conceded that the Brattle Analysis revealed variation in benefit-to-
cost ratios between pricing zones, with some zones benefitting relatively more than
others.!7 Industrial Customers argue the 2022 MVP Order accepted and justified the
substantial variation and lack of proportionality between costs and benefits without
engaging the flaws in the Brattle Analysis that uncritically accepted the MISO 2017
Analysis. '8 Industrial Customers state that, as justification for the “lumpy” distribution
of cost and benefits, the 2022 MVP Order cited to generic case law principles and the
prior use of the MVP portfolio approach. Noting that court and Commission precedent
do not require exacting precision when allocating costs, Industrial Customers
nevertheless contend that the roughly commensurate test requires more than
“unsupported conclusions and assumptions based on recycled data that costs will be
allocated fairly.”11?

46.  Industrial Customers reiterate that MISO has not allocated costs roughly
commensurate with benefits, noting that Filing Parties’ witness Mr. Pfeifenberger
summarized his analysis of the 40-year present value of benefits and costs associated
with the 2011 MVP Portfolio as reported in the MISO 2017 Analysis. Industrial
Customers state that the spread of the 1.93 zonal benefit-to-cost ratio in Zone 5 to the
3.83 zonal benefit-to-cost ratio in Zone 1, as shown from Mr. Pfeifenberger’s testimony,

116 Tndustrial Customers Rehearing Request at 12.
U7 [d. (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC ¥ 61,124 at P 77).

18 4. (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 7-8 (citing Pfeifenberger Testimony
at 10-11; MISO 2017 Triennial Review,
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/MTEP17%20MVP%Triennial%oReview%20Report117065.pd

).
119 1q
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confirms that, even assuming the calculation of benefits and costs is accurate, a roughly
uniform distribution of MVP benefits across the MISO region has not materialized.12?

47.  Industrial Customers assert that the benefits of the 2011 MVP portfolio are more
concentrated in certain cost allocation zones relative to others, thereby failing to capture
the actual distribution of benefits from the portfolio.!?! Industrial Customers assert that,
through their comments submitted in the stakeholder process to MISO on behalf of the
end-use customer sector and in their April 21 Answer in this proceeding, they pointed out
that, in MISO’s analysis regarding the distribution of benefits, the benefit-to-cost ratio for
Zone 3 (Iowa) is over 50% higher than that for Zone 7 (Lower Michigan). 122

48.  Additionally, Industrial Customers state that, on a per unit of load basis, the
forecasted net benefit for Zone 3 is twice that for Zone 7.123 Specifically, Industrial
Customers state that the forecasted net benefits for Zone 3 and Zone 7 are similar at
$3.295 billion for Zone 3 and $3.184 billion for Zone 7.124 They also point out that the
total load in Zone 7, however, approaches nearly twice that of Zone 3 (approximately
92,998,542 MWh for Zone 7 versus 50,098,916 MWh for Zone 3).12% Industrial
Customers state that, as a result, on a per unit of load basis, Zone 3 is forecast to receive

120 /4. at 13 (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 7-8 (citing Pfeifenberger
Testimony at 10-11; MISO 2-17 Triennial Review https://
cdn.misoenergy.org/MTEP17%20MVP%Triennial %R eview%20Report117065.pdf)).

121 [d. at 14 (citing Industrial Customer Protest at 7-8).

122 [d. at 16 (citing Industrial Customers April 21 Answer at 8, attach. B (citing
MISO Planning and Advisory Committee, MISO Transmission Expansion Plan —
MTEP21 Addendum — LRTP Tranche 1 Report Overview (Apr. 13, 2022) (MTEP19
Report Preview)), available at,
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/202204 13%2 0PAC%201tem%2002%20M TEP21%20LR TP%
20Tranche%201%200verview623967.pdf).

123 1d. at 17.

124 Id. (citing Industrial Customers April 21 Answer at 9 (citing MTEP19 Report
Preview at Slide 27 ($3,295 billion = $4,805 billion - $1,510 billion; $3.184 billion =
$5.988 billion — $2.804 billion))).

125 4. (citation omitted).
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over twice the net benefit as Zone 7 ($65.77 per MWh for Zone 3 versus $34.24 per
MWh for Zone 7).126

49.  Industrial Customers assert that, aside from that one example of two zones where
costs and benefits are not roughly or crudely commensurate, an evaluation of costs and
benefits for all the zones also shows benefits that are not roughly commensurate to
costs.!27 Industrial Customers state that the system average benefit-to-cost ratio is 2.6-to-
1 but the forecasted benefit-to-cost ratios for Zones 2 and 7 are much lower at only 2.2-
to-1 and 2.1-to-1, respectively, and for Zone 3 is much higher than 2.6-to-1 at 3.2-to-1.128

b. Commission Determination

50.  We continue to disagree with Industrial Customers’ argument that costs of MVP
Portfolios under the subregional option would not be allocated roughly commensurate
with estimated benefits within each subregion because some zones within the subregion

126 d. ($65.77 per MW = $3.295 billion/50,098,916 MWh; $34.24 per MWh =
$3.184 billion/ 92,998,542 MWh).

127 1d. at 18.

128 Jd. As explained in the Industrial Customers April 21 Answer:

The table below draws on MISO’s supporting workbook for
Slide 27 and adds a row (under the B/C row) that calculates
the Total Benefits each zone would have if it had a forecasted
benefit to cost ratio of 2.6 (i.e., if the forecasted zonal benefit
to cost ratios were in perfect balance). This amount is then
subtracted from the amount shown in MISO’s “Total
Benefits” row to produce the row labeled “Subsidized Zones
(Plus)/Zones forced to Subsidize (Minus).” This later row
shows that MISO’s forecasted zonal benefits are such that the
postage-stamp, energy consumption MVP cost allocation
method will cause customers in Zones 2 and 7 to pay a total
subsidy of $2.124 billion to customers in the other five zones.
While the zonal benefit to cost ratios do not need to be in
perfect balance to be roughly commensurate, they should not
be so far out of balance so as to yield an unjust and
unreasonable rate outcome where one group of zones
subsidizes another group of zones in the amount of billions of
dollars.

Industrial Customers April 21 Answer at 9-12.
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would benefit more relative to costs born than other zones within the subregion. First,
cost allocation does not need to be undertaken with exacting precision in order to be
roughly commensurate with benefits.!>® Second, the evidence indicates that benefit-cost
ratios vary substantially over time,!3? which justifies postage stamp rates.!3! Finally,
MISO’s existing Tariff requires a benefit-to-cost ratio of 1.0 or higher in order to find
that an MVP Portfolio provides sufficient benefits to customers to qualify for the MVP
postage-stamp cost allocation method.!3? While we agree with Industrial Customers that
the MISO 2017 Analysis shows that the benefits of the projects included in the MISO
2017 Analysis are more concentrated in some zones relative to others, that analysis also
shows that no zone has less than a 1.93 benefit-to-cost ratio (Zone 5) — nearly twice the
benefits required by the Tariff to justify an MVP Portfolio. Stated simply, this means
that for every dollar spent, customers received at least $1.93 of benefits. The fact that the
MISO 2017 Analysis shows that some customers received $3.83 of benefits per dollar
spent does not mean that the customers who received fewer benefits, but still nearly twice

129 [llinois Comm'n I, 576 F.3d at 477 (“We do not suggest that the Commission
has to calculate benefits to the last penny, or for that matter to the last million or ten
million or perhaps hundred million dollars.”); Midwest ISO Transmission Owners, 373
F.3d at 1369 (“[W]e have never required a ratemaking agency to allocate costs with
exacting precision.”); Sw. Power Pool, Inc., 178 FERC 9 61,087, at P 30 n.42 (2022)
(“Courts have held that the cost causation principle does not require costs to be allocated
with exacting precision, but rather requires that costs be allocated in a manner ‘roughly
commensurate’ with the benefits received.”).

130 See Pfeiffenberger Test. at 13.

131 §ee Order No. 1000, 136 FERC § 61,051 at P 605 (“[A] postage stamp
cost allocation method may be appropriate where all customers within a specified
transmission planning region are found to benefit from the use or availability of a
transmission facility or class or group of transmission facilities, especially if the
distribution of benefits associated with a class or group of transmission facilities is
likely to vary considerably over the long depreciation life of the transmission facilities
amid changing power flows, fuel prices, population patterns, and local economic
considerations.”).

132 MISO Tariff, attach. FF (85.0.0), I1.C.2.b (“Criterion 2. A Multi-Value Project
must provide multiple types of economic value across multiple pricing zones with a Total
MVP Benefit-to-Cost ratio of 1.0 or higher . ...”).
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as many benefits as costs, were not allocated those costs roughly commensurate

with the benefits they received. Cost allocation is not limited to a precise formula.!33
Additionally, as the Commission pointed out in the 2022 MVP Order, the use of a
portfolio approach will help ensure that the benefits of each MVP portfolio are
distributed broadly across the subregion.134

51.  Therefore, we continue to find that Filing Parties justified the proposal because
the subregional option, which uses the same postage stamp cost allocation method as the
regional option, is consistent with the cost causation principle and allocates costs in a
manner that is at least roughly commensurate with benefits.

4. Treatment of Neighboring RTO Benefits

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

52.  Industrial Customers contend that, while noting their concern,!33 the Commission
nevertheless failed to rebut their demonstration that MISO transmission customers will
pay the entirety of costs for some projects in which benefits accrue to neighboring RTOs.
Industrial Customers assert that the 2022 MVP Order failed entirely to engage the
substance of their argument and simply implied that the review of benefits accruing to a
neighboring RTO, regardless of how significant those benefits, “would impose too heavy
a burden on stakeholders to actively monitor transmission planning processes in other
regions.”13¢ Industrial Customers state that they were not asking the Commission to
impose any burdens on stakeholders, but rather were simply pointing out that MISO
transmission customers would be responsible for paying substantial costs for substantial
benefits that accrue to SPP.137

133 See Colo. Interstate Gas Co. v. FPC, 324 U.S. 581, 589 (1945) (“Allocation of
costs is not a matter for the slide-rule. It involves judgment on a myriad of facts. It has
no claim to an exact science.”).

134 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 61,124 at P 69.

135 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 19 (citing 2022 MVP Order,
179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 80 (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 10-12 (citing //I.
Commerce Comm’'nv. FERC, 756 F.3d 556, 564 (7th Cir. 2014); Neb. Pub. Power
Dist. v. FERC,957 F.3d 932, 941 (8th Cir. 2020)))).

136 Id. at 19-20 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 61,124 at P 82).

137 1d. at 20.
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53.  Industrial Customers state that they demonstrated in their Protest and April 21
Answer that at least two LRTP Tranche 1 projects would be paid for entirely by MISO
customers despite substantial benefits accruing to SPP.138 Industrial Customers explained
that, while these projects may not be included in LRTP Tranche 1, they are useful for
demonstrating that benefits will accrue to neighboring RTOs without any costs being
allocated to them.!3® Industrial Customers argue that, while costs may not need to be
allocated with “exacting precision,”14? and spillover benefits between zones and regions
may be justified in certain instances,!4! benefits to neighboring RTOs for which no costs
are allocated is not even a crude allocation of costs and benefits.

54.  Additionally, Industrial Customers contend that MISO did not provide any
analysis to demonstrate that the charges that would be collected on exports through the
MVP usage rate will result in an allocation of costs to SPP that is roughly commensurate
with the calculated benefits to SPP.142

55.  Industrial Customers add that the demonstrated benefits and need associated with
these projects was acknowledged during the April 14, 2022 meeting to discuss cost
allocation methods associated with the Joint MISO/SPP Study.'43 Industrial Customers
state that at this meeting, MISO and SPP jointly put forward a cost allocation alternative
to assign costs to generator interconnections. Industrial Customers assert this joint effort
confirmed that both MISO and SPP experience benefits but entities other than load are
beneficiaries and should be assigned costs. Industrial Customers assert that, while MISO

138 Jd. They state that the Jamestown-Ellendale -BSS-AlexCassie’s Crossing
project in LRTP Tranche 1 is essentially the same project as the Jamestown-Ellendale
345 project and the Big Stone — Alexandria — Riverview — Quarry — Monticello 345 in the
Joint Targeted Interconnection Study (JTIQ) conducted jointly by MISO and SPP (Joint
MISO/SPP Study). Id.

139 1d. at 22.
140 1d. (citing Midwest ISO Transmission Owners v. FERC, 373 F.3d at 1369).

141 14 (citing Midwest ISO Transmission Owners v. FERC, 819 F.3d, 336 (7th Cir.
2016)). Industrial Customers argue $55.87 million is not a modest spillover in benefits
that would condone an absence of cost allocation to those benefiting customers in SPP.
Id. at22 n.81.

142 1d. at 22.

143 Id
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recognizes the importance of properly assigning costs to beneficiaries, MISO ignores this
critical effort with regard to certain projects.!44

b. Commission Determination

56.  Industrial Customers’ argument that SPP customers are benefiting at MISO
customers’ expense essentially challenges MISO’s compliance with Order No. 1000’s
regional cost allocation principle 4, which requires that regional cost allocation methods
must allocate costs solely within that transmission planning region unless another entity
outside the region voluntarily agrees to assume a portion of those costs.!*5 We continue
to find the Commission appropriately determined that Filing Parties’ proposal complies
with Order No. 1000 regional cost allocation principle 4 because the subregional option
allocates costs solely to transmission customers in MISO.14¢ Ag the Commission
explained, “[t]he Commission established Cost Allocation Principle 4 based on a
determination that allowing the public utility transmission providers in one transmission
planning region to allocate costs unilaterally to entities in another region would impose
too heavy a burden on stakeholders to actively monitor transmission planning processes
in numerous other regions in which they could be identified as beneficiaries and thus be
subject to cost allocation.”47 Although Industrial Customers maintain “they were not
asking the Commission to impose any burdens on stakeholders,”!*® insofar as SPP has
not voluntarily agreed to shoulder MVP portfolio costs, Industrial Customers’ argument
is a collateral attack on regional cost allocation principle 4 of Order No. 1000.14° Further,
Industrial Customers have not suggested changed circumstances or any persuasive reason
why the Commission should abandon regional cost allocation principle 4 here.

144 Id. (referring to Big Stone — Alexandria — Riverview — Quarry — Monticello
345 kV ($425M) and Jamestown — Ellendale 345 kV, respectively).

1452022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 12 (citing Order No. 1000,
136 FERC q 61,051 at P 657) (emphasis added).

146 714 P 82.
147 Id. (citing Order No. 1000, 136 FERC § 61,051 at P 660).
148 Tndustrial Customers Rehearing Request at 20.

149 The fact that SPP agreed to shoulder a portion of generator interconnection
costs, see supra P 55, shows that these neighboring RTOs recognize there are
circumstances where they mutually benefit and it is appropriate to share costs. But
generation interconnection is irrelevant to MISO’s MVP portfolios—it does not indicate
that SPP has volunteered to pay a portion of their costs.
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57.  We also find that Industrial Customers’ request to allocate costs to customers
outside of MISO is beyond the scope of the proposal in this proceeding. To the extent
Industrial Customers believe that there is an interregional benefit associated with MVPs,
interregional cost allocation under Order No. 1000 is more appropriately addressed
through the MISO-SPP Joint Operating Agreement. !3°

5. Rate Design

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

58.  Industrial Customers argue that billions of dollars in transmission costs will be
allocated via what they allege is a weak and imprecise cost allocation method, and
therefore the Commission should reconsider its decision not to engage issues concerning
rate design, cost recovery, and project hierarchy/classification.!>! Industrial Customers
assert that because the socialized, postage stamp cost allocation method is not supported
by substantial evidence, the Commission should either direct MISO to develop a more
granular method and submit a new proposal or initiate an FPA section 206 investigation.
Industrial Customers contend that by bifurcating the MISO footprint, the proposal
materially modified the MVP cost allocation method. 13

59.  Industrial Customers state that they emphasized in the stakeholder process and
before the Commission the cost impact of charging an industrial customer on an energy
basis instead of a peak demand basis for all of the projects in MISO’s LRTP initiative. 153
Industrial Customers highlight the fact that, whereas MISO had found it reasonable to use
a 12-Coincident Peak demand load ratio approach in estimating the allocation of the costs
of LRTP Tranche 1 projects to the specific pricing zones, MISO nevertheless proceeded
with advancing an energy-based cost allocation.!>* Industrial Customers assert that

150 See, e.g., MISO Rate Schedules, Joint Operating Agreement MISO and SPP,
art. IX, § 9.3.3.5 (31.0.0) (“Approval of an Interregional Project(s) by each Party’s Board
of Directors is required for the Interregional Project to qualify for interregional cost
allocation.”).

151 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 23. The Commission in the 2022
MVP Order declined to institute an FPA section 206 investigation. 2022 MVP Order,
179 FERC 9 61,124 at P 78.

152 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 23.
153 Id. (citing Industrial Customers Protest at P 102).

154 [d. at 23-24 (citing Industrial Customers April 21 Answer, attach. A at 2).
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MISO should not allocate demand-related benefits on an energy-consumption basis. 133
Industrial Customers argue that, with respect to MISO’s LRTP initiative, which includes
projects that provide demand-related benefits, MISO and the Commission need not be
constrained by trying “to box™ all LRTP projects into a bifurcated version of the existing
MVP postage stamp method.!3¢ Industrial Customers assert that, instead of imprecisely
socializing all costs on an energy basis through the subregional MVP cost allocation, it
may make sense for MISO to: (1) identify demand-related benefits and allocate costs
accordingly; and (2) retain the ability to classify a long-range transmission project as an
MEP or BRP rather than automatically reclassifying MEPs and BRPs as MV Ps.157

b. AMP Rehearing Request

60.  AMP states that in its protest, it reminded the Commission of its fundamental
obligation to protect customers by ensuring that investments in wholesale transmission
infrastructure are prudent, cost-effective, and necessary to meet customer needs.!>® AMP
states that it emphasized that, to fulfill its obligations to customers, the Commission must
adhere to the cost causation and beneficiary pays principles, which “add flesh to [the]
bare statutory bones of the just-and-reasonable-rate requirement” set forth in the FPA.15?
AMP also reiterated the importance of ensuring that regional transmission planning and
cost allocation are integrated and addressed holistically.16 AMP reiterates its argument
that applying those principles to the proposal, the “South and Midwest Subregions are
arbitrary designations based on historical development of the MISO footprint and are not
consistent with how efficient regional transmission solutions should be developed in the
future.”161 AMP also reiterates that the proposed Tariff revisions appear to be based on a

155 1d. (citing Industrial Customers April 21 Answer, attach. A at 2).
156 14 at 24.

157 Id. at 24 (citing Industrial Customers Protest at 16-18).

158 AMP Rehearing Request at 5 (citing AMP Protest at 4).

159 Id. (quoting AMP Protest at 4 (quoting Old Dominion Elec. Coop. v. FERC,
898 F.3d 1254, 1255-56 (D.C. Cir. 2018))).

160 14 (citing AMP Protest at 4).

161 /4. at 6 (citing AMP Protest at 5).



Docket No. ER22-995-001 -33 -

predetermined “desire to allocate costs and conduct transmission planning on a
Subregional basis.”162

c. Commission Determination

61.  We continue to find that matters of alternative rate design are beyond the scope

of this proceeding, either because they affect features of the MVP approach that Filing
Parties did not propose to change or because the Commission is constrained to review the
actual proposal submitted for its review, not the proposal it or a party prefers had been
submitted for Commission review.!63

62.  We continue to find the Commission appropriately determined in the 2022 MVP
Order that Industrial Customers’ argument that peak demand rather than energy usage
should be the basis for rate design is beyond the scope of this proceeding because Filing
Parties did not propose to change the usage charge.!®4 As the Commission explained,
Filing Parties stated that they will submit a subsequent filing under FPA section 205 to
revise the MVP usage rate, and Industrial Customers may address concerns about the
MVP usage rate at that time.1%5 Industrial Customers may also continue to advocate their
position in the stakeholder process or file an FPA section 206 complaint.

63.  We also disagree with AMP’s suggestion that the two subregions are arbitrary
designations. The Midwest and South Subregions reflect the realities of limited transfer
capability between these regions, and, as such, they are not arbitrary and capricious, even
if they are the result of historical, gradual accretions to MISO.

6. Undue Discrimination

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

64.  Industrial Customers assert that by accepting a crude cost allocation for LRTP
Tranches 1 and 2 while (in their view, “rightly”’) envisioning a more granular approach
for LRTP Tranches 3 and 4, the Commission unduly discriminates against the MISO
Midwest Subregion and its customers.!66 Industrial Customers state that Entergy
Operating Companies, the largest transmission provider in MISO South, supported

162 14, (citing AMP Protest at 6).

163 See supra note 79.

164 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 61,124 at P 105.
165 g,

166 Tndustrial Customers Rehearing Request at 24.
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MISO’s postage stamp cost allocation proposal because it applies only to the Midwest
Subregion and MISO has committed to exploring a more granular cost allocation method
for LRTP Tranches 3 and 4. Industrial Customers contend, however, that resolution of
the postage stamp cost allocation deficiencies for Tranches 3 and 4 does not resolve the
unjust and unreasonable cost allocation facing customers in the Midwest Subregion for
Tranches 1 and 2.167

65.  Industrial Customers note that WPPI Energy raised concerns of undue
discrimination by pointing out that the proposal “contemplates different cost allocation
methods for projects of the same type, MVPs, over the next two years though all of those
projects are being considered in the same LRTP process.”1® Industrial Customers add
that Industrial Customers argued that Filing Parties have not demonstrated why it is just,
reasonable, and not unduly discriminatory or preferential to apply a different cost
allocation approach to the projects in LRTP Tranches 1 and 2 than to future tranches,
given that MISO, through its Regional Expansion Criteria Benefits Working Group, is
correctly exploring more granular and precise replacement cost allocation methods to
apply in LRTP Tranches 3 and 4.1 Thus, Industrial Customers argue the 2022 MVP
Order failed to explain how accepting the proposal does not unduly discriminate against
the Midwest Subregion and its customers.!7¢

b. AMP Rehearing Request

66.  AMP contends that it showed that allocating the costs of LRTP Tranches 1 and 2
on a subregional basis and allocating the costs of Tranche 3 on a regional basis would
result in undue discrimination, and the Commission erred by dismissing AMP’s concern
as “premature and otherwise beyond the scope of this proceeding.”1’! AMP reiterates

167 Id. at 24-25.

168 Jd at 25 (citing WPPI Energy Protest at 8; 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC
961,124 at PP 87-88).

169 Tndustrial Customers Rehearing Request at 25 (citing Industrial Customers
April 21 Answer at 13 (citing MISO Regional Expansion Criteria Benefits Working
Group, Granular Cost Allocation Discussion Scope and Timeline, at Slide 8 (Feb. 28,
2022) (updated Mar. 1, 2022),
https://cdn.misoenergy.org/20220228%2 0RECBWG%201tem%2002%20G ranular%20Co
st%20Allocation%20Discussion623065.pdf)).

170 Id

171 AMP Rehearing Request at 3 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 9 61,124 at
P 94); see also id. at 2 (citing AMP Protest at 7).
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that, apart from the purported need for “immediate” action on LRTP Tranche 1 projects,
Filing Parties offered no justification for the disparate treatment of LRTP Tranches 1 and
2 as compared to LRTP Tranche 3.172

67.  Further, AMP contends that the 2022 MVP Order will uniquely and adversely
impact customers in the Midwest Subregion. AMP states that its protest cited MISO’s
commitment to initiate a stakeholder process in 2022 dedicated to establishing an
alternative cost allocation approach for projects in LRTP Tranches 3 and 4.173 AMP
states that it showed that it would be unduly discriminatory to require customers in the
Midwest Subregion “solely [to] bear the cost of the Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 projects
physically located in the Midwest Subregion” and then subsequently allocate to those
customers “a share of the costs of Tranche 3 projects under a future regional cost
allocation methodology, even though those projects will be located in the MISO South
Subregion.”174  AMP argues the Commission erred in rejecting AMP’s concerns as
outside the scope of this proceeding based on a potential future cost allocation; AMP
asserts that its request that the Commission consider the cost allocation method for LRTP
Tranches 1 and 2 “in tandem with MISO’s commitment to develop a new cost allocation
method to the South Subregion™ was squarely before the Commission.175

68.  AMP points out that Filing Parties’ transmittal letter contains multiple references
to MISO’s commitment to consider changing the subregional cost allocation method for
LRTP Tranches 3 and 4 before that method takes effect.!”¢ Indeed, according to AMP,
the Entergy Operating Companies expressly stated their opposition to “the use of a
postage stamp methodology to allocate the costs of LRTP projects.”177 Nevertheless,
AMP states that the Entergy Operating Companies support the Commission’s acceptance
of the filing “as a comprehensive package” because the costs for Tranches 1 and 2 “will
not be allocated to the South Subregion” and because “MISO has committed to initiate a
stakeholder process in 2022 dedicated to determin[ing] an alternative cost allocation
approach that can replace the bifurcated postage stamp approach for use in Tranches 3

172 [d. at 6 (citing AMP Protest at 6-8).

173 Id. at 8-9 & n.42 (citing Transmittal at 2 n.3; id. at 29 (“MISO commits to
continuing the stakeholder process dedicated to identifying a cost allocation approach
that may replace the bifurcated, postage-stamp approach laid out in this filing.”)).

174 [d. at 9 (citing AMP Protest at 7).
175 Id. (quoting 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC q 61,124 at P 94).
176 4. (citing Transmittal Letter at 2 n.3, 19, 28-30).

177 [d. (citing Transmittal Letter at 2 n.3).
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and 4.”178 AMP argues these references and statements belie the Commission’s claim
that AMP’s concern about undue discrimination is premature and beyond the scope of
this proceeding and demonstrate that MISO’s commitment is essential to the proposal

that the Commission approved.

c. Commission Determination

69.  We disagree with Industrial Customers’ and AMP’s assertion that it is unduly
discriminatory to adopt a subregional postage stamp cost allocation method for LRTP
Tranches 1 and 2 in light of MISO’s commitment to pursue a more granular allocation
method for LRTP Tranches 3 and 4.17° We continue to find the Commission
appropriately determined that arguments pertaining to future filings are beyond the scope
of this proceeding. 189

70.  The focus of this proceeding is whether Filing Parties have justified modifying the
Tariff to create a subregional option for MVP cost allocation, using the existing postage
stamp method that the Commission has accepted and the Seventh Circuit has affirmed.!8!
It is not unduly discriminatory for the Commission to accept a subregional option while
MISO continues to discuss with stakeholders a different approach for future projects.
Therefore, arguments concerning future cost allocation method filings are premature, and
the Commission itself did not rely on MISO’s commitment in evaluating whether Filing
Parties’ proposal was just and reasonable. Moreover, Industrial Customers, AMP, and
others will have the opportunity to participate in the stakeholder process that may
culminate in such a filing, as well as any Commission proceeding on such a filing.

178 [d. at 9-10 (citing Transmittal Letter at 2 n.3).

179 See Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 24-25; AMP Rehearing Request
at 10.

180 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at P 94.

181 See 2010 MVP Order, 133 FERC 461,221 at P 200 order on reh’g, 2011 MVP
Rehearing Order, 137 FERC 461,074, aff°d in relevant part Illinois Comm’n II, 721 F.3d
764 (“We find that the Filing Parties have demonstrated that the MVP proposal is a
framework that will result in the allocation of the costs of transmission projects on a basis
that is ‘roughly commensurate’ with the benefits of those projects and that the proposal is
otherwise just and reasonable.”).
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7. Delegation

a. Industrial Customers Rehearing Request

71.  Industrial Customers argue that the 2022 MVP Order “arbitrarily and capriciously
transfers the Commission’s jurisdictional duty to the majoritarian will of the MISO
stakeholder process and the MISO States.”!82 Industrial Customers highlight the 2022
MVP Order’s recitation of Filing Parties’ statements that their proposal “represents a
balance of the interest of different stakeholder groups while allowing the immediate
transmission facilities identified through the LRTP to move forward.”!83 Industrial
Customers note that they corrected Filing Parties’ misstatements and pointed out that
MISO’s LRTP proposals during the stakeholder process did not receive any support from
the Eligible End-Use Customer sector, including the Industrial Customers.!34 Industrial
Customers argue the Eligible End-Use Customers sector did not support the proposal, and
Filing Parties did not address the Eligible End-Use Customers’ comments meaningfully.
Industrial Customers contend that the proposal cannot be accepted on the basis of any
broad stakeholder support and a balancing of interests, given that the entire sector voiced
consistent opposition to the proposal and other sectors opposed the proposal.183

72.  Industrial Customers argue the 2022 MVP Order disregarded Industrial
Customers’ arguments regarding:

(1) the inadequacy of the stakeholder process to produce a
just and reasonable rate outcome; (2) the failure of Filing
Parties to consider Industrial Customers’ extensive comments
during the stakeholder process; and (3) the failure of Filing
Parties’ proposal to reflect a compromise or balanced
outcome of views from the MISO stakeholder process,
including from customers that will bear the cost of the
proposal. 186

182 Industrial Customers Rehearing Request at 28.

183 Id

184 14, at 28-29 (citing 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC 61,124 at P 63 (citing
Industrial Customers April 21 Answer at 17)).

185 Id. at 29.

186 J4. (citing Industrial Customers April 21 Answer at 17, attach. C; TransCanada
Power Mktg. Ltd. v. FERC, 811 F.3d 1, 12 (D.C. Cir. 2015)).
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73.  Industrial Customers assert that Commissioner Christie tacitly accepted Filing
Parties’ proposal because OMS supported it. Industrial Customers emphasize, however,
that OMS is not a voting member of MISO, does not represent the interest of the Eligible
End-Use Customer Sector, and does not represent the interests of Industrial Customers. 137

b. Commission Determination

74.  Filing Parties documented an extensive, multi-year stakeholder process
culminating in the filing of the proposal.!8® As the Industrial Customers acknowledge,
they submitted multiple proposals and comments in the stakeholder process.!3? The fact
that Industrial Customers’ suggestions were not accepted does not show that the process
was deficient or inadequate.

75.  Moreover, contrary to Industrial Customers’ assertions, as the 2022 MVP Order
shows, the Commission did not improperly delegate its statutory obligation to MISO or
the stakeholder process, but performed an independent analysis of the proposal and
reached its conclusions based on substantial evidence.!®® The Commission examined
how each aspect of the proposal was consistent with each of the six regional cost
allocation principles set forth in Order No. 1000.1°! Also, the Commission evaluated the
testimony and Brattle Analysis and, “[c]onsidering this evidence,”!°? the Commission
determined that Filing Parties had adequately supported their proposal, “particularly

in light of the unique characteristics of MISO’s region and the role of the existing

187 [d. (citation omitted). They state that the Eligible End-Use Customer Sector
has a limited number of voting members compared to other MISO sectors. Id. at 29
n.107.

188 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC {61,124 at P 33.
189 Industrial Customers Request for Rehearing at 3.

190 See La. Pub. Serv. Comm’nv. FERC, 761 F.3d 540, 551-52 (5th Cir. 2014)
(stating that “[a]n agency abdicates its role as a rational decision-maker,” and
impermissibly delegates, “if it does not exercise its own judgment, and instead cedes
near-total deference to private parties’ estimates—even if the parties agree unanimously
as to the estimated amount”) (quoting Tex. Office of Pub. Util. Counsel v. FCC, 265 F.3d
313, 328 (5th Cir. 2001)). Inparticular, the Commission’s order did not rely upon the
position taken by OMS.

91 See 2022 MVP Order, 179 FERC § 61,124 at PP 68-79, 82, 85, 93-94.

192 1d. P 69.
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transfer limits.”1%3 The Commission further explained how “Filing Parties’ process for
determining whether an MVP portfolio provides benefits system-wide or subregionally is
just and reasonable.”1%4

The Commission orders:

In response to the requests for rehearing, the 2022 MVP Order is hereby modified
and the result sustained, as discussed in the body of this order.

By the Commission. Chairman Glick is not participating.
Commissioner Danly is concurring with a separate statement

attached.
Commissioner Christie is concurring with a separate statement
attached.
(SEAL)
Kimberly D. Bose,
Secretary.
193 14

194 14. P 70.



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. Docket No. ER22-995-001

(Issued December 16, 2022)
DANLY, Commissioner, concurring:

I concur with today’s order addressing the arguments raised on rehearing.! In
light of the concerns raised, I write separately to express my misgivings regarding the use
of the postage stamp cost allocation mechanism established by Midcontinent Independent
System Operator, Inc.’s (MISO) tariff revisions. Nonetheless, given the record before us
and the design of MISO’s allocation system, I have not concluded that MISO’s proposed
cost allocation method is unjust and unreasonable.

For these reasons, I respectfully concur.

James P. Danly
Commissioner

! Midcontinent Indep. Sys. Operator, Inc., 181 FERC Y 61,219 (2022).



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Midcontinent Independent System Operator, Inc. Docket No. ER22-995-001

(Issued December 16, 2022)
CHRISTIE, Commissioner, concurring:

I concur with today’s order for the same reasons set forth in my concurrence to the
underlying order approving MISO’s subregional cost allocation filing.1

Mark C. Christie
Commissioner

1 See Midcontinent Indep. Sys. Operator, Inc., 179 FERC {61,124 (2022)
(Christie, Comm’r, concurring), https:/www.ferc.gov/news-events/news/commissioner-
christies-concurrence-concernin g-miso-subregional-cost-allocation.
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From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

To: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>, Caitlin Marquis
<cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: Re: ISO-NE 202
Date: Mon, 15 May 2023 14:18:34 +0000
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

Here is the slide deck from this morning. Have a great week!

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

Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 9:52 AM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Sophie Watterson
<swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>; Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: ISO-NE 202

I look forward to the conversation next Monday.
Thank you and have a great week,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 9:49 AM

To: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>; Sophie Watterson <swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>; Caitlin
Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: Re: ISO-NE 202
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Great! Sending calendar invite now. Looking forward to seeing you next Monday!

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

Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 9:48 AM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Sophie Watterson
<swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>; Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: ISO-NE 202

Dear Hannah:

Yes, we can move the call to next week. | can be available on Monday, May 15 from 9-10 a.m. | hope that you are doing
well.

Thank you,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 9:37 AM

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

Commissioner Rubin,
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| hope you had a good weekend! We're having some scheduling snafus on our end that are creating conflicts
with the times | offered. Apologies, but can we please move the call to next week? Here are times available (|
will place tentative holds on internal calendars to save the times):

Monday, May 15, 9-10am
Friday, May 19, 10-11am
Friday, May 19, 2:30-3:30pm

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

Sent: Friday, May 5, 2023 5:37 PM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Sophie Watterson
<swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>; Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Re: ISO-NE 202

Dear Hannah and Caitlin:

Thank you for making this happen. Let’s plan for May 11 from 1-2.

Thank you,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station, 5! Floor

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

Cell: 857-286-5453

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Friday, May 5, 2023 4:54:01 PM

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
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Hi Commission Rubin,

Happy Friday! Cc'ing in my colleague Caitlin who is happy to do the briefing either May 11: 1-2pm or May 12: 10-
11am. Please remind me which one your preference is and I'll send out the calendar invite.

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 1:10 PM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Sophie Watterson
<swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: ISO-NE 202

Dear Hannah and Sophie:

Thank you for the warm welcome to the Equity Cohort and our initial chat. During our initial 2:1 discussion, you offered that
your colleague could conduct an ISO-NE 202 briefing. | welcome that conversation. | realize that we never secured a
calendar invitation with a meeting link for that briefing. How can we make that happen?

Thank you,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!nUTanX0s3PoyqpeeAFcYOI40zZh1pJsuJpJLFmFLXxSMStaMvaDD7RJhfkGcYMD7lVZ5jNBt7OKjyDNazL_X_aSsM64PUJ9TLQ$
mailto:staci.rubin@state.ma.us
mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org
mailto:swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org
mailto:Staci.Rubin@mass.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!nUTanX0s3PoyqpeeAFcYOI40zZh1pJsuJpJLFmFLXxSMStaMvaDD7RJhfkGcYMD7lVZ5jNBt7OKjyDNazL_X_aSsM64jRcXrbg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!nUTanX0s3PoyqpeeAFcYOI40zZh1pJsuJpJLFmFLXxSMStaMvaDD7RJhfkGcYMD7lVZ5jNBt7OKjyDNazL_X_aSsM64jRcXrbg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!ilH7JuNMNGFRGeT38DTzbtIzdhZuGqH0fJGAVRW5N6bHVz3V6sCSlxp9utQOYwQHTIranniogHn3EQ9S4ei2oghU_AD0ocercA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!ilH7JuNMNGFRGeT38DTzbtIzdhZuGqH0fJGAVRW5N6bHVz3V6sCSlxp9utQOYwQHTIranniogHn3EQ9S4ei2oghU_AD0ocercA$

|, /AEE



https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!hIDMBM0vUBfEH3RT4ZDlch0W6hTZ80hvaZktSxPl8gGEYR0Z-iHbdFkogc08H5j1ZV8gxb20HGokbVE0nG_igdpe-sCdROTkVw$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!hIDMBM0vUBfEH3RT4ZDlch0W6hTZ80hvaZktSxPl8gGEYR0Z-iHbdFkogc08H5j1ZV8gxb20HGokbVE0nG_igdpe-sCdROTkVw$

2

\ | / o
-

S
e
L

ADVANCED f
ENERGY UNITED ﬁ,_

ISO New Eng|and: ’ =

L

Barriers to Advanced L8

vl by
A st
P P

i

o ,:;r‘.p,,._, R



About Advanced Energy United

Advanced Energy United educates, engages, and advocates for policies that allow our
member companies to compete to repower our economy with 100% clean energy.

The businesses we represent are lowering consumer costs, creating millions of new jobs,
and providing the full range of clean, efficient, and reliable energy and
transportation solutions.

Today, these businesses have a combined market capitalization in excess of $3 trillion.

Together, we are united in our mission to accelerate the transition to 100% clean energy
in the United States.
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Topics

- Markets

* Infrastructure

* Planning

- Governance / Process
* Non-ISO Barriers

« What states can do
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Markets

Barriers to advanced energy participation and/or revenue adequacy in ISO-NE Energy, Ancillary Services, and Capacity markets

- Barriers to Participation:

*  Minimum Offer Price Rule (phasing out by FCA 19)
- Behind-the-Meter Distributed Energy Resource Participation (failure of ISO-NE’s Order No. 2222 compliance proposal)

- Lack of revenue adequacy:

- Lack of market signal / valuing of clean energy attributes in markets (joint state/ISO discussion via Future Pathways, currently
stalled; MA DOER FCEM proposal)

- Capacity accreditation reform will further erode capacity revenues for clean resources; may correct for current over-valuing of
thermal resources due to lack of accounting for weather-driven and fuel supply risks (although may not go far enough)

* Need for consideration of market reforms and new products for future decarbonized grid (currently being studied)
*  Winter reliability:

* Focus on availability and performance of fossil resources often resulting in measures that harm or do not incorporate clean
resources (e.g., MOPR extension, Mystic RMR, Inventoried Energy Program)
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Slide 4

GU1 i might say "weather-driven and fuel supply' risks, rather than "performance’
Guest User; 5/9/2023 2:48:53 PM



Infrastructure

Failures to build out infrastructure to support advanced energy deployment in line with state policy requirements

*  Transmission (onshore and offshore)
* ISO-NE 2050 study (initiated at states’ request) is an important step to identify needs

- While ISO has been responsive to state requests, states will need to remain engaged, aligned, and committed to moving forward with
significant transmission buildout (regionally and interregionally)

* There is also a need to right-size transmission projects to better anticipate future needs
- Generator Interconnection

* Transmission buildout will help alleviate bottlenecks in the medium/long term, but in the short term, resource/staffing investments and
process improvements are needed:

» Transparent information to inform generator decisions to enter the queue, and as projects move through
* Improved modeling of battery storage systems to better reflect real-world operations
- Disciplining timelines for TOs to complete studies (reform contemplated by pending FERC NOPR)

» Improving the accuracy and transparency of cost and timeline estimates from Tos in interconnection studies, and allowing for
discussion to understand and align on outcomes

» Leverage available technologies (e.g., GETs), tools (e.g. software and automation), and funding (e.g., U.S. DOE)

* Improved alignment between ISO-NE and state interconnection processes
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‘4A. ENERGY UNITED



Slide 5

CM1 Slide 4: | think that another key project that the states can help push forward is the right sizing of transmission projects, i.e. ensuring that transmission projects are build to the appropriate size anticipating the needs associated with renewable goals.
Slide 4: Another huge issue is cost and time estimates provided by TOs in interconnection studies. There is no room for discussion about these estimates (particularly schedule) which can cause project delays/withdrawals.
Slide 4: Interactions between ISO-NE and state interconnection processes are becoming increasingly important. Careful coordination is needed to not slow down projects but still ensure reliability on both systems.
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Planning

Planning for the clean energy future has been an area of progress, although more work is needed to translate studies into market
reforms and action

* IS0 has undertaken several studies related to the clean energy transition in recent years, many at the request of the states:

*  Future Grid Pathways Study (evaluating different clean energy market pathways), ISO waiting on direction from states following out
of MA DOER FCEM proposal

*  Future Grid Reliability Study (evaluating grid needs under a decarbonized future); "Phase 2" revenue adequacy study commencing
in 2023

- EPRI Extreme Weather Study (pending study looking at impacts and grid needs to address extreme weather)
- 2050 Transmission Study (evaluating transmission needs under different 2050 scenarios, now in solution development phase)

- More work will be needed to ensure these studies result in market reforms that prepare the grid and the markets for a decarbonized
future

- Additional transparency regarding GHG emissions data would also facilitate proactive planning
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Governance / Process

Lack of power in the stakeholder process frustrates the ability of both clean energy interests and the states to enact meaningful
reforms or shape |ISO proposals

 |SO Board

* No meaningful clean energy expertise or representation

- NEPOOL stakeholder process

* Incumbent-dominated, although clean energy votes increasing (many in Alternative Resources sector), and majority support is
possible on certain clean energy issues with support of other sectors, i.e., End Users, Transmission Owners, Publicly Owned

Entities, Generators, and/or Suppliers

 Role of states

*  Under ISO-NE / NESCOE / NEPOOL MOU states have a limited official role and no real power in the stakeholder process; they
are mostly advisory, and engage primarily via NESCOE; Despite this, NESCOE maintains significant influence, but can generally

relies on consensus amongst the New England states

» State consumer advocates (e.g., MA AGOQO) participate and vote in the End User sector

ISO-NE Bandwidth and Resources

» |SO-NE has consistently expressed that it is at capacity dealing with already-planned market reform and planning efforts,
frustrating the ability of stakeholders (including states) to initiate and get meaningful traction on other reforms
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Slide 7
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Non-ISO Barriers

Barriers that must be addressed outside of the ISO-NE process that impede the ability of advanced resources to compete in ISO-
NE markets

» Siting and permitting delays and challenges
*  Supply chain uncertainty
- Tariff rate and operational challenges to Battery Energy Storage Systems

* Public perception of energy transition being at odds with reliability and affordability

Lack of clarity on interconnection process / costs / timeframe and lack
of certainty regarding market reforms and revenue streams frustrate
developers’ ability to navigate these other challenges.
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How states can address these barriers

- Markets: Remain engaged (individually and through NESCOE) on pending markets
iIssues; push |SO to pursue future market reform needs arising from Future Grid Reliability
Study and others; press for regional adoption of mechanisms for incorporating clean
energy attributes into markets (e.g., FCEM)

* Infrastructure: Prioritize transmission buildout and work together as a region toward
ambitious portfolio of beneficial transmission projects; push ISO and work with TOs to
Improve interconnection outcomes

* Planning: Remain engaged (through NESCOE) to ensure continued proactive planning
that takes state policy requirements into account

» Governance: Continue to push for Board transparency and continue engagement in
ISO/NEPQOOL process

A ADVANCED
‘4A. ENERGY UNITED



Thank you.

Caitlin Marquis
e. cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org
t: 781.261.6047

ADVANCED
ENERGY UNITED

eeeeeeeee
Washington, D.C. 20005



mailto:cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org

People / Groups

« ISO-NE

» |SO-NE Board (candidates selected by Joint Nominating Committee)
- NESCOE

- NEPOOL

» Sectors: Publicly-Owned Entities, Transmission Owners, Suppliers, Generation, End Users,
Alternative Resources

» Day Pitney / NEPOOL Counsel
» Consumer Liaison Group

« FERC: Commissioners, OEMR / OEMR-East

» Congressional Offices
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Process

* Proposals / Issues:
- FERC Orders
» |SO priorities
- Stakeholder-driven
* Work plan process (ISO-NE, NEPOOL, NESCOE)
» Committee process
» Technical Committees and working groups, Participants Committee
- Amendments and Voting
» Finalization and Filing with FERC
* Jump ball
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Key Issues for 2023

* New England Energy Vision (NESCOE) » Current Work Plan:

» Market Design (Pathways, FGRS) » Resource Capacity Accreditation
* Transmission (2050 Study) * Ancillary Services
- (Governance » Order No. 2222 further compliance
* Environmental Justice * On the Horizon:
* Winter Reliability » Seasonal / prompt auction
« FERC Forum June 20, Portland, ME * |Interconnection reform (following final

rule from FERC)
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Key Annual Events

- NECPUC (late May)

 NEPOOL Summer PC Meeting (June)
» Sector meetings with states

» Fall PC meeting
» Sector meetings with states

* December PC meeting: Holiday breakfast
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From: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

To: "Hannah Polikov" <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>, "Caitlin Marquis"
<cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: RE: ISO-NE 202
Date: Mon, 15 May 2023 14:27:34 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

Thank you, Hannah and Caitlin.
| greatly appreciate your time,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 10:19 AM

To: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>; Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>
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
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https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!gjplBA4Gfz-9IjeQsXmp9DFMLr3-L470J5gCuqWZRARq2xBt-w2_75e6M0PUYv2HudyMUXVQiMn5UvzTltiqThuCo3XtowLY7Q$
mailto:staci.rubin@state.ma.us
mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org

<swatterson@advancedenergyunited.org>; Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: ISO-NE 202

| look forward to the conversation next Monday.
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
One South Station, 51 Floor

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

L AEE

AEE


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

"Rubin, Staci (DPU)" </o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9a3bd027e02e4e2799d8b1f78a46c85d-Rubin,

Stac>

"Hannah Polikov" <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Accepted: ISO NE

Mon, 08 May 2023 13:52:21 +0000

Normal

unnamed




Event: Accepted: ISO NE

Start Date: 2023-05-15 13:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2023-05-15 14:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Location: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2846796295?from=addon
Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2023-05-08 13:52:21 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-08 13:52:25 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-08 13:52:19 +0000



From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

To: Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>, Jeremy McDiarmid
<jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org>, "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Subject: ISO NE
Date: Mon, 08 May 2023 13:51:32 +0000
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
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2846796295?from=addon

Meeting ID: 284 679 6295

One tap mobile

+13017158592,,2846796295# US (Washington DC)
+13052241968,,2846796295# US

Dial by your location

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 305 224 1968 US

+1 309 205 3325 US

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

+1 646 931 3860 US

+1 689 278 1000 US

+1 719 359 4580 US

+1 253 205 0468 US

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 360 209 5623 US

+1 386 347 5053 US

+1 507 473 4847 US

+1 564 217 2000 US

+1 669 444 9171 US

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 284 679 6295

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k8UvI2log

l».AEE


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2846796295?from=addon__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kKQbSXJjnhFxM0gOBUQDM-ZYzxSyQFqTlhcjGSZYxJKWkIelI9CfZgbM5qFiJO7Q1GZHRRQvyqHnsayeP646mWbmXgWmuEOqIQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k8Uvl2log__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kKQbSXJjnhFxM0gOBUQDM-ZYzxSyQFqTlhcjGSZYxJKWkIelI9CfZgbM5qFiJO7Q1GZHRRQvyqHnsayeP646mWbmXgV_wh2v5A$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kKQbSXJjnhFxM0gOBUQDM-ZYzxSyQFqTlhcjGSZYxJKWkIelI9CfZgbM5qFiJO7Q1GZHRRQvyqHnsayeP646mWbmXgX23NwbQg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://reg.eventmobi.com/state-of-affairs__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kKQbSXJjnhFxM0gOBUQDM-ZYzxSyQFqTlhcjGSZYxJKWkIelI9CfZgbM5qFiJO7Q1GZHRRQvyqHnsayeP646mWbmXgX23NwbQg$

Event: ISO NE

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

Date Created: 2023-08-13 10:47:12 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-08-13 10:47:12 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-08 13:51:32 +0000

Attendee: Caitlin Marquis <cmarquis@advancedenergyunited.org>; Jeremy McDiarmid
<jmcdiarmid@advancedenergyunited.org>; Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

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
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k8UvlI2log

W AEE


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

Date Created: 2023-05-08 13:52:31 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-15 14:45:10 +0000

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

Date Created: 2023-05-23 23:14:54 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-23 23:14:54 +0000

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
To: "Bartlett, Phil" <Phil.Bartlett@maine.gov>
Bcece: "Hannah Polikov" <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: MA/ME intro
Date: Wed, 03 May 2023 22:14:57 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

Hannah:
Thank you for the e-introduction. | moved you to BCC.
Dear Chair Bartlett:

| enjoyed meeting you last week during the NECPUC call and look forward to connecting with you. Would you be open to
scheduling a video call in the coming weeks? If so, then | will propose some dates and times.

Thank you,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 3:15 PM

To: Bartlett, Phil <Phil.Bartlett@maine.gov>; Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: MA/ME intro

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Chair Bartlett,

I'd like to introduce new MA DPU Commissioner Staci Rubin (cc'ed here) who is interested in learning more
about Maine's work on intervenor compensation. I'll let you two take it from here!

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!l0cisGy0QrGeXdZ31T2YSHfVT8ttJbFYveSzSDw93UynC--9LlRSF9VeBJ7UL0HZUnlQppeW70UR0cLsF7b0tZ54OAtHTrdC6g$

From: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
To: "Bartlett, Phil" <Phil.Bartlett@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: MA/ME intro
Date: Thu, 04 May 2023 10:19:17 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

Dear Phil:

Thank you very much. Let's meet on Monday, 5/15, at 1:00. | sent you a calendar invitation with a Teams link. Let me
know if Teams does not work for you.

With appreciation,
Staci

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Bartlett, Phil <Phil.Bartlett@maine.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 6:22 PM

To: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: Re: MA/ME intro

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Yes, happy to. I'm traveling next week, but could do this Friday 2-4 or Monday 5/15 at 1:00. If those times don’t work |
can find some more.

Best,
Phil

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 6:14:57 PM

To: Bartlett, Phil <Phil.Bartlett@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: MA/ME intro

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Hannah:


mailto:Staci.Rubin@mass.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/aka.ms/o0ukef__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kItDUU-WBbakRqaRuCyDQAHVcJpQFrPG8lSnSPONVacKjplCDbO25TWk9fMmDHHq7fKgKYGOUsgZF1rwnsHqXsiGIz4-MA$
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mailto:Phil.Bartlett@maine.gov

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
mailto:staci.rubin@mass.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!l0cisGy0QrGeXdZ31T2YSHfVT8ttJbFYveSzSDw93UynC--9LlRSF9VeBJ7UL0HZUnlQppeW70UR0cLsF7b0tZ54OAtHTrdC6g$

From: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
To: "Christian, Rory (DPS)" <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>
Bcece: "Hannah Polikov" <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: RE: MA/NY intro on siting reforms
Date: Wed, 03 May 2023 22:17:41 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

Hannah:
Thank you for the e-introduction. | moved you to BCC.
Dear Chair Christian:

| enjoyed meeting you last week during the Equity Cohort and look forward to connecting with you again. Would you be
open to scheduling a video call in the coming weeks? If so, then | will propose some dates and times.

Thank you,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 1:39 PM

To: Christian, Rory (DPS) <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>; Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: MA/NY intro on siting reforms

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Chair Christian,
| hope your week is off to a good start! As | mentioned last week, I'd like to connect you with newly appointed
MA DPU Commissioner Staci Rubin (cc'ed here) who is interesting in learning more about centering equity in

renewable energy siting reforms. I'll let you two take it from here!

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!kA_a4NboIyZF7yV58rXGmXJ01BuBH7OJDryDxa9h-SxAdJXWxvogKYUAyXr7piqO2hnZ8AI-uji7F40-QXpwsnwT-8jJv0_UHg$

From: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
To: "Christian, Rory (DPS)" <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>
Cec: "Gardiner, Lynn (DPU)" <Lynn.Gardiner@mass.gov>
Subject: RE: MA/NY intro on siting reforms
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 22:41:33 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

Dear Rory:
It was terrific to chat with you this afternoon. Thank you for making time, sharing wisdom, and asking questions.

As we discussed, we will connect approximately once per month during the coming months. | copied Lynn Gardiner, who
can help with scheduling on my end.

Have a lovely weekend,
Staci

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Christian, Rory (DPS) <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 10:50 AM

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

That time works, and Teams is fine. See you then

From: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>
Sent: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 10:49 AM

To: Christian, Rory (DPS) <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>
Subject: RE: MA/NY intro on siting reforms

You don't often get email from staci.rubin@state.ma.us. Learn why this is important

ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or

unexpected emails.

Dear Rory:


mailto:staci.rubin@state.ma.us
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!n4bex0GgUKUEj2hT3auLIaMXlrF9s8TCQaksuOrWrZbKBq3IQ-d6-qLvK-jbJzViUEWdw123zqjBlChxZ7V4IMfmb25ANl_yjA$
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Thank you for making time to speak with me. | can meet this Friday, 5/12, at 1:00 p.m. | sent you a calendar invitation with
a Teams link. Let me know if you prefer another phone/video app.

Thank you,
Staci

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 266 446 542 270

Passcode: GFPJDa

Download Teams | Join on the web

Learn More | Meeting_options

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Christian, Rory (DPS) <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 10:01 PM

To: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Subject: Re: MA/NY intro on siting reforms

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Staci,

| would be happy to. My earliest availability is this Friday between noon and 2pm. If that doesn't work, let me
know your availability the week of the 22nd.

Best,

-R

Rory Christian
he/him/his

Chair of The New York State Public Service Commission
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rory.christian@dps.ny.gov

212.417.3145

From: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2023 6:17 PM

To: Christian, Rory (DPS) <Rory.Christian@dps.ny.gov>
Subject: RE: MA/NY intro on siting reforms

You don't often get email from staci.rubin@state.ma.us. Learn why this is important

ATTENTION.: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or

xpected emails.

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
To: "Jennifer Potter" <jpotter@strategen.com>
Subject: RE: HI/MA intro
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 16:53:37 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image004.png; image005.png; image006.png; image007.png

Dear Jennie:
That time is perfect. Thank you very much. | look forward to connecting on Monday. Have a great day and weekend,
Staci

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Jennifer Potter <jpotter@strategen.com>
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 12:02 PM

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

How about Monday from 4-5 pm ET/ 10-11am HT? | can send a Teams meeting invite shortly. | am looking forward to
connect!

Best,
Jennie

Jennifer Potter
Director
she/her/hers (What's This?)

§ STRATEGEN

E: jpotter@strategen.com
D: +1510-228-1301
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From: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@state.ma.us>
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 5:28 AM

To: Jennifer Potter <jpotter@strategen.com>
Subject: RE: HI/MA intro

| CAUTION: EXTERNAL EMAIL

Thank you for the introduction, Hannah! | moved you to bcc to not clog your inbox.
Dear Jennie:

| would be delighted to connect with you. Thank you for making time. Do any of these times work for you to do a video
chat?

« Today, 3-4PM EST / 9-10AM HST
« Monday, 5/15, 4-5PM EST / 10-11AM HST
o Wednesday, 5/17, 4-5PM EST / 10-11AM HST

With appreciation,

Staci Rubin

Commissioner

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
One South Station

Boston, MA 02110

Staci.Rubin@mass.gov

857-286-5453

From: Jennifer Potter <jpotter@strategen.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2023 4:26 PM

To: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: RE: HI/MA intro

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Thank you for the introduction, Hannah! It is nice to meet you, Commissioner Rubin. | would be happy to talk about
the equity work up to date at the HPUC. Do you have some days and times that could work for you?

Thank you!

Best,
Jennie
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Jennifer Potter
Director

she/her/hers (What's This?)
l’ STRATEGEN

E: jpotter@strategen.com
D: +1 510-228-1301

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2023 8:50 AM
To: Jennifer Potter <jpotter@strategen.com>; Rubin, Staci (DPU) <Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us>
Subject: HI/MA intro

| CAUTION: EXTERNAL EMAIL

Dear Commissioner Rubin,

I'd like to introduce Jenny Potter (cc'ed here), formerly a Commissioner with the HI PUC where she led on their
equity work. She would be happy to share with you what they've done there. I'll let you two take it from here!

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
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 16:20:33 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: unnamed
Inline-Images: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

Discussion about equity in the regulatory framework. Looking forward to it!

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 292 186 925 218

Passcode: orbcQ6
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

I CAUTION: EXTERNAL EMAIL

Thank you for the introduction, Hannah! | moved you to bcce to not clog your inbox.
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
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Event: HI/MA intro

Start Date: 2023-05-15 20:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2023-05-15 21:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Jennifer Potter <jpotter@strategen.com>
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2023-05-12 16:41:37 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-15 21:08:21 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-12 16:20:29 +0000

Attendee: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Attach: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png

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

ICAUTION: EXTERNAL EMAIL

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
o Wednesday, 5/17, 4-5PM EST/ 10-11AM HST

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
Ll
e

E: jpotter@strategen.com
D: +1 510-228-1301

|+ 2EEFFA41| "5063F77B

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

Start Date: 2023-05-12 20:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2023-05-12 21:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Jennifer Potter <jpotter@strategen.com>
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2023-05-26 23:39:29 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-26 23:39:29 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-12 16:20:06 +0000

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
| %

L

E: jpotter@strategen.com
D: +1 510-228-1301
|+ 2EEFFA41| _"5063F77B

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

Date Created: 2023-05-26 23:39:36 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-26 23:39:36 +0000

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

Date Created: 2023-08-13 10:47:17 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-08-13 10:47:17 +0000

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

o Today, 3-4PM EST / 9-10AM HST
« Monday, 5/15, 4-5PM EST / 10-11AM HST
o Wednesday, 5/17, 4-56PM EST / 10-11AM HST

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

o

E: jpotter@strategen.com
D: +1 510-228-1301

|+ 2EEFFA41| '5063F77B

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

Date Created: 2023-08-13 10:48:12 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-08-13 10:48:12 +0000

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
To: "cecile.fraser@state.ma.us" <cecile.fraser@mass.gov>
Subject: Summer NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, July 17 at 6 pm
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 16:30:02 +0000
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
holding for Commissioners and advanced energy companies on Monday July 17 from 6-8pm at Taverna
restaurant, a few minutes from the conference hotel. The dinner will be Dutch style, so everyone will pay for
themselves. These informal dinners have always been a great way to learn about the latest innovations in the
energy space.

Please feel free to reach out to me (ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org) or my colleague Hannah
(hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org) if you have any questions or concerns. I hope you will consider joining
us!

Best,
Christina

This event is not sponsored by Summer NARUC, nor is it a part of the official Summer NARUC agenda.

Christina Kurre

Associate

Advanced Energy United

Transforming Policy. Expanding Markets.

e: ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org

0:202.380.1950 x3057

Mailing Address: 1010 Vermont Ave. NW, Suite 1050, Washington, D.C. 20005
www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org @AdvEnergyUnited
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From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <james.vannostrand@mass.gov>, "Christina Kurre"
<ckurre(@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: Re: Summer NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, July 17 at 6 pm
Date: Mon, 15 May 2023 14:13:59 +0000
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

See you November! Have a great week!

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

From: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <james.vannostrand@state.ma.us>
Sent: Saturday, May 13, 2023 4:13 PM

To: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: RE: Summer NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, July 17 at 6 pm

Thanks for the invitation, Christina. Unfortunately, | will not be attending the Summer Policy Summit in July. | have a lot
of travel planned over the next few months, and will not be making the trip to Austin.

| hope to catch up with you and Hannah at the November NARUC meeting in La Quinta.

Best,
Jamie

James M. Van Nostrand

Chair, Massaschusetts Department of Public Utilities
1 South Station

Boston, MA 02110

james.vannostrand(@mass.gov

(617) 305-3540
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From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 12:25 PM

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

0: 202.380.1950 x3057

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
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 17:59:12 +0000
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
Thank you for letting me know. | hope to see you there!

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

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 1:54 PM

To: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: RE: Summer NARUC Dinner Invite Monday, July 17 at 6 pm

Dear Christina:

Thanks for the invitation. | have not yet determined whether | will attend the summer NARUC event, but if | do, | will attend
the dinner.

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
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 12:34 PM

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
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Event: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners

Start Date: 2023-07-17 23:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2023-07-18 01:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Location: Taverna 258 W. 2nd Street Austin, TX 78701

Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2023-10-02 15:12:57 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-10-02 15:12:57 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-12 17:57:56 +0000

Attendee: a.french@kcc.ks.gov <a.french@kcc.ks.gov>; abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov
<abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov>; alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov <alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>;
amccabe@icc.illinois.gov <amccabe®@icc.illinois.gov>; angie.hatton@ky.gov
<angie.hatton@ky.gov>; ann.bukacek@mt.gov <ann.bukacek@mt.gov>;
anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov <anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov>; anthony.odonnell@mt.gov
<anthony.odonnell@mt.gov>; ATovar-web@azcc.gov <ATovar-web@azcc.gov>;
Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov <Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov>; bob.doyle@alaska.gov
<bob.doyle@alaska.gov>; bob.pickett@alaska.gov <bob.pickett@alaska.gov>;
bpeck@pvbank.com <bpeck@pvbank.com>; brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us
<brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us>; brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov <brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov>;
carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov <carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov>; Fraser, Cecile (DPU)
<cecile.fraser@mass.gov>; cgreene@la.gov <cgreene@la.gov>; chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov
<chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov>; chris.nelson@state.sd.us <chris.nelson@state.sd.us>;
chuckhutch@cox.net <chuckhutch@cox.net>; cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov <cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov>;
cmitchell@ncuc.net <cmitchell@ncuc.net>; colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov <colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov>;
Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us <Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us>;
Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us <Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us>;
commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us <commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us>;
Commissioner.LaRosa@psc.state.fl.us <Commissioner.LaRosa@psc.state.fl.us>;
Commissioner.Passidomo@psc.state.fl.us <Commissioner.Passidomo@psc.state.fl.us>;
conrad.reddick@illinois.gov <conrad.reddick@illinois.gov>; contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov
<contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov>; d.keen@kcc.ks.gov <d.keen@kcc.ks.gov>;
dallas.winslow@delaware.gov <dallas.winslow@delaware.gov>; dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov
<dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov>; daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov <daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov>;
daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov <daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov>; daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov
<daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov>; darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov <darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov>;
davante.lewis@la.gov <davante.lewis@la.gov>; dclodfelter@ncuc.net <dclodfelter@ncuc.net>;
dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov <dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov>; Doyle. Webb@arkansas.gov
<Doyle.Webb®@arkansas.gov>; drexclark@utah.gov <drexclark@utah.gov>; dveleta@urc.in.gov



<dveleta@urc.in.gov>; dziegner@urc.in.gov <dziegner@urc.in.gov>; edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov
<edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov>; eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov <eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov>;
eric.blank@state.co.us <eric.blank@state.co.us>; eric.skrmetta@la.gov <eric.skrmetta@la.gov>;
erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov <erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov>; ethompson@psc.dc.gov
<ethompson@psc.dc.gov>; fjohnson@psc.ga.gov <fjohnson@psc.ga.gov>; fjreida@gmail.com
<fjreida@gmail.com>; fmckissick@ncuc.net <fmckissick@ncuc.net>; foster.campbell@la.gov
<foster.campbell@la.gov>; gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov <gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov>;
gary.hanson@state.sd.us <gary.hanson@state.sd.us>; glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov
<glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov>; greg.moen@nucor.com <greg.moen@nucor.com>;
harold.gray@state.de.us <harold.gray@state.de.us>; hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov
<hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov>; james.alesi@dps.ny.gov <james.alesi@dps.ny.gov>;
james.brown@mt.gov <james.brown@mt.gov>; James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov
<James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov>; james.vannostrand@state.ma.us
<james.vannostrand@state.ma.us>; janis.wilson@alaska.gov <janis.wilson@alaska.gov>;
jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov <jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov>; Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us
<Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us>; Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov <Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov>;
jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov <jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov>; jfc@pa.gov <jfc@pa.gov>;
jfedorchak@nd.gov <jfedorchak@nd.gov>; jhughes@ncuc.net <jhughes@ncuc.net>;
jhuston1@urc.in.gov <jhuston1@urc.in.gov>; jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov
<jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov>; joanneconaway@hotmail.com
<joanneconaway@hotmail.com>; JOConnor-web@azcc.gov <JOConnor-web@azcc.gov>;
john.betkoski@ct.gov <john.betkoski@ct.gov>; john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov
<john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov>; John.Howard@dps.ny.gov <John.Howard@dps.ny.gov>;
john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov <john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov>; john.revens@puc.ri.gov
<john.revens@puc.ri.gov>; john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov <john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>;
john.tuma@state.mn.us <john.tuma@state.mn.us>; john.williams@puco.ohio.gov
<john.williams@puco.ohio.gov>; joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us <joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us>;
joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov <joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov>; jshaw@psc.state.ga.us
<jshaw@psc.state.ga.us>; jtate@psc.state.ar.us <jtate@psc.state.ar.us>;
karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov <karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov>; kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov
<kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov>; Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov
<Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov>; katie.sieben@state.mn.us <katie.sieben@state.mn.us>;
katzerfuss@pa.gov <katzerfuss@pa.gov>; kduffley@ncuc.net <kduffley@ncuc.net>;
keith.kurber@alaska.gov <keith.kurber@alaska.gov>; Kent.Chandler@ky.gov
<Kent.Chandler@ky.gov>; kim.drexler@state.de.us <kim.drexler@state.de.us>;
kkemerait@ncuc.net <kkemerait@ncuc.net>; klgottschalk113@gmail.com
<klgottschalk113@gmail.com>; kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us <kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us>;
lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us <lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us>;
leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov <leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov>; letha.tawney@state.or.us
<letha.tawney@state.or.us>; Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov <Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov>;
lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov <lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov>; maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov
<maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov>; marissa.gillett@ct.gov <marissa.gillett@ct.gov>;
mark.r.thompson@state.or.us <mark.r.thompson@state.or.us>; mary.regan@ky.gov
<mary.regan@ky.gov>; matt.schuerger@state.mn.us <matt.schuerger@state.mn.us>;



megan.decker@state.or.us <megan.decker@state.or.us>;, megan.gilman@state.co.us
<megan.gilman@state.co.us>; meyers-web@azcc.gov <meyers-web@azcc.gov>;
michael.caron@ct.gov <michael.caron@ct.gov>; michaelt.richard@maryland.gov
<michaelt.richard@maryland.gov>; mike.francis@la.gov <mike.francis@la.gov>;
mike.karia@state.de.us <mike.karia@state.de.us>; naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov
<naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov>; pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov <pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov>;
patrick.scully@maine.gov <patrick.scully@maine.gov>; Peretickk@michigan.gov
<Peretickk@michigan.gov>; peter.lake@puc.texas.gov <peter.lake@puc.texas.gov>;
phil.bartlett@maine.gov <phil.bartlett@maine.gov>; pinocci@mt.gov <pinocci@mt.gov>;
pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov <pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov>;
rbeverly@psc.dc.gov <rbeverly@psc.dc.gov>; rcallen@utah.gov <rcallen@utah.gov>;
rchristmann@nd.gov <rchristmann@nd.gov>; Riley.Allen@vermont.gov
<Riley.Allen@vermont.gov>; rory.christian@dps.ny.gov <rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>;
ryanora@pa.gov <ryanora@pa.gov>; s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov <s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov>;
sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov <sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov>; scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov
<scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov>; scrippsd1@michigan.gov <scrippsd1@michigan.gov>;
sfreeman@urc.in.gov <sfreeman@urc.in.gov>; shaugenhoffart@nd.gov
<shaugenhoffart@nd.gov>; smd@pa.gov <smd@pa.gov>; stacey.paradis@illinois.gov
<stacey.paradis@illinois.gov>; tbrownbland@ncuc.net <tbrownbland@ncuc.net>;
tcordova@puc.nv.gov <tcordova@puc.nv.gov>; techols@psc.state.ga.us
<techols@psc.state.ga.us>; thompson-web@azcc.gov <thompson-web@azcc.gov>;
tlevar@utah.gov <tlevar@utah.gov>; Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov <Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov>;
tom.plant@state.co.us <tom.plant@state.co.us>; tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us
<tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us>; Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov <Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov>;
ttrabue@psc.dc.gov <ttrabue@psc.dc.gov>; twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov
<twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov>; valerie.means@state.mn.us
<valerie.means@state.mn.us>; will. mcadams@puc.texas.gov <will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov>;
Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

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

Date Created: 2023-06-01 03:57:19 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-06-01 03:57:20 +0000

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
amccabe@icc.illinois.gov <amccabe@icc.illinois.gov>; angie.hatton@ky.gov
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
sfreeman@urc.in.gov <sfreeman®@urc.in.gov>; shaugenhoffart@nd.gov
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
<valerie.means@state.mn.us>; will. mncadams@puc.texas.gov <will. mcadams@puc.texas.gov>;
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

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-12 14:09:37 +0000

Attendee: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>; Hannah Polikov
<hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>; Riley.Allen@vermont.gov <Riley.Allen@vermont.gov>;
kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov <kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov>;
jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov <jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov>; lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov
<lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov>; peter.lake@puc.texas.gov <peter.lake@puc.texas.gov>;
will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov <will. mcadams@puc.texas.gov>; rcallen@utah.gov
<rcallen@utah.gov>; drexclark@utah.gov <drexclark@utah.gov>; tlevar@utah.gov
<tlevar@utah.gov>; kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us <kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us>;
chris.nelson@state.sd.us <chris.nelson@state.sd.us>; gary.hanson@state.sd.us
<gary.hanson@state.sd.us>; abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov <abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov>;
john.revens@puc.ri.gov <john.revens@puc.ri.gov>; Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us
<Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us>; dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov
<dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov>; daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov
<daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov>; john.williams@puco.ohio.gov <john.williams@puco.ohio.gov>;
lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us <lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us>;
contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov <contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov>; Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov
<Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov>; Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov <Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov>;
mark.r.thompson@state.or.us <mark.r.thompson@state.or.us>; letha.tawney@state.or.us
<letha.tawney@state.or.us>; megan.decker@state.or.us <megan.decker@state.or.us>;
jfc@pa.gov <jfc@pa.gov>; katzerfuss@pa.gov <katzerfuss@pa.gov>; smd@pa.gov <smd@pa.gov>;
ryanora@pa.gov <ryanora@pa.gov>; John.Howard@dps.ny.gov <John.Howard@dps.ny.gov>;
Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov <Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov>; james.alesi@dps.ny.gov
<james.alesi@dps.ny.gov>; James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov <James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov>;
pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov <pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov>; gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov
<gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov>; tcordova@puc.nv.gov <tcordova@puc.nv.gov>;
hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov <hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov>; cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov
<¢jmanthe@puc.nv.gov>; john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov <john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov>;
rory.christian@dps.ny.gov <rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>; scrippsd1@michigan.gov
<scrippsd1@michigan.gov>; joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us <joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us>;



valerie.means@state.mn.us <valerie. means@state.mn.us>; katie.sieben@state.mn.us
<katie.sieben@state.mn.us>; matt.schuerger@state.mn.us <matt.schuerger@state.mn.us>;
john.tuma@state.mn.us <john.tuma@state.mn.us>; glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov
<glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov>; jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov <jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov>;
maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov <maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov>; scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov
<scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov>; brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov <brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov>;
dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov <dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov>; brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us
<brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us>; ann.bukacek@mt.gov <ann.bukacek@mt.gov>;
Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov <Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov>; james.brown@mt.gov
<james.brown@mt.gov>; pinocci@mt.gov <pinocci@mt.gov>; anthony.odonnell@mt.gov
<anthony.odonnell@mt.gov>; kkemerait@ncuc.net <kkemerait@ncuc.net>; fmckissick@ncuc.net
<fmckissick@ncuc.net>; jhughes@ncuc.net <jhughes@ncuc.net>; kduffley@ncuc.net
<kduffley@ncuc.net>; cmitchell@ncuc.net <cmitchell@ncuc.net>; dclodfelter@ncuc.net
<dclodfelter@ncuc.net>; tbrownbland@ncuc.net <tbrownbland@ncuc.net>;
shaugenhoffart@nd.gov <shaugenhoffart@nd.gov>; jfedorchak@nd.gov <jfedorchak@nd.gov>;
rchristmann@nd.gov <rchristmann@nd.gov>; kigottschalk113@gmail.com
<klgottschalk113@gmail.com>; bpeck@pvbank.com <bpeck@pvbank.com>;
greg.moen@nucor.com <greg.moen@nucor.com>; chuckhutch@cox.net <chuckhutch@cox.net>;
fireida@gmail.com <fjreida@gmail.com>; carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov
<carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov>; pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov
<pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov>; daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov
<daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov>; PeretickK@michigan.gov <PeretickK@michigan.gov>;
michaelt.richard@maryland.gov <michaelt.richard@maryland.gov>; patrick.scully@maine.gov
<patrick.scully@maine.gov>; phil.bartlett@maine.gov <phil.bartlett@maine.gov>;
anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov <anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov>; sfreeman@urc.in.gov
<sfreeman@urc.in.gov>; jhuston1@urc.in.gov <jhuston1@urc.in.gov>; dziegner@urc.in.gov
<dziegner@urc.in.gov>; a.french@kcc.ks.gov <a.french@kcc.ks.gov>; s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov
<s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov>; d.keen@kcc.ks.gov <d.keen@kcc.ks.gov>; angie.hatton@ky.gov
<angie.hatton@ky.gov>; mary.regan@ky.gov <mary.regan@ky.gov>; Kent.Chandler@ky.gov
<Kent.Chandler@ky.gov>; davante.lewis@la.gov <davante.lewis@la.gov>; cgreene@la.gov
<cgreene@la.gov>; mike.francis@la.gov <mike.francis@la.gov>; eric.skrmetta@la.gov
<eric.skrmetta@la.gov>; foster.campbell@la.gov <foster.campbell@la.gov>;
james.vannostrand@state.ma.us <james.vannostrand@state.ma.us>; Fraser, Cecile (DPU)
<cecile.fraser@mass.gov>; dveleta@urc.in.gov <dveleta@urc.in.gov>; colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov
<colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov>; naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov <naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov>;
leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov <leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov>; sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov
<sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov>; erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov <erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov>;
joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov <joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov>; edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov
<edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov>; john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov
<john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov>; eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov
<eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov>; stacey.paradis@illinois.gov <stacey.paradis@illinois.gov>;
conrad.reddick@illinois.gov <conrad.reddick@illinois.gov>; amccabe®icc.illinois.gov
<amccabe®@icc.illinois.gov>; tom.plant@state.co.us <tom.plant@state.co.us>;
eric.blank@state.co.us <eric.blank@state.co.us>; megan.gilman@state.co.us



<megan.gilman@state.co.us>; marissa.gillett@ct.gov <marissa.gillett@ct.gov>;
john.betkoski@ct.gov <john.betkoski@ct.gov>; michael.caron@ct.gov <michael.caron@ct.gov>;
ttrabue@psc.dc.gov <ttrabue@psc.dc.gov>; ethompson@psc.dc.gov <ethompson@psc.dc.gov>;
rbeverly@psc.dc.gov <rbeverly@psc.dc.gov>; mike.karia@state.de.us <mike.karia@state.de.us>;
kim.drexler@state.de.us <kim.drexler@state.de.us>; harold.gray@state.de.us
<harold.gray@state.de.us>; dallas.winslow@delaware.gov <dallas.winslow@delaware.gov>;
joanneconaway@hotmail.com <joanneconaway@hotmail.com>;
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
fiohnson@psc.ga.gov <fjohnson@psc.ga.gov>; jshaw@psc.state.ga.us <jshaw@psc.state.ga.us>;
tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us <tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us>; techols@psc.state.ga.us
<techols@psc.state.ga.us>; bob.doyle@alaska.gov <bob.doyle@alaska.gov>;
keith.kurber@alaska.gov <keith.kurber@alaska.gov>; daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov
<daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov>; janis.wilson@alaska.gov <janis.wilson@alaska.gov>;
bob.pickett@alaska.gov <bob.pickett@alaska.gov>; jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov
<jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov>; twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov
<twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov>; chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov
<chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov>; Doyle. Webb@arkansas.gov <Doyle. Webb®@arkansas.gov>;
Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov <Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov>; jtate@psc.state.ar.us
<jtate@psc.state.ar.us>; meyers-web@azcc.gov <meyers-web@azcc.gov>; thompson-
web@azcc.gov <thompson-web@azcc.gov>; ATovar-web@azcc.gov <ATovar-web@azcc.gov>;
JOConnor-web@azcc.gov <JOConnor-web@azcc.gov>; Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov
<Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov>; karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov <karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov>;
john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov <john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>; alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov
<alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>; darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov <darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov>

Alarm: Display the following message 15m before start

| Reminder

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 10:09:37 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)
To: Hannah Polikov; Riley.Allen@vermont.gov; kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov;



jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov; lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov; peter.lake@puc.texas.gov;

will. ncadams@puc.texas.gov; rcallen@utah.gov; drexclark@utah.gov; tlevar@utah.gov;
kristie.flegen@state.sd.us; chris.nelson@state.sd.us; gary.hanson@state.sd.us;
abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov; john.revens@puc.ri.gov; Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us;
dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov; daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov; john.williams@puco.ohio.gov;
lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us; contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov; Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov;
Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov; mark.r.thompson@state.or.us; letha.tawney@state.or.us;
megan.decker@state.or.us; jfc@pa.gov; katzerfuss@pa.gov; smd@pa.gov; ryanora@pa.gov;
John.Howard@dps.ny.gov; Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov; james.alesi@dps.ny.gov;
James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov; pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov; gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov;
tcordova@puc.nv.gov; hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov; cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov;
john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov; rory.christian@dps.ny.gov; scrippsd1@michigan.gov;
joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us; valerie.means@state.mn.us; katie.sieben@state.mn.us;
matt.schuerger@state.mn.us; john.tuma@state.mn.us; glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov;
jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov; maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov; scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov;
brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov; dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov; brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us;
ann.bukacek@mt.gov; Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov; james.brown@mt.gov; pinocci@mt.gov;
anthony.odonnell@mt.gov; kkemerait@ncuc.net; fmckissick@ncuc.net; jhughes@ncuc.net;
kduffley@ncuc.net; cmitchell@ncuc.net; dclodfelter@ncuc.net; tbrownbland@ncuc.net;
shaugenhoffart@nd.gov; jfedorchak@nd.gov; rchristmann@nd.gov; kigottschalk113@gmail.com;
bpeck@pvbank.com; greg.moen@nucor.com; chuckhutch@cox.net; fireida@gmail.com;
carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov; pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov;
daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov; Peretickk@michigan.gov; michaelt.richard@maryland.gov;
patrick.scully@maine.gov; phil.bartlett@maine.gov; anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov;
sfreeman@urc.in.gov; jhuston1@urc.in.gov; dziegner@urc.in.gov; a.french@kcc.ks.gov;
s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov; d.keen@kcc.ks.gov; angie.hatton@ky.gov; mary.regan@ky.gov;
Kent.Chandler@ky.gov; davante.lewis@la.gov; cgreene@la.gov; mike.francis@la.gov;
eric.skrmetta@la.gov; foster.campbell@la.gov; james.vannostrand@state.ma.us;
cecile.fraser@state.ma.us; dveleta@urc.in.gov; colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov;
naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov; leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov; sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov;
erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov; joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov; edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov;
john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov; eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov; stacey.paradis@illinois.gov;
conrad.reddick@illinois.gov; amccabe@icc.illinois.gov; tom.plant@state.co.us;
eric.blank@state.co.us; megan.gilman@state.co.us; marissa.gillett@ct.gov; john.betkoski@ct.gov;
michael.caron@ct.gov; ttrabue@psc.dc.gov; ethompson@psc.dc.gov; rbeverly@psc.dc.gov;
mike.karia@state.de.us; kim.drexler@state.de.us; harold.gray@state.de.us;
dallas.winslow@delaware.gov; joanneconaway@hotmail.com;
Commissioner.Passidomo@psc.state.fl.us; Commissioner.LaRosa@psc.state.fl.us;
Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us; Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us;
commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us; fjohnson@psc.ga.gov; jshaw@psc.state.ga.us;
tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us; techols@psc.state.ga.us; bob.doyle@alaska.gov;
keith.kurber@alaska.gov; daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov; janis.wilson@alaska.gov;
bob.pickett@alaska.gov; jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov; twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov;
chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov; Doyle Webb@arkansas.gov; Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov;



jtate@psc.state.ar.us; meyers-web@azcc.gov; thompson-web@azcc.gov; ATovar-web@azcc.gov;
JOConnor-web®@azcc.gov; Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov; karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov;
john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov; alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov; darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov

Subject: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners

When: Monday, July 17, 2023 7:00 PM-9:00 PM.

Where: Taverna 258 W. 2nd Street Austin, TX 78701



From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

To: "a.french@kcce ks.gov" <a.french@kcc.ks.gov>, "abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov"
<abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov>, "alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov"
<alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, "amccabe@icc.illinois.gov" <amccabe@icc.illinois.gov>,
"ann.bukacek@mt.gov" <ann.bukacek@mt.gov>, "anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov"
<anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov>, "anthony.odonnell@mt.gov"
<anthony.odonnell@mt.gov>, "ATovar-web@azcc.gov" <ATovar-web@azcc.gov>,
"Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov" <Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov>, "bob.doyle@alaska.gov"
<bob.doyle@alaska.gov>, "bob.pickett@alaska.gov" <bob.pickett@alaska.gov>,
"bpeck@pvbank.com" <bpeck@pvbank.com>, "brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us"
<brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us>, "brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov"
<brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov>, "carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov"
<carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov>, "cecile.fraser@state.ma.us" <cecile.fraser@mass.gov>,
"cgreene@la.gov" <cgreene@la.gov>, "chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov"
<chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov>, "chris.nelson@state.sd.us" <chris.nelson@state.sd.us>,
"chuckhutch@cox.net" <chuckhutch@cox.net>, "cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov"
<cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov>, "cmitchell@ncuc.net" <cmitchell@ncuc.net>,
"colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov" <colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov>,
"Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us" <Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us>,
"Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us" <Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us>,
"commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us" <commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us>,
"Commissioner.LaRosa@psc.state.fl.us" <Commissioner.LaRosa@psc.state.fl.us>,
"Commissioner.Passidomo@psc.state.fl.us" <Commissioner.Passidomo@psc.state.fl.us>,
"conrad.reddick@illinois.gov" <conrad.reddick@illinois.gov>,
"contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov" <contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov>, "d.keen@kcc.ks.gov"
<d.keen@kcc.ks.gov>, "dallas.winslow(@delaware.gov" <dallas.winslow(@delaware.gov>,
"daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov" <daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov>,
"daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov" <daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov>,
"daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov" <daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov>, "darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov"
<darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov>, "davante.lewis@la.gov" <davante.lewis@la.gov>,
"dclodfelter@ncuc.net" <dclodfelter@ncuc.net>, "dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov"
<dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov>, "Doyle. Webb@arkansas.gov"
<Doyle.Webb@arkansas.gov>, "drexclark@utah.gov" <drexclark@utah.gov>,
"dveleta@urc.in.gov" <dveleta@urc.in.gov>, "dziegner@urc.in.gov"
<dziegner@urc.in.gov>, "eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov" <eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov>,
"eric.skrmetta@la.gov" <eric.skrmetta@la.gov>, "ethompson@psc.dc.gov"
<ethompson@psc.dc.gov>, "fjohnson@psc.ga.gov" <fjohnson@psc.ga.gov>,
"fjreida@gmail.com" <fjreida@gmail.com>, "fmckissick@ncuc.net"
<fmckissick@ncuc.net>, "foster.campbell@la.gov" <foster.campbell@la.gov>,
"gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov" <gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov>, "gary.hanson@state.sd.us'
<gary.hanson@state.sd.us>, "glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov"
<glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov>, "greg.moen@nucor.com" <greg.moen@nucor.com>,
"harold.gray@state.de.us" <harold.gray@state.de.us>, "hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov"
<hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov>, "james.brown@mt.gov" <james.brown@mt.gov>,
"James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov" <James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov>,
"james.vannostrand@state.ma.us" <james.vannostrand@mass.gov>,
"janis.wilson@alaska.gov" <janis.wilson@alaska.gov>, "jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov"
<jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov>, "Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us"
<Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us>, "Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov" <Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov>,
"jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov" <jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov>, "jfc@pa.gov"
<jfc@pa.gov>, "jfedorchak@nd.gov" <jfedorchak@nd.gov>, "jhughes@ncuc.net"
<jhughes@ncuc.net>, "jhustonl@urc.in.gov" <jhustonl@urc.in.gov>,
"jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov" <jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov>,



Cec:

"Jjoanneconaway@hotmail.com" <joanneconaway@hotmail.com>, "JOConnor-
web@azcc.gov" <JOConnor-web@azcc.gov>, "john.betkoski@ct.gov"
<john.betkoski@ct.gov>, "john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov"
<john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov>, "John.Howard@dps.ny.gov"
<John.Howard@dps.ny.gov>, "john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov" <john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov>,
"john.revens@puc.ri.gov" <john.revens@puc.ri.gov>, "john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov"
<john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, "john.tuma@state.mn.us" <john.tuma@state.mn.us>,
"john.williams@puco.ohio.gov" <john.williams@puco.ohio.gov>,
"joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us" <joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us>,
"joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov" <joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov>, "jshaw@psc.state.ga.us"
<jshaw(@psc.state.ga.us>, "jtate(@psc.state.ar.us" <jtate@psc.state.ar.us>,
"karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov" <karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov>,
"kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov" <kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov>,
"Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov" <Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov>,
"katie.sieben@state.mn.us" <katie.sieben@state.mn.us>, "katzerfuss@pa.gov"
<katzerfuss@pa.gov>, "kduffley@ncuc.net" <kduffley@ncuc.net>,
"keith.kurber@alaska.gov" <keith.kurber@alaska.gov>, "kim.drexler@state.de.us"
<kim.drexler@state.de.us>, "kkemerait@ncuc.net" <kkemerait@ncuc.net>,
"klgottschalk113@gmail.com" <klgottschalk113@gmail.com>, "kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us"
<kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us>, "lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us"
<lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us>, "leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov"
<leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov>, "letha.tawney(@state.or.us" <letha.tawney@state.or.us>,
"lmarquezpeterson@azcc.gov" <lmarquezpeterson@azcc.gov>, "lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov"
<lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov>, "maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov"
<maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov>, "marissa.gillett@ct.gov" <marissa.gillett@ct.gov>,
"mark.r.thompson@state.or.us" <mark.r.thompson(@state.or.us>, "mary.regan@ky.gov"
<mary.regan@ky.gov>, "matt.schuerger@state.mn.us" <matt.schuerger@state.mn.us>,
"megan.decker@state.or.us" <megan.decker@state.or.us>, "megan.gilman@state.co.us"
<megan.gilman(@state.co.us>, "meyers-web@azcc.gov" <meyers-web@azcc.gov>,
"michael.caron@ct.gov" <michael.caron@ct.gov>, "michaelt.richard@maryland.gov"
<michaelt.richard@maryland.gov>, "mike.francis@la.gov" <mike.francis@la.gov>,
"mike karia@state.de.us" <mike.karia@state.de.us>, "naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov"
<naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov>, "pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov" <pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov>,
"patrick.scully@maine.gov" <patrick.scully@maine.gov>, "PeretickK@michigan.gov"
<PeretickK@michigan.gov>, "peter.lake@puc.texas.gov" <peter.lake@puc.texas.gov>,
"phil.bartlett@maine.gov" <phil.bartlett@maine.gov>, "pinocci@mt.gov"
<pinocci@mt.gov>, "pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov"
<pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov>, "rbeverly@psc.dc.gov" <rbeverly@psc.dc.gov>,
"rcallen@utah.gov" <rcallen@utah.gov>, "rchristmann@nd.gov" <rchristmann@nd.gov>,
"Riley.Allen@vermont.gov" <Riley.Allen@vermont.gov>, "rory.christian@dps.ny.gov"
<rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>, "ryanora@pa.gov" <ryanora@pa.gov>, "s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov"
<s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov>, "sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov" <sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov>,
"scrippsd 1 @michigan.gov" <scrippsdl@michigan.gov>, "smd@pa.gov" <smd@pa.gov>,
"tbrownbland@ncuc.net" <tbrownbland@ncuc.net>, "thompson-web@azcc.gov"
<thompson-web@azcc.gov>, "tlevar@utah.gov" <tlevar@utah.gov>,
"Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov" <Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov>, "tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us"
<tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us>, "Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov"
<Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov>, "ttrabue@psc.dc.gov" <ttrabue@psc.dc.gov>,
"twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov" <twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov>,
"valerie.means@state.mn.us" <valerie.means@state.mn.us>,

"will. mcadams@puc.texas.gov" <will. mcadams@puc.texas.gov>

"Rendahl, Ann (UTC)" <ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov>, "chris.petrie@wyo.gov"
<chris.petrie@wyo.gov>, "clane@psc.state.wv.us" <clane@psc.state.wv.us>,
"ddanner@utc.wa.gov" <ddanner@utc.wa.gov>, "Jenifer.French@puco.ohio.gov"



<Jenifer.French@puco.ohio.gov>, "Drexler, Kim (DOS)" <Kim.Drexler@delaware.gov>,
"Margaret.Cheney@vermont.gov" <Margaret.Cheney@vermont.gov>,
"mary.throne@wyo.gov" <mary.throne@wyo.gov>, DECKER Megan * PUC

<Megan. DECKER@puc.oregon.gov>, OConnor-Web <OConnor-Web@azcc.gov>, "Valcq,
Rebecca" <Rebecca.Valcq@wisconsin.gov>, "Larrick, Renee" <rlarrick@psc.state.wv.us>,
"summer.strand@wisconsin.gov" <summer.strand@wisconsin.gov>, Tim Echols
<techols@psc.ga.gov>, "Tricia Pridemore" <TPridemore@psc.ga.gov>, "Huebner, Tyler -
PSC" <tyler.huebner@wisconsin.gov>, "wraney@psc.state.wv.us"
<wraney@psc.state.wv.us>

Subject: Canceled: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners
Date: Tue, 16 May 2023 20:01:36 +0000
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



Event: Canceled: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners

Start Date: 2023-07-17 23:00:00 +0000

End Date: 2023-07-18 01:00:00 +0000

Organizer: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>
Class: X-PERSONAL

Date Created: 2023-05-16 20:02:27 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-16 20:02:28 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-16 20:01:36 +0000

Attendee: a.french@kcc.ks.gov <a.french@kcc.ks.gov>; abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov
<abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov>; alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov <alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>;
amccabe@icc.illinois.gov <amccabe@icc.illinois.gov>; ann.bukacek@mt.gov
<ann.bukacek@mt.gov>; anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov <anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov>;
anthony.odonnell@mt.gov <anthony.odonnell@mt.gov>; ATovar-web@azcc.gov <ATovar-
web@azcc.gov>; Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov <Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov>; bob.doyle@alaska.gov
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
dallas.winslow@delaware.gov <dallas.winslow@delaware.gov>; daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov
<daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov>; daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov <daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov>;
daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov <daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov>; darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov
<darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov>; davante.lewis@la.gov <davante.lewis@la.gov>;
dclodfelter@ncuc.net <dclodfelter@ncuc.net>; dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov
<dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov>; Doyle Webb@arkansas.gov <Doyle. Webb@arkansas.gov>;
drexclark@utah.gov <drexclark@utah.gov>; dveleta@urc.in.gov <dveleta@urc.in.gov>;
dziegner@urc.in.gov <dziegner@urc.in.gov>; eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov
<eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov>; eric.skrmetta@la.gov <eric.skrmetta@la.gov>;



ethompson@psc.dc.gov <ethompson@psc.dc.gov>; fjohnson@psc.ga.gov
<fjohnson@psc.ga.gov>; fjreida@gmail.com <fjreida@gmail.com>; fmckissick@ncuc.net
<fmckissick@ncuc.net>; foster.campbell@la.gov <foster.campbell@la.gov>;
gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov <gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov>; gary.hanson@state.sd.us
<gary.hanson@state.sd.us>; glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov <glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov>;
greg.moen@nucor.com <greg.moen@nucor.com>; harold.gray@state.de.us
<harold.gray@state.de.us>; hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov <hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov>;
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
keith.kurber@alaska.gov <keith.kurber@alaska.gov>; kim.drexler@state.de.us
<kim.drexler@state.de.us>; kkemerait@ncuc.net <kkemerait@ncuc.net>;
klgottschalk113@gmail.com <klgottschalk113@gmail.com>; kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us
<kristie.flegen@state.sd.us>; lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us
<lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us>; leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov
<leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov>; letha.tawney@state.or.us <letha.tawney@state.or.us>;
Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov <Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov>; lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov
<lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov>; maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov <maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov>;
marissa.gillett@ct.gov <marissa.gillett@ct.gov>; mark.r.thompson@state.or.us
<mark.r.thompson@state.or.us>; mary.regan@ky.gov <mary.regan@ky.gov>;
matt.schuerger@state.mn.us <matt.schuerger@state.mn.us>; megan.decker@state.or.us
<megan.decker@state.or.us>; megan.gilman@state.co.us <megan.gilman@state.co.us>; meyers-
web@azcc.gov <meyers-web@azcc.gov>; michael.caron@ct.gov <michael.caron@ct.gov>;
michaelt.richard@maryland.gov <michaelt.richard@maryland.gov>; mike.francis@la.gov
<mike.francis@la.gov>; mike.karia@state.de.us <mike.karia@state.de.us>;



naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov <naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov>; pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov
<pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov>; patrick.scully@maine.gov <patrick.scully@maine.gov>;
Peretickk@michigan.gov <PeretickK@michigan.gov>; peter.lake@puc.texas.gov
<peter.lake@puc.texas.gov>; phil.bartlett@maine.gov <phil.bartlett@maine.gov>;
pinocci@mt.gov <pinocci@mt.gov>; pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov
<pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov>; rbeverly@psc.dc.gov <rbeverly@psc.dc.gov>;
rcallen@utah.gov <rcallen@utah.gov>; rchristmann@nd.gov <rchristmann@nd.gov>;
Riley.Allen@vermont.gov <Riley.Allen@vermont.gov>; rory.christian@dps.ny.gov
<rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>; ryanora@pa.gov <ryanora@pa.gov>; s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov
<s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov>; sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov <sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov>;
scrippsd1@michigan.gov <scrippsd1@michigan.gov>; smd@pa.gov <smd@pa.gov>;
tbrownbland@ncuc.net <tbrownbland@ncuc.net>; thompson-web@azcc.gov <thompson-
web@azcc.gov>; tlevar@utah.gov <tlevar@utah.gov>; Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov
<Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov>; tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us <tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us>;
Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov <Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov>; ttrabue@psc.dc.gov
<ttrabue@psc.dc.gov>; twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov
<twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov>; valerie. means@state.mn.us
<valerie.means@state.mn.us>; will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov <will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov>;
Rendahl, Ann (UTC) <ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov>; chris.petrie@wyo.gov <chris.petrie@wyo.gov>;
clane@psc.state.wv.us <clane@psc.state.wv.us>; ddanner@utc.wa.gov <ddanner@utc.wa.gov>;
Jenifer.French@puco.ohio.gov <Jenifer.French@puco.ohio.gov>; Drexler, Kim (DOS)
<Kim.Drexler@delaware.gov>; Margaret.Cheney@vermont.gov
<Margaret.Cheney@vermont.gov>; mary.throne@wyo.gov <mary.throne@wyo.gov>; DECKER
Megan * PUC <Megan.DECKER@puc.oregon.gov>; OConnor-Web <OConnor-Web@azcc.gov>;
Valcqg, Rebecca <Rebecca.Valcg@wisconsin.gov>; Larrick, Renee <rlarrick@psc.state.wv.us>;
summer.strand@wisconsin.gov <summer.strand@wisconsin.gov>; Tim Echols
<techols@psc.ga.gov>; Tricia Pridemore <TPridemore@psc.ga.gov>; Huebner, Tyler - PSC
<tyler.huebner@wisconsin.gov>; wraney@psc.state.wv.us <wraney@psc.state.wv.us>

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

Date Created: 2023-10-02 15:06:41 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-10-02 15:06:42 +0000
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
Peretickk@michigan.gov <PeretickKk@michigan.gov>; peter.lake@puc.texas.gov
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

To: "bob.doyle@alaska.gov" <bob.doyle@alaska.gov>, "daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov"
<daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov>, "janis.wilson@alaska.gov" <janis.wilson@alaska.gov>,
"bob.pickett@alaska.gov" <bob.pickett@alaska.gov>, "jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov"
<jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov>, "twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov"
<twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov>, "chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov"
<chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov>, "Doyle. Webb@arkansas.gov"
<Doyle.Webb@arkansas.gov>, "Katie. Anderson@arkansas.gov"
<Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov>, "jtate(@psc.state.ar.us" <jtate(@psc.state.ar.us>, "meyers-
web@azcc.gov" <meyers-web@azcc.gov>, "thompson-web@azcc.gov" <thompson-
web@azcc.gov>, "ATovar-web@azcc.gov" <ATovar-web@azcc.gov>,
"lmarquezpeterson@azcc.gov" <lmarquezpeterson@azcc.gov>, "john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov"
<john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, "alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov" <alice.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>,
"darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov" <darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov>, "megan.gilman@state.co.us"
<megan.gilman@state.co.us>, "marissa.gillett@ct.gov" <marissa.gillett@ct.gov>,
"john.betkoski@ct.gov" <john.betkoski@ct.gov>, "michael.caron@ct.gov"
<michael.caron@ct.gov>, "Trabue, Ted (PSC)" <ttrabue@psc.dc.gov>,
"ethompson@psc.dc.gov" <ethompson@psc.dc.gov>, "rbeverly@psc.dc.gov"
<rbeverly@psc.dc.gov>, "mike karia@state.de.us" <mike.karia@state.de.us>,
"harold.gray@state.de.us" <harold.gray@state.de.us>, "dallas.winslow(@delaware.gov"
<dallas.winslow(@delaware.gov>, Joann Conaway <joanneconaway@hotmail.com>,
"Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us" <Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us>,
"Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us" <Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us>,
"commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us" <commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us>,
"fjohnson@psc.ga.gov" <fjohnson@psc.ga.gov>, "colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov"
<colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov>, "Kuwaye, Naomi U" <naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov>, "Asuncion,
Leo R" <leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov>, "sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov"
<sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov>, "Byrnes, Joshua" <joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov>,
"john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov" <john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov>,
"eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov" <eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov>,
"conrad.reddick@illinois.gov" <conrad.reddick@illinois.gov>, "amccabe@icc.illinois.gov"
<amccabe@jicc.illinois.gov>, "jhuston1@urc.in.gov" <jhustonl@urc.in.gov>,
"dziegner@urc.in.gov" <dziegner@urc.in.gov>, "a.french@kcc.ks.gov"
<a.french@kcc.ks.gov>, "s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov" <s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov>, "mary.regan@ky.gov"
<mary.regan@ky.gov>, Davante Lewis <davante.lewis@la.gov>, "cgreene@la.gov"
<cgreene@la.gov>, "eric.skrmetta@la.gov" <eric.skrmetta@la.gov>, "foster.campbell@la.gov"
<foster.campbell@la.gov>, "cecile.fraser@state.ma.us" <cecile.fraser@mass.gov>,
"anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov" <anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov>, Michaelt Richard -
PSC- <michaelt.richard@maryland.gov>, "patrick.scully@maine.gov"
<patrick.scully@maine.gov>, "phil.bartlett@maine.gov" <phil.bartlett@maine.gov>,
"PeretickK@michigan.gov" <PeretickK@michigan.gov>, "scrippsd1@michigan.gov"
<scrippsd1 @michigan.gov>, "joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us"
<joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us>, "valerie.means@state.mn.us" <valerie.means@state.mn.us>,
"katie.sieben@state.mn.us" <katie.sieben@state.mn.us>, "matt.schuerger@state.mn.us"
<matt.schuerger@state.mn.us>, "john.tuma@state.mn.us" <john.tuma@state.mn.us>,
"jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov" <jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov>, "maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov"
<maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov>, "Bailey, Brent" <brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov>,
"brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us" <brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us>,
"ann.bukacek@mt.gov" <ann.bukacek@mt.gov>, "Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov"
<Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov>, "james.brown@mt.gov" <james.brown@mt.gov>,
"pinocci@mt.gov" <pinocci@mt.gov>, "anthony.odonnell@mt.gov"
<anthony.odonnell@mt.gov>, "kkemerait@ncuc.net" <kkemerait@ncuc.net>, "McKissick,
Floyd" <fmckissick@ncuc.net>, "Hughes, Jeffrey" <jhughes@ncuc.net>, "Duffley, Kimberly"



<kduffley@ncuc.net>, "cmitchell@ncuc.net" <cmitchell@ncuc.net>, "dclodfelter@ncuc.net"
<dclodfelter@ncuc.net>, "tbrownbland@ncuc.net" <tbrownbland@ncuc.net>, "Fedorchak,
Julie L." <jfedorchak@nd.gov>, "rchristmann@nd.gov" <rchristmann@nd.gov>,
"klgottschalk113@gmail.com" <klgottschalk113@gmail.com>, "bpeck@pvbank.com"
<bpeck@pvbank.com>, "greg.moen@nucor.com" <greg.moen@nucor.com>,
"chuckhutch@cox.net" <chuckhutch@cox.net>, "fjreida@gmail.com" <fjreida@gmail.com>,
"carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov" <carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov>,
"pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov" <pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov>,
"daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov" <daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov>, "O'Connell, Pat , PRC"
<pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov>, "Aguilera, Gabriel , PRC" <gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov>,
"hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov" <hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov>, "cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov"
<cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov>, "Christian, Rory (DPS)" <rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>,
"John.Howard@dps.ny.gov" <John.Howard@dps.ny.gov>, "Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov"
<Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov>, "dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov"
<dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov>, "daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov"
<daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov>, "john.williams@puco.ohio.gov"
<john.williams@puco.ohio.gov>, "lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us"
<lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us>, "contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov"
<contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov>, "Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov" <Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov>,
"Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov" <Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov>, "mark.r.thompson@state.or.us'
<mark.r.thompson@state.or.us>, "letha.tawney@state.or.us" <letha.tawney(@state.or.us>,
"ifc@pa.gov" <jfc@pa.gov>, "smd@pa.gov" <smd@pa.gov>, "ryanora@pa.gov"
<ryanora@pa.gov>, "john.revens@puc.ri.gov" <john.revens@puc.ri.gov>,
"kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us" <kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us>, "Nelson, Chris"
<chris.nelson@state.sd.us>, "gary.hanson@state.sd.us" <gary.hanson@state.sd.us>,
"kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov" <kathleen.jackson@puc.texas.gov>,
"jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov" <jimmy.glotfelty@puc.texas.gov>,
"lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov" <lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov>, "peter.lake@puc.texas.gov"
<peter.lake@puc.texas.gov>, "will. mcadams@puc.texas.gov" <will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov>,
"Riley.Allen@vermont.gov" <Riley.Allen@vermont.gov>, "Margaret.Cheney@vermont.gov"
<Margaret.Cheney@vermont.gov>, "ddanner@utc.wa.gov" <ddanner@utc.wa.gov>,
"summer.strand@wisconsin.gov" <summer.strand@wisconsin.gov>, "Huebner, Tyler - PSC"
<tyler.huebner@wisconsin.gov>, "wraney@psc.state.wv.us" <wraney@psc.state.wv.us>,
"clane@psc.state.wv.us" <clane@psc.state.wv.us>, "rlarrick@psc.state.wv.us"
<rlarrick@psc.state.wv.us>, "chris.petrie@wyo.gov" <chris.petrie@wyo.gov>

Subject: Summer NARUC Dinner Invite
Date: Tue, 16 May 2023 21:27:00 +0000
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

| am sorry about the confusion and calendar clutter. We only meant to send these calendar invites to the people who
RSVP’d yes to the dinner. So, | am pulling the invite for those who have not RSVP’d yes. | hope you will consider joining us

for dinner in Austin on July 171" Have a great rest of your week!

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!nAL6OqbB6LFKVcbzq_OqmjKafdW4m8zSGfa-JmTrMvsc4wvmsh7Y6UaKD9d-6Hc2jH-BYQ6vQtgoXlvYvmjgmlx1uhGK3A6m$

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
"angie.hatton@ky.gov" <angie.hatton@ky.gov>, "ann.bukacek@mt.gov"
<ann.bukacek@mt.gov>, "anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov"
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
"dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov" <dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov>, "daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov"
<daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov>, "daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov"
<daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov>, "daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov"
<daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov>, "darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov" <darcie.houck@cpuc.ca.gov>,
"davante.lewis@la.gov" <davante.lewis@la.gov>, "dclodfelter@ncuc.net"
<dclodfelter@ncuc.net>, "dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov" <dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov>,
"Doyle.Webb@arkansas.gov" <Doyle.Webb@arkansas.gov>, "drexclark@utah.gov"
<drexclark@utah.gov>, "dveleta@urc.in.gov" <dveleta@urc.in.gov>,
"dziegner@urc.in.gov" <dziegner@urc.in.gov>, "edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov"
<edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov>, "eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov"
<eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov>, "eric.blank(@state.co.us" <eric.blank@state.co.us>,
"eric.skrmetta@la.gov" <eric.skrmetta@la.gov>, "erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov"
<erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov>, "ethompson@psc.dc.gov" <ethompson@psc.dc.gov>,
"fjohnson@psc.ga.gov" <fjohnson@psc.ga.gov>, "fjreida@gmail.com"
<fjreida@gmail.com>, "fmckissick@ncuc.net" <fmckissick@ncuc.net>,
"foster.campbell@la.gov" <foster.campbell@la.gov>, "gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov"
<gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov>, "gary.hanson@state.sd.us" <gary.hanson@state.sd.us>,
"glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov" <glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov>, "greg.moen@nucor.com"
<greg.moen@nucor.com>, "harold.gray@state.de.us" <harold.gray(@state.de.us>,
"hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov" <hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov>, "james.alesi@dps.ny.gov"
<james.alesi@dps.ny.gov>, "james.brown@mt.gov" <james.brown@mt.gov>,
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
<jhughes@ncuc.net>, "jhuston1@urc.in.gov" <jhustonl@urc.in.gov>,
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
"keith.kurber@alaska.gov" <keith.kurber@alaska.gov>, "Kent.Chandler@ky.gov"
<Kent.Chandler@ky.gov>, "kim.drexler@state.de.us" <kim.drexler@state.de.us>,
"kkemerait@ncuc.net" <kkemerait@ncuc.net>, "klgottschalk113@gmail.com"
<klgottschalk113@gmail.com>, "kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us" <kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us>,
"lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us" <lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us>,
"leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov" <leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov>, "letha.tawney@state.or.us"
<letha.tawney(@state.or.us>, "lmarquezpeterson@azcc.gov" <lmarquezpeterson@azcc.gov>,
"lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov" <lori.cobos@puc.texas.gov>, "maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov"
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
"scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov" <scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov>, "scrippsd 1 @michigan.gov"
<scrippsd1 @michigan.gov>, "sfreeman@urc.in.gov" <sfreeman@urc.in.gov>,
"shaugenhoffart@nd.gov" <shaugenhoffart@nd.gov>, "smd@pa.gov" <smd@pa.gov>,
"stacey.paradis@illinois.gov" <stacey.paradis@illinois.gov>, "tbrownbland@ncuc.net"
<tbrownbland@ncuc.net>, "tcordova@puc.nv.gov" <tcordova@puc.nv.gov>,
"techols@psc.state.ga.us" <techols@psc.state.ga.us>, "thompson-web@azcc.gov"
<thompson-web@azcc.gov>, "tlevar@utah.gov" <tlevar@utah.gov>,
"Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov" <Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov>, "tom.plant@state.co.us"



<tom.plant@state.co.us>, "tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us" <tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us>,
"Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov" <Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov>, "ttrabue@psc.dc.gov"
<ttrabue@psc.dc.gov>, "twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov"
<twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov>, "valerie.means@state.mn.us"
<valerie.means@state.mn.us>, "will. mncadams@puc.texas.gov"
<will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov>

Subject: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 18:13:45 +0000
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

Date Created: 2023-05-12 18:14:31 +0000

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
To: "Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: FW: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 17:58:23 +0000
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
will.mcadams@puc.texas.gov; rcallen@utah.gov; drexclark@utah.gov; tlevar@utah.gov;
kristie.fiegen@state.sd.us; chris.nelson@state.sd.us; gary.hanson@state.sd.us; abigail.anthony@puc.ri.gov;
john.revens@puc.ri.gov; Jenifer.french@puc.state.oh.us; dennis.deters@puco.ohio.gov;
daniel.conway@puco.ohio.gov; john.williams@puco.ohio.gov; lawrence.friedeman@puc.state.oh.us;
contactkimdavid@occ.ok.gov; Todd.Hiett@occ.ok.gov; Bob.Anthony@occ.ok.gov;
mark.r.thompson@state.or.us; letha.tawney@state.or.us; megan.decker@state.or.us; jfc@pa.gov;
katzerfuss@pa.gov; smd@pa.gov; ryanora@pa.gov; John.Howard@dps.ny.gov; Tracey.Edwards@dps.ny.gov;
james.alesi@dps.ny.gov; James.Ellison@prc.nm.gov; pat.oconnell@prc.nm.gov; gabriel.aguilera@prc.nm.gov;
tcordova@puc.nv.gov; hwilliamson@puc.nv.gov; cjmanthe@puc.nv.gov; john.maggiore@dps.ny.gov;
rory.christian@dps.ny.gov; scrippsd 1 @michigan.gov; joseph.k.sullivan@state.mn.us;
valerie.means(@state.mn.us; katie.sieben@state.mn.us; matt.schuerger@state.mn.us; john.tuma(@state.mn.us;
glen.kolkmeyer@psc.mo.gov; jason.holsman@psc.mo.gov; maida.coleman@psc.mo.gov;
scott.rupp@psc.mo.gov; brent.bailey@psc.ms.gov; dane.maxwell@psc.ms.gov;
brandon.presley@psc.state.ms.us; ann.bukacek@mt.gov; Jennifer.fielder@mt.gov; james.brown@mt.gov;
pinocci@mt.gov; anthony.odonnell@mt.gov; kkemerait@ncuc.net; fmckissick@ncuc.net; jhughes@ncuc.net;
kduffley@ncuc.net; cmitchell@ncuc.net; dclodfelter@ncuc.net; tbrownbland@ncuc.net;
shaugenhoffart@nd.gov; jfedorchak@nd.gov; rchristmann@nd.gov; klgottschalk113@gmail.com;
bpeck@pvbank.com; greg.moen@nucor.com; chuckhutch@cox.net; fjreida@gmail.com;
carleton.b.simpson@puc.nh.gov; pradip.k.chattopadhyay@puc.nh.gov; daniel.c.goldner@puc.nh.gov;
PeretickK(@michigan.gov; michaelt.richard@maryland.gov; patrick.scully@maine.gov;
phil.bartlett@maine.gov; anthony.odonnell@maryland.gov; sfreeman@urc.in.gov; jhustonl@urc.in.gov;
dziegner(@urc.in.gov; a.french@kcc.ks.gov; s.duffy@kcc.ks.gov; d.keen@kcc.ks.gov; angie.hatton@ky.gov;
mary.regan@Xky.gov; Kent.Chandler@ky.gov; davante.lewis@la.gov; cgreene@la.gov; mike.francis@la.gov;
eric.skrmetta@la.gov; foster.campbell@la.gov; james.vannostrand@state.ma.us; cecile.fraser@state.ma.us;
dveleta@urc.in.gov; colin.a.yost@hawaii.gov; naomi.u.kuwaye@hawaii.gov; leo.r.asuncion@hawaii.gov;
sarah.martz@iub.iowa.gov; erik.helland@iub.iowa.gov; joshua.byrnes@iub.iowa.gov;
edward.lodge@puc.idaho.gov; john.hammond@puc.idaho.gov; eric.anderson@puc.idaho.gov;
stacey.paradis@illinois.gov; conrad.reddick@illinois.gov; amccabe@icc.illinois.gov; tom.plant@state.co.us;
eric.blank@state.co.us; megan.gilman(@state.co.us; marissa.gillett@ct.gov; john.betkoski@ct.gov;
michael.caron@ct.gov; ttrabue@psc.dc.gov; ethompson@psc.dc.gov; rbeverly@psc.dc.gov;
mike.karia@state.de.us; kim.drexler@state.de.us; harold.gray@state.de.us; dallas.winslow(@delaware.gov;



joanneconaway(@hotmail.com; Commissioner.Passidomo@psc.state.fl.us;
Commissioner.LaRosa@psc.state.fl.us; Commissioner.Fay@psc.state.fl.us; Commissioner.Clark@psc.state.fl.us;
commissioner.graham@psc.state.fl.us; fjohnson@psc.ga.gov; jshaw@psc.state.ga.us;
tpridemore@psc.state.ga.us; techols@psc.state.ga.us; bob.doyle@alaska.gov; keith.kurber@alaska.gov;
daniel.sullivan@alaska.gov; janis.wilson@alaska.gov; bob.pickett@alaska.gov; jeremy.oden@psc.alabama.gov;
twinkle.cavanaugh@psc.alabama.gov; chip.beeker@psc.alabama.gov; Doyle.Webb@arkansas.gov;
Katie.Anderson@arkansas.gov; jtate(@psc.state.ar.us; meyers-web@azcc.gov; thompson-web@azcc.gov;
ATovar-web@azcc.gov; JOConnor-web@azcc.gov; Imarquezpeterson@azcc.gov; karen.douglas@cpuc.ca.gov;
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

Date Modified: 2023-08-13 10:48:13 +0000

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
Cec: "Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: Canceled: Dinner with Advanced Energy United and Commissioners
Date: Fri, 12 May 2023 17:59:32 +0000
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

Date Created: 2023-05-12 17:58:36 +0000

Date Modified: 2023-05-12 18:00:37 +0000

Priority: 5

DTSTAMP: 2023-05-12 17:59:32 +0000

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
Subject: Idea to run by you
Date: Tue, 13 Jun 2023 18:27:29 +0000
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

| hope you're having a good week! | had an idea to run by you. We often do educational sessions for PUCs
around the country on topics of their interest, bringing in commissioners or staff from other states and other
experts as appropriate to help frame issues, highlight emerging best practices from around the country, and
answer questions. The sessions are commissioners and staff-only and you would be free to invite whoever you
wanted. When we did this for the NJ BPU, for example, they chose to invite commissioners, BPU staffers and
relevant folks from their governor's office. For the sessions, we can do either single sessions (typically 1 hour)
or a session series (eg. 3 sessions, each 1-hr, spread over a few months). One topic we thought might be of
interest to MA is future of gas. If that is indeed of interest, we would work with you and your team to figure out
which sub-topics would be of highest interest to cover (non-exhaustive list of potential topics below):

i. non-pipeline alternative (NPA) programs to avoid or defer gas system spending

ii. integrated gas & electric planning

iii. utility business model reforms for gas utilities

iv. grid reliability and gas supply issues

v. energy efficiency, demand response and time-varying rates to flatten demand profiles and address winter
peaks

iv. role for alternative fuels like renewable natural gas and hydrogen

If you'd like to explore this further, I'd be happy to set up a call sometime in the next few weeks.

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.AdvancedEnergyUnited.org__;!!CPANwP4y!VSi3NhXWw4o25fAIVymYaJ7NL8UspAgXDzVzp5Bv32aMEszHqHz9rGv62smxcDNAw0sSSOGliRFsDqKk-Hpt5O8vLADHBoQDvIPIXQ$

From: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
To: "Hannah Polikov" <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Megan Gilman
Date: Wed, 21 Jun 2023 20:22:13 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png

Hannah—

Megan and | are on the same panel at a Conveners Network, States Deployment Initiative conference in Chicago next
Tuesday. (Dale Bryk invited me.) So | will get a chance to meet her then. Thanks, Hannah.

Best,
Jamie

James M. Van Nostrand

Chair, Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
1 South Station

Boston, MA 02110

james.vannostrand(@mass.gov

(617) 305-3540



mailto:james.vannostrand@mass.gov

From: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
To: "Cellucci, Elizabeth (DPU)" <Elizabeth.Cellucci@mass.gov>
Cec: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Subject: RE: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity
Date: Sat, 24 Jun 2023 00:11:31 +0000
Importance: Normal

Thanks, Liz.

From: Cellucci, Elizabeth (DPU) <Elizabeth.Cellucci@mass.gov>
Sent: Friday, June 23, 2023 5:31 PM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand @mass.gov>
Cc: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Subject: RE: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity

Done. Just sent an email to Jessica Bell. I'll try to connect with her next week.

From: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Sent: Friday, June 23, 2023 5:27 PM

To: Cellucci, Elizabeth (DPU) <Elizabeth.Cellucci@mass.gov>

Cc: Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Subject: FW: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity

Liz—
| would like to pursue the opportunity to get a fellow from NYU. Please follow up with Jessica Bell. Thanks.

Best,
Jamie

From: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 2:32 PM

To: Tohme, Kate (DPU) <kate.tohme@mass.gov>; VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>; Rubin,
Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Chair Van Nostrand, Commissioner Rubin, and Kate,

| hope you are having a good week. | am reaching out to let you know that NYU Law School is expanding an existing
fellowship program they run to now include state Public Utility Commissions.

The program sponsors fellows to work full-time for at least 1 year at Public Utility Commissions across the country to
work on topics chosen by the Commission. Fellows can be lawyers or non-lawyers depending on the Commission’s
needs. The Louisiana Public Service Commission will host the first Commission fellow and NYU Law School is now


mailto:James.VanNostrand@mass.gov
mailto:Elizabeth.Cellucci@mass.gov
mailto:staci.rubin@mass.gov
mailto:ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org
mailto:kate.tohme@mass.gov
mailto:James.VanNostrand@mass.gov
mailto:staci.rubin@mass.gov
mailto:hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org

looking for additional states who may be interested. Additional information can be found on the website:
https://stateimpactcenter.org/ag-work/fellows-program

If you would be interested in having a fellow or have any questions, please contact Jessica Bell (jessica.bell@nyu.edu).

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



https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/stateimpactcenter.org/ag-work/fellows-program__;!!CUhgQOZqV7M!j0SLbIDKzafZ1RPGIpIyS08vNWUBy-fsxASPIjSwV9zMGbDKqPwGyiCkU12g5QE4xMyKdFnjTiZdldyYdsT0Nm0pkAa-7rgJ_MOJ$
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From: "Rubin, Staci (DPU)" <staci.rubin@mass.gov>

To: "Cellucci, Elizabeth (DPU)" <Elizabeth.Cellucci@mass.gov>, "VanNostrand, James (DPU)"
<James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>

Subject: Re: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity
Date: Fri, 23 Jun 2023 23:28:10 +0000
Importance: Normal

Thank you!

Staci Rubin (she/her)
Commissioner
Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities

One South Station, 51 Floor
Boston, MA 02110
Staci.Rubin@mass.gov
617-305-3595

From: Cellucci, Elizabeth (DPU) <Elizabeth.Cellucci@mass.gov>
Sent: Friday, June 23, 2023 5:30:42 PM

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
I would like to pursue the opportunity to get a fellow from NYU. Please follow up with Jessica Bell. Thanks.

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

To: "VanNostrand, James (DPU)" <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>, "Rubin, Staci (DPU)"
<staci.rubin@mass.gov>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>
Subject: Re: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity
Date: Mon, 26 Jun 2023 15:49:42 +0000
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

| am glad to hear Massachusetts is looking into hosting a fellow. Please let me know if you have any questions.

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

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2023 5:25 PM

To: Christina Kurre <ckurre@advancedenergyunited.org>; Rubin, Staci (DPU) <staci.rubin@mass.gov>
Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Subject: RE: Public Utility Commission Fellowship Opportunity

Thanks for reaching out, Christina. | would definitely be interested in hosting a fellow, and will have someone from our
staff reach out to Jessica Bell. Thanks for forwarding the opportunity to us.

BTW, Kate Tohme (sadly) is no longer with the agency; she went to New Leaf Energy earlier this month.

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
To: "Gardiner, Lynn (DPU)" <Lynn.Gardiner@mass.gov>
Subject: FW: CT/MA Connection
Date: Mon, 21 Aug 2023 16:31:28 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png; image006.png

Please work with Robin to set up a meeting time with Chair Gillett. Thanks.

Best,
Jamie

From: Gillett, Marissa <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>

Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 12:26 PM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand @ mass.gov>
Subject: RE: CT/MA Connection

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon, and happy Monday

Absolutely, and equal apologies on my side for the lack of follow-up. These days | feel like | only remember to react to
what’s right in front of me, so | apologize about that.

| would welcome the opportunity to connect. | had a great conversation with Staci and really look forward to
collaborating with you all more.

My scheduler (Robin —he/him) can be reached at Ussawin.bumpen@ct.gov, and I'll give him the heads-up that Lynn
will be reaching out. | will regrettably miss seeing you all for the NECPUC meeting at the end of September, as | had
another board meeting commitment crop up for the same days ahead of time.

Looking forward to connecting.
Best,
Marissa

Marissa P. Gillett

Chairman

CT Public Utilities Regulatory Authority (PURA)
p: 860-827-2628 | e: marissa.gillett@ct.gov.
www.ct.gov/pura

0000

From: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Sent: Saturday, August 19, 2023 5:59 PM
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mailto:James.VanNostrand@mass.gov

To: Gillett, Marissa <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>
Subject: RE: CT/MA Connection

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

Chair Gillett—

Sorry for the delay in following up, but | would like to connect with you regarding the various initiatives you are
undertaking in Connecticut. | think you have previously connected with my colleague, Staci Rubin.

Please let me know if you are interested in meeting, and | can have my secretary, Lynn Gardiner, follow up with your
scheduler to get something on our respective calendars.

Best,
Jamie

James M. Van Nostrand

Chair, Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities
1 South Station

Boston, MA 02110

james.vannostrand@mas S.gOV

(617) 305-3540

From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 10:54 AM

To: Gillett, Marissa <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>; VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: CT/MA Connection

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Chair Gillett,

I'd like to connect you with MA Chair Jamie Van Nostrand (cc'ed here). | think your paths crossed briefly at our
offshore wind virtual session and at NECPUC but | wanted to more directly connect you here by way of email.
I've shared with Chair Van Nostrand the great work you've been doing in CT and he's interested in learning
more, especially around PBR. I'll let you two take it from here!

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
To: "Gillett, Marissa" <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>
Subject: RE: CT/MA Connection
Date: Tue, 22 Aug 2023 16:26:43 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png; image004.png; image005.png

Robin and Lynn have connected to get a meeting on our respective calendars. See you soon. Thanks, Marissa.

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
To: "Matt McDonnell" <mmcdonnell@strategen.com>
Subject: RE: MA/ Strategen Intro
Date: Thu, 20 Jul 2023 18:18:09 +0000
Importance: Normal
Inline-Images: image001.png; image002.png; image003.png

Matt—

Nice to meet you. Unfortunately, | decided not to make the trip to Austin this week. | remain interested in gas
decarbonization. As you may know, | worked with a Strategen team with Sierra Club in an Avista rate case at the WUTC,
where we worked on phasing down the natural gas business. (I was Of Counsel at Keyes & Fox at the time.) | would
welcome the opportunity to get your thoughts on the natural gas transition sometime.

Best,
Jamie

From: Matt McDonnell <mmcdonnell@strategen.com>

Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 7:35 PM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <James.VanNostrand@mass.gov>
Subject: RE: MA/ Strategen Intro

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system.
Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Thanks, Hannah, for the warm introduction! (moving you to bcc)
Chair Van Nostrand,

Pleasure to make your acquaintance. I'd certainly enjoy an opportunity to meet and trade notes on PBR and gas
decarbonization (among other topics) in Austin if that is of interest. My schedule remains relatively flexible on Monday
and Tuesday morning.

All my best,
Matt

Matthew McDonnell

Executive Vice President, Head of Consulting Services
Partner

he/him

&Y STRATEGEN

+1 510 369 5931 (Main — US)
+1 313 657 8982 (Mobile — US)
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From: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov@advancedenergyunited.org>

Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 2:32 PM

To: VanNostrand, James (DPU) <james.vannostrand@mass.gov>; Matt McDonnell <mmcdonnell@strategen.com>
Subject: MA/ Strategen Intro

I CAUTION: EXTERNAL EMAIL

Dear Chair Van Nostrand,

I'd like to introduce Matthew McDonnell (cc'ed here), Partner & Executive Vice President, Head of
Consulting Services at Strategen.He was the architect behind Hawaii's groundbreaking PBR docket when
he was general counsel for the PUC there and of late he's been advising CT PURA on their PBR efforts.
Matt is also deep on future of gas issues. In short, he's a terrific resource and also a pleasure to work
with! I'll let you two take it from here.

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

To: "McCabe, Ann" <Ann.McCabe@]llinois.gov>, "ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov"
<ann.rendahl@utc.wa.gov>, Jehmal Hudson <Jehmal.Hudson@scc.virginia.gov>,
"john.reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov" <John.Reynolds@cpuc.ca.gov>, "Staci.Rubin@state.ma.us'
<staci.rubin@mass.gov>, "Blank - DORA, Eric" <eric.blank@state.co.us>, "Thompson,
Emile (PSC)" <ethompson@psc.dc.gov>, "Gillett, Marissa" <Marissa.Gillett@ct.gov>,
"rory.christian@dps.ny.gov" <rory.christian@dps.ny.gov>, "Valcq, Rebecca"
<Rebecca.Valcq@wisconsin.gov>, Davante Lewis <davante.lewis@la.gov>, "McKissick,
Floyd" <fmckissick@ncuc.net>, "Christine.guhl-sadovy@bpu.nj.gov" <Christine.Guhl-
Sadovy@bpu.nj.gov>

Cc: Hannah Polikov <hpolikov(@advancedenergyunited.org>, Sarah Steinberg
<ssteinberg@advancedenergyunited.org>, Bradley Cebulko <bcebulko@strategen.com>,
"Sotero, Maria" <Maria.Sotero@cpuc.ca.gov>

Subject: Commissioners Equity Cohort July 24th Call and Slide Deck
Date: Thu, 20 Jul 2023 21:39:19 +0000
Importance: Normal
Attachments: Institute Commissioners Equity Cohort Slides July 2023.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail
system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the
content is safe.

Good afternoon Commissioners,

| hope that everyone is having a good summer! It was a pleasure seeing many of you at the Summer NARUC
Conference in Austin earlier this week.

We are looking forward to our Q3 Commissioners Equity Cohort virtual meeting this coming Monday, July 24th 12-
2pm PST/3-5pm EST. This discussion will be held via Zoom. Please join by video using this link, which is included in the
calendar invitation.

Our Q3 call will focus on Equity in the Gas Trans<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>